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Mission Statement

To develop a fair, efficient and
transparent regulatory
framework, based on international
legal standards and best practices,
for the protection of investors and
mitigation of systemic risk aimed
at fostering growth of robust
corporate sector and broad-based
capital market in Pakistan.



Chairman’s Message

| am pleased to present this report since it highlights the tangible outcomes of our regulatory
approach and actions on the sectors that we oversee.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has a wide mandate, and oversees the
securities and futures market, insurance and NBFC sectors, corporate registry and secured
transactions registry. As such, the impact of our regulatory approach on the wider economy is
significant. Accordingly, during the year, we continued with our charted roadmap focusing on the
overarching objectives of ensuring effective enforcement, improving access to finance and capital
formation, simplifying regulatory processes, reducing costs and facilitating market development.

We started the year, cognizant of the expectations of the public and other stakeholders, regarding
the need for enhanced focus on accountability and transparency. | am satisfied in sharing that the
journey that started with the initiation of a centralized Adjudication Division during fiscal year 2020,
reached its culmination, with the establishment of a Centralized Supervision Division on March 31,
2021. This has been backed by strengthening of the litigation team, and streamlining and revamping
of all the SOPs and processes related to the initiation and conclusion of regulatory enforcement
actions. This restructuring will further strengthen SECP's ability to operate as a focused, transparent
and accountable financial sector regulator. Furthermore, it is important to highlight that
amendments in the SECP Act have been laid before the National Assembly Standing Committee on
Finance, Revenue and Economic Affairs, wherein special focus has been placed on strengthening the
internal governance of SECP, establishing independent tribunals to hear appeals against SECP
orders, and streamlining the role of the Audit Oversight Board.
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The number and diverse nature of show-cause notices issued, orders passed, penalties imposed and
collected and improved compliance are a testament to the improved enforcement function of the
Commission, even at this early stage. In addition, this transformation has enabled SECP to ensure
consistency in its enforcement actions.

In AML/CFT domain, SECP, as the designated AML/CFT Supervisory Authority of its regulated entities,
was able to issue six subsidiary regulatory measures in line with the Anti Money Laundering Act,
besides amending the Companies Act, 2017 in line with the FATF recommendations. SECP's regime
for regulated financial institutions have been rated as largely compliant in FATF action plan (08 out
of 08 action items) and in the Post Observation Period Report of the Mutual Evaluation Report (54
out of 54 recommended actions). To ensure full disclosure in the ownership and control structure of
corporate entities, the requirement of declaration of ultimate beneficial ownership was made
mandatory.

Moreover, to protect public interest, SECP has reinstated the cost audit requirement through the
promulgation of Companies (Maintenance and Audit of Cost Accounts) Regulations, 2020. Through
these regulations, cost audit requirement has been made applicable on a number of key sectors that
directly affect the common citizen, including sugar, wheat, cement, and cooking oil.

Finally, the implementation of new trading system at the PSX is expected to not only improve trading
operations of the stock market, but also lead to a much stronger surveillance system of the front-end
regulator by December 2021. Its launch will also be complemented by new broker categorization
regime, including operationalization of the professional clearing member.

Amidst this emphasis on developing a strong enforcement model and culture, SECP never lost sight
of its other broader objectives; re-engineering the organization to bring about a complete shift in its
approach towards the regulation-making process and delivering its mandate. It steadfastly and
resolutely kept moving towards creating an enabling regulatory environment for the business
community, attracting investment and spurring economic growth by simplifying the regulatory
regime, through purposeful stakeholder engagement, following international best practices, and
improving user experience.

At the outset of this year, SECP was geared to address the challenges posed by Covid-19 and the fact
that it required a series of meaningful and comprehensive responses to mitigate the impact. For the
corporate sector, time relaxations were granted in filing statutory returns and allowing companies
to hold General Meetings (including AGMs) through virtual mode, which has now been made a
permanent feature, encouraging wider participation of shareholders through electronic means. In
case of securities market, number of supportive measures were introduced for smooth functioning
of capital market operations in face of COVID-19 pandemic. For AMC sector, SECP allowed NBFCs to
defer repayment of principal and reschedule loans based on borrowers’ request, without affecting
the credit status of such borrowers. Moreover, maximum period of borrowing by mutual funds for
redemption purposes was extended from 90 days to 365 days. While these relaxations were aimed
at providing immediate relief for pandemic-related challenges, we maintained our thrust for
simplifying existing regulations. In this regard, it is noteworthy to mention a few of the regulatory
reform measures.

The simplification of REIT regulations provided stimulus for activation of this segment, triggering a
number of REIT management license requests and REITs schemes applications. The revamped REIT
regulations have shifted the regulatory structure from approval-based to disclosure-based issuance,
reducing entry barriers, and making REITs competitive with the unregulated real estate projects. This
revised framework also allows for infrastructure finance through public private partnership-based
infrastructure projects under the REIT umbrella. Similarly, allowing commercial banks to act as
consultant to the issue for debt securities, through revisions in market making framework, resulted
in 11 commercial banks to sign up with PSX. To check mis-selling, improve value to policy holders
and improve market conduct, Corporate Insurance Agents Regulations, 2020 have been introduced,
which provide comprehensive regulatory framework for business undertaken through corporate
insurance agents (including banks) and technology-based distribution channels. To encourage new
individual investors in the capital market and mutual funds, necessary revisions have been made in
the regulatory framework to enable digital onboarding of investors. Private companies were
permitted to raise capital by receiving immovable property, intangible assets and services, instead of
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only cash and were allowed to offer employee stock
option plans to employees. Also, companies were
allowed greater ease and simplification for issuing
and substituting multiple classes of capital with
minimal regulatory interference. These measures
have increased the ability of nascent startups to
attract funding and human resource. Finally, the
approval of proposed amendments in Companies
Act, 2017 will also help smaller companies by
reducing their regulatory burden.

In line with its focus on promoting operational ease,
SECP also initiated a dual-objective transformation
journey for its corporate registration function. On
one hand, focus was placed on digitalizing repetitive
tasks, such as certificate of incorporations, certified
true copy issuances, acknowledgment of filing, data
sharing with banks, etc. On the other hand, to
provide value-added assistance and positive user
experience to the corporate sector, business center
was launched with the ability to provide support for
name reservation and company incorporation on
pan-Pakistan basis through a dedicated team. While
this initiative is still a work in progress, with room for
improvement, it has already contributed towards
new incorporations that have grown by 51% during
the financial year (highest in 5 years). Moreover, 99%
of new companies were incorporated using online
process thereby, greatly reducing average
turnaround time for incorporation.

Another key area in which the Commission made
progress was related to improving the financial
inclusion space. The amendments proposed to
further improve the functioning of the Secured
Transaction Registry (STR), the amendments in the
Financial Institutions (Secured Transactions) Act,
2016, were approved by the legislature. The
amendments, will enhance the scope of STR to
future assets and products, allow absolute priority to
secured creditors over all other claims and super
priority to acquisition security interest. Likewise, the
SECP's proposed amendments to the Corporate
Restructuring Companies (CRC) Act, have also been
approved. These will go a long way to resolving
insolvency. Further, the first ever CRC, Pakistan
Corporate Restructuring Company Limited has been
established during the current year. Furthermore,
book building process for debt securities was
introduced to promote transparency in price
discovery and issuance of publicly listed debt
securities. Direct listing of local companies on the
stock exchange and formation of Special Purpose
Acquisition Companies (SPACs) were also allowed.

| am of the firm view that the dream of broad-based
financial inclusion cannot be achieved without the
presence of a wholesome and well-coordinated
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dialogue with
stakeholders is
imperative. | firmly
believe that a
regulatory regime
that is too harsh or
too inflexible
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digital education / awareness, distribution and servicing infrastructure. This requires our regulated
sectors, market intermediaries and most of all, SECP itself, to closely work together to build a
futuristic digital ecosystem that takes advantage of our youth bulge, large urban centers, high
tele-density and our digital national database. During the year under review, we have largely
covered the regulatory gaps that existed and have set in motion a series of initiatives that will lead
to much greater financial inclusion in all our Iregulated sectors over the next 2-3 years. A case in
point is Emlaak Financials, the first digital distribution platform for mutual funds, launched, during
the year.

In this regard, SECP regulated sectors also benefited from the support extended by the State Bank
of Pakistan, as it allowed and facilitated account opening in stock market and mutual funds by
non-resident Pakistanis (NRPs), through Roshan Digital Account (RDA) initiative. Learning from the
above success, work is already underway to replicate the Roshan digital model to facilitate digital
account opening and on-boarding in the capital markets for domestic bank account holders. The
regulatory framework in this regard has been approved by SECP.

While talking about alternate approaches and financial inclusion, supporting a culture of innovation
and meaningful candid dialogue with stakeholders is imperative. | firmly believe that a regulatory
regime that is too harsh or too inflexible, provides ideal breeding ground for undesirable schemes.
It is with this mindset that SECP launched its regulatory sandbox, and | am extremely pleased with
the outcome of this initiative, introduced last year to encourage innovative ideas and solutions in the
field of capital market, NBFCs and insurance. Under the first cohort of sandbox, new ideas in the
shape of Peer-to-Peer (P2P) Lending Platform and technology-based crowd-funding platform were
approved for live testing. Positive response from the market led to the second round of the sandbox;
out of 37 applications, 7 have been approved in the areas of parametric insurance, real-estate asset
tokenization, digital distribution of mutual funds and Al based digital identity/AML/KYC applications.

Another critical piece of SECP's overall strategy is market development, where focus remained on
fostering competition, increasing the supply of products & services, and expanding the investor base
by bridging regulatory gaps. The Commission undertook major reform measures to stimulate
growth, that resulted in historical outcomes in the areas of new IPOs, REITs, ETFs, and specialized
NBFls. During the year under review, SECP also granted approval for 90 days Deliverable Futures
Contract (DFC). As a result, market participants will have the option to take positions in DFC contracts
with 30, 60 and 90-days maturity periods. In the brokerage space, introduction of trading only
brokers, with minimal capital and regulatory burden, should lead to robust competition. In the
commodity space, | share this with great joy that after registration of the first Collateral
Management Company in August 2020, electronic warehouse receipt-based contracts have been
granted approval for trading at Pakistan Mercantile Exchange.

The year under review witnessed record trading volumes for the last 10 years, while active investors
at PSX increased by 8.8%, and market capitalization expanded by 26%.

Finally, | would also like to touch upon some of the progress that we have made to strengthen our
internal working and prepare SECP for the demands and challenges of future. SECP is continuously
working towards improving its information services and technologies, and integrate them with other
government agencies to enable seamless and efficient information sharing. In this regard,
integration with provincial departments during the year has allowed companies to simultaneously
register with provincial social security and taxation departments at the time of incorporation with
SECP. Moreover, given the importance of data protection, SECP has taken a number of measures to
ensure information and data security across all its functions, including adoption of ISO 27001:2013,
and implementation of a comprehensive security solution for data loss prevention.

Similarly, in line with the Government's Digital Pakistan Policy, SECP has completed the business
process reengineering program, while several internal processes have been automated.

With regard to human capital, the SECP remains focused on induction of high-quality resources at
the entry level and upskilling the existing workforce while strengthening the technology, litigation
and industry specific accounting knowledge base.
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| would also like to outline some of our key initiatives for the coming year. The foremost focus will
remain on continuous improvement in our enforcement regime by upskilling the workforce, using
technology and strengthening the litigation function. The journey of functional based structure will
continue, with focus on centralizing the licensing function. The great work over the last two years
under the LEAP program for end-to-end digitalization has set the stage for initiation of replacement
of the existing corporate registry platform and digitalizing the internal workflow of the Commission
during the next year. Finally, the ongoing focus on improving user experience and creating a
transparent and accountable regime will continue.

| would like to thank the entire SECP team for their zeal and commitment in achieving the
Commission’s objectives, which must be recognized. | would also like to acknowledge the efforts of
my fellow Commissioners, including retiring Commissioners, Mr. Shaukat Hussain and Mr. Shauzab
Ali in delivering consistent and exceptional performance.

| would especially like to mention the valuable and timely guidance provided by the worthy members
of the Policy Board. My special gratitude is reserved for the Federal Government and the Finance
Division, whose support for SECP's initiatives and the progress of the capital markets, was a constant
source of strength for the Commission.

May Allah guide us to serve the people of Pakistan in line with our 3Vs approach - vibrance, velocity
and virtuousness. Ameen!

i

Aamir Khan
Chairman
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Key Achievements
(FY 2020-21)

* August 2020 - Regulatory requirements for opening of NRP Rupee Value Account approved to
facilitate Non-resident Pakistani individuals to invest in PSX;

« August 2020 - First Collateral Management Company registered;
* August 2020 - Registered the Postal life Insurance Company under the Insurance Ordinance;

+ September 2020 - Regulatory framework for Professional Clearing Member notified to stipulate
licensing, conduct and operational requirements of PCM;

+ September 2020 - Amendments to Collateral Management Company Regulations, 2019, introduced
to improve governance structure of CMCs;

+ September 2020 - Market Making framework for corporate debt and government debt securities
revamped;

* October 2020 -Pakistan’s first Shariah compliant ETFs along with three other ETFs, marked the
launch of ETFs on the PSX.

« November 2020 - Governance reforms introduced in PSX

« December 2020 - Regulatory framework for digitalization of account opening process in stock
market introduced;

+ December 2020 - Facilitation to Non-resident Pakistanis and Foreign individual customers provided
for attestation of documents by Counsel General or Notary Public;

+ December 2020 - For swift incorporation, a Business Centre established in Islamabad, resulting in
51% growth in new incorporations during FY-2020-21;

+ December 2020 - To promote innovation, SECP's first cohort of regulatory sandbox allowed six
applicants, including a crowd funding and P2P lending platform to test their business models;

+ December 2020 - Detailed mechanism launched to enable digital account opening by AMCs;

« December 2020 - Notified the Corporate Insurance Agents Regulations, 2020, to improve market
conduct and protect policyholders’ interests;

* January 2021 - Securities and Futures Advisors (Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2017
amended; individuals allowed to be Securities/ Futures Advisors;

* January 2021 - Electronic Certificate of Incorporation launched;

+ January 2021 - To improve security of electronic filings, eServices integrated with Pakistan Mobile
Number Portability (MNP) Database (Guarantee) Limited;

* January 2021 - First mutual fund digital distribution platform, “Emlaak Financials”, launched;

* January 2021 - Updated Guidelines on Anti-Money Laundering, Counter Financing of Terrorism and
Proliferation Financing;

* February 2021 - Launch of a portal that enabled banks to digitally extract documents (from SECP
registry), required for opening of corporate bank accounts;

* February 2021 - Collaborated with SBP for amendments in the Foreign Exchange Manual enabling
investment in units of private funds by foreigners;

* March 2021 - Notified the Reinsurance Brokers Regulations, 2021 for regulating the business of
reinsurance brokers;

* March 2021 - Amendments to Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 notified to
enable private companies to raise capital by receiving immovable property, intangible assets and
services from potential investors;
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* March 2021 - Centralization of Name Availability Processes; leading to 45,162 name availability
applications being disposed of during the year;

* March 2021 - EWR regime operationalized after issuance of first Electronic Warehouse Receipt;

* March 2021 - Circular issued for, encouraging NBFCs to formulate and implement gender diversity
policies for recruiting and retaining talented women;

+ April 2021- Regulations for Next day netting introduced;

+ April 2021 - ‘One-Stop-Shop’ through SECP's “eServices”, expanded to cover PESSI/SESSI, 'Excise &
Taxation' and 'Labor' Departments of Punjab and Sindh;

* April 2021 - Private companies and start-ups allowed to offer ownership rights to employees, as
non-monetary compensation for their intellectual services;

« April 2021 - Guidance paper for issuance of Convertible Debt Securities published;
+ May 2021 - Guidelines for the issuance of Gender Bonds published;
+ May 2021 - Direct Listing introduced;

* May 2021 - FATF APG assessors rated Pakistan largely compliant to all SECP relevant 54
recommended action items of MER 2019;

+ May 2021 - Regulatory framework for launch of 90 days Deliverable Futures Contracts approved;

*  May 2021 - Electronic platform for Initial Public Offering System, allowing all categories of investors
launched;

* June 2021 - Guidelines for issuance of Green Bonds published;
* June 2021 - Introduced Regulatory framework for Debt and Hybrid ETF;
* June 2021 - Licensed 3 housing finance companies;

+ June 2021 - Major revamping of the REIT Regulations leading to approval of first shariah compliant
Developmental REIT Scheme;

* FY2020-21 - SECP registered 25, 533 new companies, indicating a growth of 51% compared with the
corresponding financial year;

* FY-2020-21 - Pakistani market witnessed 10 IPOs i.e. eight (08) equity and two (debt) issues. All these
IPOs were oversubscribed;

* FY-2020-21 - Wind up orders for 22 companies issued, Rs5 billion penalties imposed and their
sponsors debarred from becoming directors of any other company and incorporating any new
company.
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Securities & Exchange Policy Board

S. Masoud A. Naqvi
Chairman, Policy Board

Ex-Offico Members

Khalid Mirza
Member

Yusuf Khan
Secretary,
Finance Division

Muhammad Sualeh

Ahmad Faruqui Syed Asad Ali Shah

Secretary, Member
Commerce Division

Raja Naeem Akbar Adnan Afridi
Secretary, Law & Member

Justice Division

Aamir Khan Veqar ul Islam
Chairman, SECP Member
Jameel Ahmed Sadeq Sayeed
Deputy Governor Member

SBP

As on 30 June, 2021

Private Sector Members



Securities & Exchange Policy Board

The SECP Act 1997, while ensuring autonomy of the Commission, provides for the establishment of
a Securities and Exchange Policy Board, consisting of eleven members appointed by the federal
government, of which five shall be from the public sector and six from the private sector. The
ex-officio members are federal secretaries for finance, law, commerce, Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Chairman, and a deputy governor of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP),
nominated by the Governor SBP.

The main objective of the Policy Board is to provide guidance to the Commission in all matters
relating to its functions and to formulate policies in consultation with the Commission. It is also
responsible for advising the Government on matters falling within the purview of the Act and other
corporate laws; and to express its opinion on policy matters referred to it by the Government or the
Commission.

Board Proceedings

During the year, the Board approved numerous policy decisions concerning measures for
improving ease of doing business, promoting the overall growth of the capital market, and assenting
to centralization of SECP's Supervision Function.

Attendance of PB Members
During the year, eight meetings of the board were held, details are as under:

Numberof Numberof

*S. Masoud A. Naqvi, Chairman SEC Board

2 Chairman, SECP 8 8
3 Secretary, Finance Division 8 5
4 Secretary, Law and Justice Division 8 4
5 Secretary, Commerce Division 8 6
6 Deputy Governor, State Bank of Pakistan 8 7
7 Khalid Mirza 8 8
8 Adnan Afridi 8 6
9 Vegar ul Islam 8 8
10 Syed Asad Ali Shah 8 8
11 Sadeq Sayeed 8 3

* S. Masoud A. Naqvi, Chairman of the Board resigned from his position, on medical grounds, on
June 11, 2021.



The Commission

Aamir Khan, Chairman

Commissioner, International Relations Department, Legal
Affairs Division, Support Services Division, Company Law
Division, Securities Market Division, Adjudication Division,
Information Systems and Technology Deaprtment

Aamir Khan has over 30 years of experience in banking and capital
markets, covering corporate, investment, SME and institutional
banking in Pakistan and Canada. He has served in senior positions
at Standard Chartered Bank (SCB), Royal Bank of Canada (RBC),
and American Express Bank Ltd. He is well versed in corporate
lending, treasury and credit risk management, and has extensively
worked on structured financial products, international trade and
cross-border transactions.

Prior to being appointed as a Commissioner, he served as an
Executive Director at the SECP, where he headed several
departments. He also played a key role in a number of initiatives at
the SECP, focusing on expanding financial inclusion, supporting
ease of doing business and regulatory reforms. A former
Chevening Scholar, he has an MBA degree, as well as an M.Sc. in
international banking. He is also an associate of the Institute of
Bankers in Pakistan.

Farrukh H. Sabzwari

Commissioner, Islamic Finance Department, Appellate Bench
Registry, Specialized Companies Division, Information Security
Department

Farrukh H. Sabzwari has over 25 years of professional experience
in the capital markets in Pakistan and abroad. Before joining the
SECP as a Commissioner in December 2018, he was the CEO of
BMA Capital Management, one of Pakistan’s largest firms dealing
in financial services. His previous senior managementroles include
a 7-year stint with Credit Suisse Securities in Singapore, as Director
APAC Equities Sales, from 2010 to 2017. Prior to that, he was CEO
at KASB Securities - Merrill Lynch JV partner in Pakistan, from 2005
to 2009. He has also spent more than 8 years at CLSA - a Citic
Securities owned boutique investment firm, as Country Manager
and Head of Sales for Pakistan from 1995 to 2001, and
subsequently as VP subcontinent sales in New York in 2001-2003.

Farrukh Sabzwari has an MBA in finance from the IBA in Karachi
and he completed his Singapore Broker License certification and
Indonesian Capital Market Exams in 2010 and his Series 7 and 63
in New York in 2001.



Sadia Khan

Commissioner, Supervision Division, Anti-Money Laundering
Department, Insurance Division, Internal Audit and Compliance
Department

Sadia Khan has pursued a versatile career path traversing
investment banking, financial regulation, family businesses and
entrepreneurship across three continents. She started her career at
Lehman Brothers in New York in 1991 and worked with various
international institutions and local regulatory authorities, including
the ADB in the Philippines, the SECP and the SBP. Prior to her
appointment as Commissioner SECP, she had been serving as the
President and CEO of the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance. She has also served on various boards as an
independent director.

She has Master's degrees in Economics from both Cambridge
University and Yale University, and MBA from INSEAD in France. For
the past two decades, Sadia has remained a passionate advocate of
corporate governance. Her book titled “The Corporate Governance
Landscape of Pakistan”, was published by Oxford University Press in
2017. In 2014, the French Government conferred on her, the
prestigious French award, “Chevalier de 1'Ordre National du Mérite”
(Knight of the National Order of Merit).

Shaukat Hussain*
Commissioner

Mr. Shaukat Hussain is a commerce graduate and a fellow member
of the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan
(ICMAP). He has professional experience of over three decades.
Before assuming charge as a Commissioner on March 27, 2018, he
was Executive Director/Registrar of Companies and Head of
Department (HOD) of Corporatization and Compliance Department
at the SECP. He joined the SECP as a Joint Registrar in September
2000. He has headed the SECP’s offices in Karachi, Islamabad and
Peshawar. He has also worked as Director, Securities Market
Division. Prior to joining the SECP, he had worked with a professional
accountancy firm, a development financial institution and listed
companies of both public and private sectors. He completed his term
as Commissioner on 26th March, 2021.

*Mr. Shaukat Hussain completed his term as Commissioner on
March 26, 2021.

Shauzab Ali**
Commissioner

Mr. Shauzab Ali is a chartered accountant with more than two
decades professional experience with focus on public policy and
finance, development finance, capital markets, corporate and
investment  banking, portfolio management and financial
management. Before his appointment in the SECP as Commissioner
in March 2018, he was associated with the Asian Development Bank
where he was responsible for all public and financial sector activities
of the Bank in Pakistan. He has also worked at Standard Chartered
and Allied Bank at senior positions in corporate and investment
banking and financial control functions. After qualifying as a
chartered accountant, he worked with the NBFC sector for more than
5 years in senior positions, including CFO of an investment bank and
the Lahore Stock Exchange. Mr. Shauzab Ali completed his term as
Commissioner on 15th April, 2021.

**Mr. Shauzab Ali completed his term as Commissioner on April 15,
2021.
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Commission’s Secretariat

Commission’s Secretariat performs the duties and responsibilities as entrusted to it under the SECP
(Conduct of Business) Regulations, 2000, and the Securities and Exchange Policy Board (Conduct of
Business) Regulations, 2000, under the supervision of the Secretary to the Commission. The details
of number of Commission’s meetings attended by Commissioners during financial year 2020-21 are
as under:

N fC Number of Number of
ame of Commissioner meetings held meetings attended

Aamir Khan, Chairman

2 Shaukat Hussain, Commissioner 49 46
3 Farrukh H. Sabzwari, Commissioner 68 68
4 Shauzab Ali, Commissioner 53 51
5 Sadia Khan, Commissioner 68 61

Conduct of Business

During the year, the secretariat convened 64 regular and four emergent meetings of the
Commission, wherein 709 working papers of departments/divisions and 97 other business items
were considered and decided appropriately. Besides, the Commission also passed 38 resolutions by
circulation for decision on urgent matters. The Commission's Secretariat on behalf of the
Commission, issued 118 statutory regulatory orders/notifications and facilitated issuance of 34
circulars.

Appellate Bench Registry

The Appellate Bench of the SECP is a quasi-judicial forum which is legally mandated to hear appeals
against the orders passed, either by a Commissioner or any other officer authorized by the SECP.
The Appellate Bench comprises of two Commissioners. The Appellate Bench Registry of the
Commission is headed by the Registrar Appellate Bench.

In order to dispose of pending appeals, the Appellate Bench Registry schedules hearings of appeals
on a fortnightly basis, subject to the availability of Commissioners. The Appellate Bench, besides
conducting hearings at the Head office in Islamabad, also conducts hearings through video
conferencing from the Commission’s CRO offices in Lahore and Karachi, in order to facilitate
regulated entities Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Appellate Bench Registry is also
facilitating litigants to attend hearings through video conferencing.

Between July 2020 and May 2021, the Appellate Bench disposed of 72 appeals and conducted 131
hearings. The early hearing of appeals has been a demand of the regulated entities and it is
expected that by the end of the financial year 2021-22, subject to availability of relevant Bench, the
Appellate Bench shall dispose of the majority of the backlog of pending appeals.

In collaboration with IS&T Department, the Appellate Bench Registry has put in place a database,
which provides information on the status of pending and disposed appeals, and all orders passed
by the Appellate Bench are uploaded on SECP's website.

Internal Audit and Compliance Department (IACD)

A comprehensive risk-based Annual Audit Plan for the FY 2020-21, was approved as per Internal
Audit Charter. During the year, IACD conducted five (05) financial, eight (08) compliance &
operational audits and a special audit assignment. Detailed reports concerning audit findings,
management comments and |ACD's recommendations, were issued to relevant
departments/divisions and presented before the Commission on quarterly basis.



Senior Management

M. Asif Jalal Bhatti
Executive Director/HOD
Adjudication II,
Adjudication Division

.

)i/

Bushra Aslam

Executive Director
Supervision Division

Abid Hussain

Executive Director/HOD
Finance Department/
Administration Department

Muzzafar Ahmed Mirza

Musarat Jabeen Bilal Rasul
Executive Director/ Executive Director/Secretary
Chief Spokesperson/HOD to the Commission
Chairman's Secretariat, Commission's Secretariat/
International Relations Registrar Appellate Bench/
Islamic Finance Department

Department

Ay

Ali Azeem Ikram

Executive Director/HOD
Onsite Department,
Supervision Division

Imran Inayat Butt
Executive Director/HOD Executive Director/HOD
Advisory Department/ Osite Department II/
Legislative Review & Supervision Division
Research Department
2 e T I; -
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Khalida Habib Mubasher S. Saddozai
Executive Director/HOD
Policy Regulation &
Development Department-

Specialized Companies
Division

Waseem Khan

Asif Iqbal
Director/HOD Director/HOD
Market Development/
Policy & Regulation
Department (Insurance)

Policy, Regulation &

Development Department -

Executive Director/
Registrar of Companies/ HOD
Corporatization &
Compliance Department-
CROs/Information
Systems & Technology
Department/Information
Security Department

Najia Ubaid
Additional Director/HOD
Primary Market Approvals &
Development Department - SMD
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Corporatisation

Corporatisation is the process of converting new and existing non-corporate entities into registered
and well-structured business form, with the objective of creating entities with sufficient
administrative and financial transparency. The SECP, through its Company Registration Offices
(CROs) in 09 major cities across Pakistan, plays an instrumental role in the continuous growth of the
corporate sector in Pakistan.

During the year, 25,533 new companies were registered. As compared to the corresponding period
of last financial year, a growth of 51 percent has been witnessed. This has raised the total number
of registered companies to 145,913. The trend witnessed in formation of companies was that
approximately 68 percent companies were registered as private limited companies, 29 percent were
registered as single-member companies, and 3 percent were registered as public unlisted,
association’s not-for-profit, trade organizations, foreign companies and limited liability partnership.
Further, 99 percent companies were registered online and around 33 percent of the companies
were registered in same day.

Annual Incorporations (FY17 - FY21)
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In the financial year 2020-21, the construction & real estate sector took the lead with the
incorporation of 4,394, trading with 4,062, IT with 2,835, services with 2,264, corporate agricultural
farming with 80, food and beverages with 1,070, ecommerce with 949, education with 664, textile
with 333, pharmaceutical with 566, tourism with 498 each, fuel and energy with 165, engineering
with 585, marketing and advertisement with 565, transport with 254, healthcare with 196, mining &
quarrying with 294, chemical with 327, cosmetics & toiletries with 239, auto & allied with 318,
communication with 176, broadcasting & telecasting with 149, cables & electric goods with 244,
power generation with 221, steel & allied with 151, paper & board with 99, and 3,835 companies
were registered in other sectors.

Foreign investment was reported in 529 new companies. These companies have foreign investors
from Afghanistan, Australia, Austria, Bahrain, Bermuda, Canada, Cayman Islands, China, Czech
Republic, Denmark, Egypt, France, Germany, Hong Kong, Iran, Iraq, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Jordan,
Kenya, Korea (South), Kuwait, Lebanon, Malaysia, Mauritius, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Nigeria,
Norway, Oman, Palestine, Philippines, Poland, Qatar, Russia, Saudi Arabia, Serbia, Seychelles,
Singapore South Africa, Spain, Sri Lanka, Sweden, Syria, Taiwan, Tajikistan, Thailand, Turkey, the
UAE, the UK, the US, Uzbekistan and Yemen.

Moreover, 21 foreign companies from China, Germany, Hong Kong, Italy, Japan, Korea (South),
Malta, Saudi Arabia, Spain, Turkey, UAE the UK and the US have established places of business in
Pakistan during the last fiscal year.
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Licensing Under Section 42 of the Companies Act

During the financial year 2020-21, SECP incorporated 63 not-for-profit associations under section 42
of the Companies Act, 2017, with objects of arts, sports, social services and charity etc. Besides,
licenses of 29 not-for-profit associations have been renewed, while licenses of 3 not for-profit
associations were revoked due to non-compliance. As of June 30, 2021, the number of companies
licensed under section 42 of Companies Act totalled 1,184.

Schemes of Arrangements

The contemporary global market, with its inherent interconnectedness, evidences increasing Merger
and Acquisition activity, given its apparent widespread benefits and gains for stakeholders -
specifically for shareholders of both the acquiring and target companies. Numerous mergers are
driven by the expected elimination of avoidable operational costs subsequent to consolidation of
activities, while others tend to target future growth prospects through enhanced market share and
global expansionary measures.

Presently, schemes of arrangement of small-sized companies and public sector companies, directly
or indirectly wholly owned by Federal Government, are approved by the SECP. The aggregate
number of schemes of arrangement, amalgamation or reconstruction dealt with during the
preceding three years are as follows:

Scheme of Arrangement/ Reconstructions/
Amalgamation

Regulatory Approvals

The Company Law Division processes applications filed by companies under various provisions of
the law, for granting regulatory approvals under the applicable legal regulatory framework in
addition to addressing appeals and restoring names of companies to the register of companies.

In addition, the Company Law Division processes approvals, permissions, inspection of record,
issuance of copies and registration of charges under the provisions of the Companies Act 2017.
Some key statistics elucidating activities undertaken by the CROs are presented below:

Information Registration (Form 10),
provided to different | Inspection Issue of . modification (Form 16),
Company . . Miscellaneous " .

. . Govt Agencies e.g. of records certified . satisfaction (Form 17) and
Registration . . Minor ) .
Office NAB, FIA, FBR & maintained copies of activities Condonation of delay in

other Govt with CROs | documents submission of particulars of
Departments charge (Orders u.s. 108)

Karachi 823 6551 10057 381 4316
Islamabad 306 788 4768 2559 157
Multan 355 668 2075 1010 230
Faisalabad 65 615 15703 230 870
Lahore 151 5074 13556 400 1062
Quetta 115 2 1006 0 56

Peshawar 60 324 3174 117 412
Sukkur 22 2 886 1 11

Gilgit 0 0 650 0 2
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Relief During Covid-19

During the year, owing to Covid - 19, key interventions were undertaken to minimize disruption and
continuity of function by adopting tech-enabled operations. Commission recommended listed
companies to facilitate attendance of their members in general meetings using electronic means as
a regular feature providing opportunity for shareholders to participate in general meetings.
Moreover, specific disclosure of impact of COVID-19 pandemic in the financial statements has been
mandated aiding in informed decision making by stakeholders. The adjudication function also
transited by serving notices and orders through email, use of video conferencing facility for

conducting hearings, extending timeline for adjudication process, allowing remote access to work.

Ease of Doing Business

Recognizing the emergent need to adapt in the ever-growing corporate world and to expand the
arenas available especially for start-ups to explore, the SECP has introduced following conducive
reforms in the financial year 2020-21.

End-to-End Digitization of Company Registration

Embarking upon its journey towards digitization in the era of technological advancements, SECP has
launched the facility for issuance of Electronic Certificate of incorporation w.e.f. January 01, 2021,
and moving forward with this initiative, SECP has also launched digital combined certificate of
registration with other provincial departments w.e.f. April 30, 2021, replacing the longstanding
practice of issuance of physical certificates by SECP as well as by other federal & provincial
departments.

SECP aims to reduce physical interaction and provide services through use of modern technology at
the door-step of the end-users. Currently, there are a few jurisdictions globally where federal and
provincial registrations are integrated online on a real-time basis. In the upcoming World Bank’s
Ease of Doing Business Report, this initiative is expected to significantly contribute towards
Pakistan’s ranking in “Starting a Business” indicator, where it currently stands at 72 out of 190
economies.

To further improve the security of electronic filings, SECP has integrated its eService with Pakistan
Mobile Number Portability Database (Guarantee) Limited to verify mobile phone numbers of
applicants against their CNICs. This verification of phone numbers of directors and sponsors of a
company will greatly reduce the probability of misuse of CNICs or phone number of an individual.
The whole verification process is fully electronic and instant.

Launch of Portal for Opening of Corporate Bank Accounts

Recognizing the international best practices, SECP has launched a portal in mid-February 2021 for
expeditious opening of bank account of newly registered companies, whereby real-time access has
been provided to banks to the certain records of companies, resulting in reduced turn-around-time
for opening of corporate bank accounts and for availing other banking services. The facility will also
help banks in carrying out due diligence of their corporate customers. Interested banks can apply to
SECP to secure dashboard access in the portal.

Establishment of Business Centre

In December 2020, the SECP established a modern Business Centre in Islamabad, for swift
incorporation of companies and facilitation to the general public. The Business Centre has a skilled
team and is equipped with state-of-the-art technology, aimed to improve overall customer
experience. The establishment of the Business Centre is aimed to bring SECP a step closer to
standardizing the process of business registration in Pakistan, which will ensure uniformity of
practices, improve turnaround time and prompt resolution of problems. During the financial year,
the Business Centre has successfully dealt 45,162 name availability applications as per section 10 of
the Companies Act, 2017.

Centralization of Processes

The process of Company Name Reservation earlier performed at nine Company Registration Offices
has been completely centralized in the Business Centre w.e.f. March 01, 2021. Till date, an aggregate
number of approximately 18,000 applications have been diligently & efficaciously processed at this
centre. Furthermore, the process for incorporation of companies has been centralized w.e.f. May
26, 2021 (except for CRO Karachi & Lahore), and till date, a total of approximately 4,900 companies



18

Annual Report 2021

have been incorporated at the Business Centre. The prime objective of centralization of processes
is to ensure efficient and uniform service delivery.

Integration with FBR, EOBI and Business Registration Portals of Punjab and Sindh

SECP's online portal “eServices”, has now become a ‘One-Stop-Shop’ for company registration
through its integration with 5 other Government agencies i.e. FBR, Employees Old Age Benefits
Institution (EOBI), Punjab Employees Social Security Institution (PESSI)/Sindh Employees Social
Security Institute (SESSI), Excise & Taxation Department, and Labor Department of Punjab/Sindh.
The applicant companies can opt for registration with any of the aforesaid departments by
providing requisite information at the time of submission of their application for incorporation.

Permission to Private Companies and Start-ups to Raise Capital Against Property

With a view to facilitate small companies and startups, which constitute a significant portion of
business community (approximately 81% of the total registered companies), in raising funds for
their business operations, the SECP has clarified through a Circular in March 2021 that private
companies can raise capital by receiving immovable property, intangible assets and services from
potential investors.

Moreover, private companies were traditionally barred from attracting investment from other than
existing shareholders; in order to improve business climate for small businesses, SECP has also
explicitly allowed private companies to raise funds from investors other than their existing
shareholders.

The objective is to expand access-to-finance net and the overall outreach for start-ups by enabling
them to attract investment from a wider group of investors and in the form of assets, instead of only
in cash. This will also substantially benefit the association of persons or partnerships forming a
company to transfer their assets to a company and raise equity.

Permission to Private Companies and Start-ups to Offer Employees Stock Options Plan

In April 2021, SECP extended the option earlier only available to public companies, by enabling
private companies and start-ups to offer ownership rights to their employees, as a non-monetary
compensation for their intellectual services. The trend of offering shares to employees is globally
more prevalent in start-ups, which might not be able to afford hefty compensation packages for
their employees.

Facilitation of Foreign Investors

SECP has also set up a designated help desk at its Business Centre, to provide exclusive facilitation
to Chinese investors and start-ups planning to invest in Pakistan. The Chinese Help Desk, staffed
with a team proficient in Mandarin, aims to provide requisite support to Chinese investors for
registration of their businesses in Pakistan.

In addition, the Company Incorporation Guide in various foreign languages, including Chinese,
Turkish, Arabic, Urdu and Spanish, has been made available on the website. The guide describes the
step-wise procedure required for name reservation and registration of a company covering
overview of applicable legal framework and applicable fees.

Regulatory Reforms

Companies (Amendment) Bill, 2021

The Companies (Amendment) Bill, 2021 was primarily proposed to promote start-ups, business
innovation & entrepreneurship, improve general business climate and promote ease of doing
business. Instrumental amendments ranging from definition of start-ups, provision of exit
mechanism through buy-back of shares by any company, exemption from filing of unaudited
financial statements for private companies having insignificant paid-up capital; and abolishment of
company seal to the change in threshold from 10% to 5% required to give notice of shareholders’
resolution - aiming to protect interests of minority shareholders - as well as abolishment of
requirement to mention husband'’s name by a married woman for registration of a company (in line
with World Bank's Women, Business and Law Report), are expected to secure further upgradation in
upcoming Ease of Doing Business Report by the World Bank.
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Financial Institutions (Secured Transactions) (Amendment) Bill, 2020

On June 10, 2021, the National Assembly approved the Financial Institutions (Secured Transactions)
(Amendment) Bill, 2020, which, besides promising efficient administration of Secured Transactions
Registry through delegation of powers of Federal Government to SECP, aims to extend the scope of
the Secured Transaction Act, 2016 to future assets and products, in order to enhance access to
finance for small & medium sized entities. These amendments are expected to substantially improve
Pakistan’s ranking in the Getting Credit” indicator in the World Bank’s Ease of Doing Business Index.

Contribution to Woman, Business and the Law (WBL) Index

In March 2021, Pakistan significantly improved its score on the entrepreneurship indicator of
Woman, Business and the Law (WBL) index, from 50 to 75 points, as per the WBL Report 2021. The
rise was mainly attributed to reforms introduced by the SECP, enabling women to register a
company effectively and promptly. In the 2021 report, Pakistan improved its score on two indicators:
entrepreneurship and workplace, resulting in increase in overall score to 55.6, from 49.4 in 2020.

Amendments in the Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018

SECP has notified draft amendments in the Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Regulations,
2018 on May 25, 2021, soliciting public comments. The amendments aim to improve the quality of
information through simplification of statutory forms, and significant reduction in number of forms,
thereby greatly reducing the regulatory burden.

Amendments in the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020

In March 2021, SECP notified draft amendments in Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations,
2020 to address the impediments faced by the corporate sector, particularly startups and small
companies, in raising equity through conventional modes. In line with international best practices,
proposed changes include permission to convert one class of shares into another class, issuance of
shares with differential rights without approval of SECP, and specification of mechanism for
valuation of non-cash assets. This will reduce administrative burden and contribute towards growth
by removing a layer of regulatory approval.

Way Forward

In line with its vision of developing a modern and efficient corporate sector, SECP aims to further
build its corporatization momentum. Upcoming steps to ensure healthy growth of corporate sector
will be hinged on the following;

« A comprehensive review of the corporate landscape of Pakistan to devise policies and encourage
bringing undocumented businesses in the formal sector.

« Further improvements in the processes to facilitate enhanced self-regulation, with an acute focus
on start-ups, especially tech-start-ups.

+ Building on recent integration with the provincial departments of Punjab and Sindh, integrated
registration with Baluchistan and KPK shall be embarked upon to further improve business
climate in the country.

+ Extending the access and availability of SECP’s Portal recently launched for banks to other licensed
sectors and associations including insurance, non-banking finance companies etc. that require
certified copies of statutory documents of companies for execution of their respective objects.

+ Frequent Awareness Sessions on measures taken for ease of doing business in the country
regarding Secured Transaction Registry, and on prevention from fraudulent setups attempting to
unlawfully leverage their registration status to extend unlicensed and illegal deposit taking
schemes, Multi-layer Marketing (MLM), leasing etc.
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Capital Markets

Stock Market

In FY 2020-2021, KSE-100 Index depicted an overall increasing trend. Throughout the year, market
operations remained smooth with no disruptions observed in settlements of trades, despite
limitations posed by the ongoing pandemic, indicating resilience of capital market in Pakistan.

On June 30, 2021 there were 532 listed companies with paid-up capital of Rs1,442.64 billion. The
KSE-100 index began the year at 34,421.92 points and ended at 47,356.02 points on June 30, 2021,
i.e., an increase of 38% since the beginning of the year. Market capitalization was Rs8,297.31 billion
on June 30, 2021, which is 27% higher than market capitalization of Rs6,529.71 billion recorded on
June 30, 2020.

During the year, KSE-100 Index touched its lowest level of 34,889 on July 01, 2020 and highest level
of 48,726.08 on June 14, 2021. Average daily turnover in ready and future markets was 527.45
million shares and 141.26 million shares, respectively, which are 169% and 78% greater than the
previous year. On May 27, 2021, stock market hit all-time high volume of 2.22 billion shares traded
in a single day. Foreign investment in the stock market exhibited net outflow of $387.34 million
during FY 2020-2021, which is 36% higher than net outflows of $284.83 million observed in FY
2019-2020.

Commodity Market

During the period July 01, 2020 to June 30, 2021, various commodities futures contracts including
gold, crude oil and US equity indices, worth Rs. 2.841 trillion were traded at PMEX. Previously, for the
period of 2019-2020, various commodities futures contracts worth Rs. 2.254 trillion were traded.

Licensing of Entities
With regards to licensing of entities for carrying out regulated securities activities, following number
of entities had active licenses:

Number of entities having licenses issued under relevant regulations

As of June 30, 2021 As of June 30, 2020

Share Registrars & Ballotters 13 13
Banker to an Issue 17 14
Consultant to the Issue 25 17
Credit Rating Agencies 2 2

Debt Securities Trustees 10 10
Underwriters 34 27
Futures Brokers 66 51

Securities Brokers 203 202

Public Offerings

Primary capital markets offer immense potential for business growth and development by
providing opportunities to raise capital, both in form of equity and debt, at competitive prices. In the
Asian market, Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) have increased due to the substantial growth
opportunities. Since Pakistan is an emerging economy, huge potential exists for companies to go
public. In keeping with its role of capital market regulator, SECP is striving to implement reforms that
encourage companies to enlist on the stock market.

During FY-2020-21, Pakistani market witnessed 10 IPOs i.e. eight (08) equity and two (02) debt
issues. All these IPOs were oversubscribed, showing investor confidence in the capital market. The
surge in IPOs can be directly attributed to various reforms introduced by SECP in the recent past,
including amendments in Public Offering Regulations, 2017, Structuring of Debt Securities
Regulations, 2020 and in PSX Regulations, whereby the process of public offering has been
streamlined.
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Equity

The IPO activity have shown tremendous improvement after a long spell. Highest number of
companies have been listed compared to last 5 years, whereas funds raised is the highest during a
decade. During the FY 2020-21, eight (08) companies raised Rs20.2 billion as compared to no listings
during the FY 2019-20. Out of these eight companies, seven are newly listed companies, whereas
one already listed company namely Engro Polymer & Chemical Limited, offered its preference
shares to the general public. All the issues were oversubscribed, while Pakistan Aluminium
Beverage Cans Ltd was the largest, raising an amount of Rs4.60 billion.

Equity Public Offerings
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Redeemable Capital

During the year, two (02) issue of listed redeemable capital were offered to the public and pre-IPO
investors as compared to one issue (01) during the last year. Out of these two issues, one was Rs25
billion Sukuk Issue by K-Electric Ltd. and the other was Rs11 billion TFCs (Series-A) by Bank Alfalah
Ltd. The TFC (Series-A) issue by Bank Alfalah Ltd., has been offered under shelf registration over a
period of 3-years, out of total allowed limit of Rs50 billion. Both these issues were oversubscribed.
The detail of these issues are as follows:

Total Issue size
(Rupees in million)

Company Name General Public Pre-IPO Investors

1 Bank Alfalah Limited 2,000 9,000 11,000
2 K-Electric Limited 1,292 23,708 25,000
Total 36,000

Graphical representation of funds raised through public offerings of Equity and Debt during last 5
years depicting impact of regulatory reforms is presented below:

Funds Raised through IPOs
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Private Placements

A well-developed corporate bond market is essential for the growth of economy, as it provides an
additional avenue to government and the corporate sector, to raise funds for meeting their financial
needs. During the period under review, 22 debt securities were reported, break-up of which is given
below:

Sr.No | Type of Security No. of Issues Amount
(Rupees in billion)

1 Privately Placed Term Finance Certificates 5 11.7
2 Privately Placed Sukuk 7 23.85
3 Privately Placed Commercial Papers 10 39.9

Total 22 75.45

As of June 30, 2021, a total of 90 corporate debt securities have reported an outstanding amount of
Rs353.27 billion against privately placed redeemable capital, comprising following categories:

Name of securit Amount outstanding
y (Rupees in billion)

Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) 146.52
2 Sukuk 42 202.25
3 Commercial Papers (CPs) 1 4.5

Total 90 353.27
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Further Issue of Capital - Listed Companies
During the year, listed companies raised capital worth Rs45.03 billion through right issuance and
Rs0.31 billion through other than right.

e ana T 00 T 00

Amount Amount
No of Raised - Rs in No of Raised - Rs Noof AmountRaised
Companies billion Companies in billion Companies - Rs in billion
Right Issue
Issue of shares at Par 11 10.55 9 18.7 7 7.8
Issue of shares at Discount 0 0 0 0 1 7
Issue of shares at Premium 11 32.6 8 10.4 1 0.5
Preference Share 1 1.8 1 2.4 0 0
Total Right Issuance 23 45.03 18 31.5 9 15.3
Other than Right
Issue of shares at Par 0 0 2 3.07 4 0.63
Issue of shares at Discount 0 0
Issue of shares at Premium 3 0.31 1 0.73 1 1.77
Employees’ stock option 3 1 1
Preference Share 1 3
Total Issuance Other than Right 6 0.31 5 6.8 6 2.4

Total 29 45.34 23 38.3 15 17.7

Issuance of Securities Outside Pakistan

During the period under review, SECP granted approval under Section 95 of the Securities Act, 2015,
for issuance of €500 million Euros Bonds by Water and Power Development Authority (WAPDA) in
international markets, to meet the cost of its projects/dams.

Amendments in Fourth and Fifth Schedules to the Companies Act, 2017

SECP through its notification SRO 450(1)/2021 dated April 6, 2021 specified the amendment in fourth
schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 to make it obligatory for the listed companies to disclose the
detailed description of any stay order obtained by the company against ongoing
inspection/investigation proceeding initiated by the Commission under the Act. This amendment
would provide additional information about affairs of the company to users of the financial
statements and would improve protection of minority shareholders.

Measures Taken in Wake of COVID-19

A number of supportive measures were carried out to address challenges faced by the capital
markets participants. In this regard, directive was issued to NCCPL to relax the requirement of
performing biometric verification at the time of opening of account and to defer completion of
biometric verification process for such accounts. Subsequently, alternate process of customer
verification was introduced. Further, relaxations from regulations were also provided to allow
securities brokers to activate and operate the DR terminals for trading purposes during normal
operations of PSX. Such measures have allowed smooth functioning of capital market operations
despite COVID-19 pandemic.

Report on “Women on Boards”

SECP's corporate governance reforms appended inclusiveness and independence of board (female,
independent directors), introduced performance review of boards and enhanced disclosures. The
Commission also addressed gender diversity in the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG Regulations, 2019,
mandating all listed companies to have at least one female director on their boards. In order to ascertain
the impact of the aforesaid reforms, SECP prepared a report on “Women on Boards” which included a
study conducted by a team of SECP and PSX. The report explicated impacts of changes made in the law
pertaining to women representation on boards of public interest companies. Financial performance of
listed companies with and without women board members was compared and the results showed that,
prima facie, financial performance of companies with women on board was better. Furthermore, after
these changes in the law; increase in women representation has been witnessed, primarily across three
variables: number of women on boards, the number of independent women directors, and women
chairpersons.
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Developmental Reforms

SECP's capital market reforms are focussed to ensure provision of complete eco-system desirable
for the capital formation. While doing so, SECP continuously seeks feedback from I0SCO member
countries, in addition to independent research of the international legal standards and best
practices. Reforms carried out during the current year are listed below.

Digitization of Account Opening Process

As part of SECP's digital transformation agenda, investors have been facilitated to seamlessly open
their accounts with a broker from anywhere in the country without requiring to submit any
documents physically or visit a broker. In order to ensure maximum investor protection, an online
customer verification process has been introduced for opening of online accounts. This online
verification will be conducted independently by the Centralized KYC Organization. These measures
would improve investor participation in our capital market and grant country wide access to
investors.

Opening of Non-Resident Pakistani Rupee Value Account (NRV Account)

Pursuant to the launch of Non-Resident Pakistanis (NRPs) Rupee value (NRV) Account under Roshan
Digital Account (RDA) initiative, NRPs can invest in listed shares and open accounts with capital
market intermediaries on the basis of KYC information submitted to the banks. Requisite regulatory
amendments were made and operational system was implemented for sharing of KYC information
and opening of trading accounts. As a result, NRPs can electronically open their trading accounts
with brokers from anywhere globally without submission of any physical documents. This has
encouraged investment in our capital market.

Opening of Investor Account by Non-Resident Pakistanis or Foreigners

For opening of trading account, NRPs or foreigners were required to submit documents duly
attested by Consul General of Pakistan having jurisdiction over the applicant in terms of Centralized
Know Your Customer (KYC) Organization (CKO) Regulations, 2017 (CKO Regulations). However,
during COVID-19 pandemic, NRPs and foreigners faced practical difficulties in getting their
documents attested for opening of trading accounts.

Amendments were therefore introduced in CKO Regulations with an option of ‘Notarization’ to allow
NRPs/foreigners to get attestation by either notary public or Consul General of Pakistan. This
measure has facilitated NRPs or foreign investors to comply with regulatory framework and enabled
them to invest in Pakistani capital market. These steps would encourage NRPs and foreign investors
to invest in our capital market with ease, leading to increased FPl and enhanced investor base.

Seamless Processing of CKO

The Centralized CKO performs independent verification of information of all new customers.
Necessary amendments in respective regulatory framework were made to address the practical
difficulties faced by market participants and investors and to make the process more seamless,
which include allowing company provided mobile number for opening of account and facilitating
Asset Management Companies, group of companies and International Broker Dealers in using
single UIN in respect of multiple accounts.

Further, in order to enhance ease of access for investors, amendments have been approved in the
PSX Regulations requiring listed companies to use PSX's AGM calendar. This would enable
companies to reduce overlap in holding their AGMs thus enabling shareholders to participate in the
meetings.

Investor Protection

Requisite amendments have been carried out in regulations of PSX and Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) to enable the capital market infrastructure institutions to utilize
shares of a defaulting broker lying in its house account. Proceeds from the sale of such shares would
be available to settle the broker’s outstanding obligations including settlement of investor claims.

Enhanced Corporate Governance of SROs

Regulatory requirements applicable on the governance structures of the market infrastructure
institutions have been revamped by reducing the size of PSX Board, aligning the number of
independent directors on the Board, instituting assessment of board and senior management,

Annual Report 2021
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issuing guidelines for appointment of independent directors, rationalizing qualification and
experience requirements of the senior management etc. Necessary amendments were also made
in the PSX Regulations for delegation of operational powers of PSX Board to its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Regulatory Officer.

Development of Derivatives Market

Necessary amendments have been made in PSX Rulebook for launching 90 days deliverable futures
contracts with enhanced eligibility criteria for selection of securities for futures contracts. Such
measures aim to bring efficiency in the product, align the product with international practices and
reduce systemic risk.

Next Day Netting and Early Payment Facility

In order to facilitate market participants and to improve liquidity in the capital market, regulatory
framework for ‘Next Day Netting Facility’ and ‘Early Payment Facility’ has been approved which will
be offered by NCCPL. These products will enable NCCPL to provide liquidity to securities brokers
and their customers against their outstanding positions with adequate risk management features.

PSX’s Electronic Initial Public Offering System (PES)

SECP introduced the electronic-IPO system in coordination with CDC. Through the said system
investor(s) can submit IPO application electronically and make subscription payment through
e-banking channels.

Over the years, Centralized EIPO System (CES) received an overwhelming response from IPO
investor(s) and on average more than 50% of IPO application(s) were submitted electronically.
However, the limitation of CES was that it only allowed individual investors to submit IPO application
and pay subscription money electronically. To enable institutional corporate investors and RDA
holders to submit application electronically, SECP in coordination with PSX has launched PES,
allowing all categories of investors to seamlessly apply through the electronic platform. Through
this platform, banks and brokers can also submit electronic application on behalf of their respective
client. PSX e-IPO system was made operational during the IPO of Service Global Footwear Limited.

Guidelines - Issuance of Gender Bonds

As a step towards promotion of gender equality - with a growing recognition of women'’s role in the
economy, SECP has developed guidelines for the issuance of Gender Bonds. These guidelines are
aimed to facilitate the issuers of debt securities to diversify their sources of financing and provide
an additional financial instrument to a particular class of investors.

Guidelines - Convertible Debt Securities

To guide potential issuers and investors about different modes of financing and investment avenues, a
Guidance Paper detailing mechanics and elements for issuance of Convertible Debt Securities (CDS) has
been published. It is a hybrid instrument having both debt and equity features. Initially it is a
fixed-income security that yields interest payments and subsequently can be converted into specified
number of equity shares. The Guidance Paper mainly covers, features of CDS, its benefits to investors,
opportunities for issuers, criteria for issuance of these and steps involved.

Guidelines for Issuance of Green Bonds

In order to promote green finance, to contribute positively towards protection of environment,
combat climate change and also as part of the World Bank's commitment to support the
Government's Green Pakistan Program, guidelines for issuance of Green Bonds have been issued,
in line with international best practices.

Position Paper on Fractionalization of Physical /Tangible Assets on Electronic Platforms
To introduce and propel trust in the electronic platforms, SECP published a position paper outlining
major issues related to digital finance industry in Pakistan. The paper also highlighted that i) type of
assets involved in ‘securitization” are only future receivables, whereas ‘fractionalization’ entails all
physical assets; and, ii) in ‘fractionalization’, the value of fractions issued cannot exceed the value of
underlying asset, whereas the same is not the case for securitization i.e. value of securities issued
can exceed the value of underlying asset owing to use of credit enhancement.
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Equity Crowd Funding - Sand Box (1st Cohort)

The SECP, under the first cohort of regulatory sandbox, launched in 2020, has allowed 6 applicants,
including a crowd funding platform, to test its business model during the testing phase of 6 months.
Equity Crowd funding is a new financial product that enables start-ups/small companies to raise
funds from investors through online platform, without meeting any stringent quantitative criteria
and at a lower cost.

A company has been allowed to operate an equity crowd funding platform in a controlled
environment, for a period of up to six months (starting from February 15, 2021), in accordance with
certain conditions and limitations, being closely monitored by SECP during its testing phase. At the
end of the testing period, the entity shall submit a comprehensive report to the Commission on the
fund-raising activities carried out through the platform, which will then be reviewed while finalizing
future course of action in this context.

Capital Formation
Following amendments have been introduced to facilitate formation of capital by companies:

Introducing Direct Listings

In line with international practice, to facilitate listing of companies especially State-Owned Enterprises
(SOEs) and to promote the culture of good governance among corporate sector, SECP in collaboration
with PSX has introduced the concept of Direct Listing. Direct Listing is an alternate to traditional listing,
whereby shares of a company are listed on the stock exchange with minimal involvement of
intermediary(-ies). This approach of listing is globally adopted in many jurisdictions and is expected to
provide the companies with the option of tapping the capital market in an efficient manner.

Strengthening of Growth Enterprise Market (GEM)

To Increase investor’s outreach, accredited investors have been redefined. All institutional investors
and individual investors, having net worth of greater then Rs5 million, can now invest in securities
on GEM Board. Moreover, with the objective of bringing efficiency and creating ease in capital
formation, the SECP has now allowed banks and accounting and auditing firms to act as advisor for
listings on GEM Board at PSX.

To facilitate formation of capital, listed companies are allowed to list other classes of shares without
mandatorily making a public offer of respective class of shares. Consequential amendments have
been made in the PSX Regulations. Further, for secondary public offerings and initial public offering
of other class of shares, a listed company, if compliant with the listing requirements, can now
publish the offering document, based on audited accounts older than eight months. Consequential
amendments made in the PSX Regulations.

Listing of Other Classes of Shares

Listed companies are allowed to list their other class of shares without mandatorily making public
offers of respective class of shares. Consequential amendments have been made in the PSX
Regulations. Furthermore, listed companies making secondary public offerings and initial public
offerings of other class of shares, if compliant with the listing requirements, can now publish the
offering document, based on audited accounts older than eight months. Consequential
amendments made in the PSX Regulations.

Structuring of Debt Securities Regulations, 2020

With recent amendments in the Trust Act, where legal persons were removed as an eligible entity to
act as trustee/investor, and to streamline the issuance of secured and unsecured debt securities,
the scope of activities performed by investment agent have been enhanced. The framework now
caters for the scenario where the Government can also opt in to issue Sukuk and other debt
instruments through capital market. As a result of these changes, 22 private placements and two
public offerings were successfully completed during the year.
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Revamping of Market Making framework

To address liquidity concerns of secondary debt market and provide enabling environment for
trading of government debt securities at PSX, Market Making framework has been revamped.
Non-broker members, including commercial banks, have been allowed to place quote(s) for both
corporate debt and government debt securities at Bonds Automated Trading System (BATS) of PSX.
As of June 30, 2021, ten financial institutions have been registered with PSX as Market Maker for
placing quotes on BATS for both Corporate and Government Debt Securities. The PSX witnessed
trades in the BATS segment during the year, after almost a decade.

For increasing outreach to investors, the State Bank of Pakistan, after seeking comments of the
SECP, have revised Primary Dealer Framework, whereby capital market investors can now directly
participate/invest in Government debt instruments and Sukuks by registering with CDC and
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL). In this regard, profitability requirement has
been relaxed, where State Owned Enterprises (SoEs) intends to raise funds from the public through
issuance of Government guaranteed instruments or hold investment grade entity rating.

Moreover, for efficient spread discovery, automated book building mechanism has been
introduced. This method has effectively been run by the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in issuance
of Power Energy Sukuk - 1l, that resulted in historic below KIBOR spread discovery and the GoP
successfully increased its outreach to different categories of investors including individuals.

Regulatory Reforms

Professional Clearing Member (PCM)

The Professional Clearing Member Regulations, 2020 have been approved and notified, which
stipulate licensing, conduct and operational requirements for a company functioning as a PCM.
Such company shall provide clearing/settlement and custodial services to securities brokers and
their customers thereby increasing business efficiency, reducing compliance burden and allowing
brokers to focus on their core business areas. Under these regulations, after issuance of license to
a company by the SECP to provide services as a PCM in our capital market,the first PCM  has
commenced its business operations.

Amendments to Collateral Management Company (CMC) Regulations, 2019

Amendments were approved and accordingly notified in the CMC Regulations vide SRO No.
915(1)/2020 dated September 25, 2020 for providing ease of doing business and improving the
overall governance structure applicable to CMCs vis a vis making CMCs fully liable for any gross
negligence, applicability of code of corporate governance, creating provision for transfer of
Electronic Warehouse Receipt (EWR) in case of death and enabling a creditor to secure its interest in
any manner acceptable to it etc. Under the CMC Regulations, a CMC has also been registered which
has started the process of issuance of electronic warehouse receipts.

Amendments in Murabaha Share Financing Regulations

The SECP has introduced reforms in Murabaha Share Financing (MSF) to make it easier for the
Islamic Financial Institutions, market participants and investors. Through these amendments, a
system-based initiation and affirmation process has been introduced at the time of MSF Sale
Transaction. Further, options for collateral management have also been added to facilitate MSF
Seller i.e. IFls and market participants in executing MSF transaction to their clients and release of
shares against payment of cash or other collateral.

Amendments in Securities and Futures Advisers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2017
To propel the initiatives of the Commission for broadening investor base, enhancing investor
outreach and building investor awareness, amendments were introduced to allow the individuals to
act as Securities & Futures Advisors and to act as distributor of units of mutual funds of multiple
AMCs. The amendments have been proposed to make advisory regulatory regime more practicable
and conducive by reducing the minimum experience requirement of a securities advisor or future
advisor from five years to three years. Further, with an objective to promote good governance
practices, ensuring investor protection and having skilled investment, only individuals meeting fit
and proper criteria have been allowed to act as Securities & Futures advisor. Further, individuals
who are graduates and have three years’ relevant experience have been allowed to perform
distribution of mutual funds for units of multiple AMCs. Further, by allowing individuals it will
encourage participation of youth in the mutual funds industry.
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Outcome of SECP's Initiatives

Capital market reform measures have improved investor participation by allowing ease of entry into
the market. In this regard, not only domestic but foreign investors and NRPs have also shown more
interest in investing in our capital market. Owing to facility of online account opening process for
NRPs, approximately Rs2.589 billion funds have been received for investment in securities as of June
30, 2021. Further, the online account opening facility introduced in January 2021 has resulted in
opening of more than 10,500 accounts through this facility, which forms approximately 38% of total
new UINs registered during the period.

Measures undertaken in response to the COVID-19 pandemic also resulted in seamless market
operations without any disruption. Securities brokers retained uninterrupted access to the market
while investors continued to open their accounts from across the country.

For implementation of new brokerage regime, introduction of Professional Clearing Member model
is imperative. Subsequent to provision of regulatory coverage, license has been issued to a
company to function as PCM which has set the stage for finalizing and introducing brokers
categorization, thus paving the way for enhanced investor protection.

Further, corporate governance of PSX has been enhanced which shall improve operational
efficiency and functioning of PSX in the capital market. Other corporate governance measures have
resulted in removing over-regulation and rationalizing educational qualification and experience
requirements for senior management officials of SROs. In addition, reform measures foster investor
confidence in our capital market resulting in increased investor participation. Also, investors are
facilitated to easily attend AGMs when AGMs are scheduled through PSX AGM Calendar and by
encouraging companies to provide electronic modes for shareholders to attend AGMs.

Risk Management

To perform ongoing risk analysis, SECP has a dedicated Systemic Risk Wing to monitor cross
segment systemic risk indicators, macroeconomic and political developments, structural and
regulatory matters affecting the markets. The SRW interacts internally through the systemic risk
review committee (SRRC), and coordinates SECP's efforts at the national level through the National
Financial Stability Council.

The SECP also coordinates with SBP on micro and macro level risk management and conducted
various sessions during the year to get an insight on risk protocols implemented in SBP. The
initiative is aimed at increasing inter-agency collaboration and capacity enhancement, to improve
risk functions and protocols of the SECP.

During FY 21, the markets remained relatively stable, as evident from the performance of
benchmark Index, which improved during the year. This can be mainly attributed to higher returns,
lower volatility and increased liquidity, as compared to FY20. Key Activities performed by SRW are as
under:

Risk Reporting Mechanism
Monitoring and generating reports on daily and fortnightly basis, for medium to long term analysis
of capital market vis-a-vis macroeconomic indicators.

Simulations and Scenario Analysis

During the year, a scenario analysis carried out in collaboration with NCCPL, to gauge the resilience
of the market in case of a sharp decline within short time span. It was observed that, even after
increasing the margin requirements significantly, the existing collateral levels were found to be
sufficient in meeting the additional margin requirements, which suggests that the existing
margining regime is covering market volatility efficiently.
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Stress Testing

An in-house model developed by SECP and NCCPL conducts forward looking stress and reverse
tests on daily basis, to give an insight on resilience of margins, settlement guarantee fund and other
resources of clearing house. The results indicate that there are ample risk management protocols in
place to handle any crisis in the capital market.
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Way Forward

The Securities Act, 2015 and the Futures Market Act, 2016 are being reviewed for amalgamation
and rationalization of various requirements therein for removing redundancies, impediments
and barriers to entry, and upholding technological innovation and investor protection.

The new broker regime shall be implemented for categorising brokers according to their financial
resources and governance requirements. Accordingly a Professional Clearing Member has
already been launched. Brokers meeting higher benchmarks would be permitted to retain
custody of investors' assets while brokers unable to comply with such requirements shall be
required to transfer custody of investors' assets to third party professional clearing member or
another securities broker.

Enhancing scrip-based circuit breakers from 7.5% to 10% and introducing a second tier of
index-based market halts in order to enhance efficient price discovery in the market and
curtailing extreme volatility at the market wide level. In this regard, regulatory amendments in
PSX Regulations have been approved for initiating phased expansion of circuit breakers.

Introduction of a robust and efficient New Trading and Surveillance System at PSX to offer
significantly enhanced capacity and better speed. The new trading system will be instrumental in
product innovation, development of derivative market and investor protection in Pakistan's
securities market.

Strengthening linkages between the banking industry and capital market for domestic customers,
on similar lines as seamless online account opening for NRPs through the RDA initiative. By
enabling individuals to open their trading accounts through banks, this measure would help in
increasing access of local market investors and enhance ease of doing business through
electronic means. Efforts are also being made to enhance customer onboarding through the
telecom sector.

Further improvements in IPO process, to shift approval-based requirements to disclosure based,
requiring only listing approval by the securities exchange.

Introduction/Revamp of legal framework for Asset Backed Securitization transactions, Special
Purpose Acquisition Company (SPACs), and Exempt Offerings.

Introduction and implementation of electronic platform for Book Building, whereby the bid
amount would be transferred electronically through internet, ATM and mobile phones.

Review of Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 to create ease in capital
formation.
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Non-Banking Financial Sector

Overview

The aggregate asset size of NBF sector was Rs1,790 billion as of June 30, 2021, posting a growth of
32% as compared with assets of Rs1,361 billion as of June 30, 2020. The breakup of the total assets
of the NBFC sector is given in schedule below:

Snapshot of NBFS, As of June 30, 2021

PKR 227,619

PKR 137,416

PKR 338,329 PKR 1,086,705

= CIS /Plans Others

= Non-Bank Microfinance Companies = Discretionary / Non-Discretionary Portfolios

Non-Banking Financial Sector

Fund Management NBFCs

The Assets under Management (AUMSs) of the mutual fund industry are the largest segment within
NBF Sector with assets of Rs1,086,705 million as on June 30, 2021 (2020: Rs802,151 million), showing
a growth of 35.5% on a yearly basis. Money Market funds dominated the AUMs of the mutual fund
industry with the largest share of 42%, followed by Income Funds having share of 24%.
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The other significant asset class in Fund Management NBFCs are the Investment Advisors. There are
currently 18 Asset Management Companies (AMCs) which have been licensed to offer Investment
Advisory Services with portfolio of Rs. 338 billion as on June 30, 2021,posting a growth of 18% on
yearly basis.

The total assets of 19 pension funds managed by ten Pension Fund Managers (Voluntary Pension
Systems) stood at Rs. 39,700 million as on June 30, 2021. This asset class also showed strong growth
of 27% in the year under review. Further, another AMC has been allowed to act as Pension Fund
Manager during the year.

As regards the Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), 3 new REIT Management Services licenses have
been granted during the year, thus the number of RMCs has risen to 10. Previously, there was only
one REIT Scheme i.e. Dolmen City REIT (DCR), launched by Arif Habib Dolmen REIT Management
Company Limited. As of June 30, 2021, the fund size of DCR was Rs. 54,291 million marking a growth
of 10.8 % over the previous year's figure. Following amendments to REIT Regulations, 2015 and
prioritization of the sector by the Government, the capital market and the banking regulator; the
SECP has approved registration of the first shariah compliant Developmental REIT Scheme during
the year.

Another important area in the NBF Sector is Private Fund Management. In this context, Private
Equity and Venture Capital (PE & VC) investment is poised to take off in Pakistan as the country
enters a high growth phase, increasing funding needs for new profitable ideas in small and medium
sized businesses. During the year, three new licenses to undertake PE & VC Fund Management
Services were granted. The total asset size of the Private Funds sector stood at Rs 7,036 million as of
June 30, 2021, compared to Rs. 6,779 million on June 2020, showing a moderate growth of 3.8%.

Lending NBFCs and Modarabas

Lending NBFCs are engaged in providing specialized financial services and complement the
outreach of banking industry by mobilizing finance, especially in underserved segments. The total
assets of companies licensed to undertake lending business, including investment finance
companies (investment banks), leasing companies and non-bank microfinance companies, have
increased to Rs. 211,409 million as on June 30, 2021, as compared to Rs. 197,358 million as on June
30, 2020, showing growth of 7%.

The following are the significant achievements with respect to Lending NBFCs during the year:

* 2 new licenses of investment finance services have been issued during the year;
* 1 new license has been issued for microfinance services; and
* Afteralong time, 3 new licenses of housing finance services have been issued under NBF regime.

All the Lending NBFCs have showed growth during the year except Leasing Companies wherein the
total assets have decreased from Rs. 10,639 million as on June 30, 2020 to Rs. Rs. 5,488 million
whereas number of Leasing Companies have also decreased from 7 to 5. The said decrease in
Leasing Sector assets is due to merger of Sindh Leasing with Sindh Bank Ltd. and cancellation of
license of Security Leasing Corporation Limited.

In terms of the legal framework, a number of amendments proposed in the Modaraba Rules, 1981
have been sent to Ministry of Finance and are being finalized. New Modaraba Regulations, 2021
have been notified on March 5, 2021. Proposed amendments to Modaraba Ordinance, 1980, were
introduced in the National Assembly and sent to the Standing Committee on Finance and Revenue
for concurrence. As of June 30, 2021, total number of Modaraba Companies registered with the
SECP were 30. Out of these, 24 Modaraba Companies are active and managing Modarabas. There
are 28 Modarabas in operation with total assets of Rs54.347 billion.

Regulatory Reforms

In view of the COVID-19 situation, the SECP has taken a number of measures to provide ease to
Modaraba's customers not only in terms of repayment of facilities but also relaxed provisioning
requirements for Modarabas till March, 2021. The Commission also modified the effective date for
applicability of IFRS-9 for Modarabas till June 30, 2021.
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Owing to COVID 19 pandemic situation, this year has been the most challenging one for the world’s
financial markets and has seriously hampered economic activities worldwide. Given this situation,
SECP has worked with a cautious and balanced approach to promote ease of doing business and
facilitate the NBF sector and its investors, customers and borrowers. To foster growth of the NBF
Sector the SECP has instituted several regulatory reforms during the year, stated as under;

Amendments to Corporate Restructuring Companies Act, 2016

The SECP facilitated the process to introduce amendments to the Corporate Restructuring
Companies Act, 2016 (the CRC Act) through the Corporate Restructuring Companies (Amendment)
Ordnance, 2020 in July 07, 2020. The proposed amendments, inter alia, will facilitate the CRCs to
operate efficiently, acquire the Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) from the Financial Institutions easily,
raise funding for acquisition of NPAs and will facilitate revival of distressed economic assets by
enabling the CRCs to reach compromise with the distressed entities promptly. The amendment bill
has been placed before the joint session of National Assembly and the Senate for approval.

Amendments to Trust Acts, 2020

Newly introduced Trust Acts by Federal and Provincial governments did not recognize legal person
as an author, trustee and beneficiary of a trust. Considering the adverse implications on mutual
fund industry, the SECP proactively took up the issue with MO Directorate, FMU and Ministries of
Industries Sindh. After deliberations with the stakeholders, amendments were notified in Sindh and
KPK Trust Acts. SECP also worked simultaneously with PITB for development of online WTC portal on
trusts capturing requisite information related to Specialized Trusts.

Amendments in Investment Framework of VPS
VPS framework has been revised, enabling pension fund managers to offer passive investment
strategy to VPS investors.

Amendments to the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules,
2003

The SECP, in consultation with the stakeholders, has approved amendments to the NBFC Rules,
which have been placed for final approval by the Federal Government. Key areas covered through
the amendments include introduction of perpetual license and abolishment of renewal of license
after every 3 years, allowing promotes to apply for further extension of time to form an NBFC,
rationalizing the information to be supplied for obtaining permission to form a NBFC, explicitly
specifying requirement for NBFC to maintain minimum equity at all times, requiring NBFCs to
change external auditor at least every 5 years, flexibility for grant of multiple licenses within the
same group, allowing securities brokers to obtain investment advisory services, introducing
provision of regulatory sandbox for testing of NBF products, enabling brokers to launch low cost ETF
and enabling provision to grant Investment Advisory license either for portfolio management, ETF,
advisory or any combination.

Uniformity of Fit and Proper Criteria Under NBFC Regulations

To rationalize fit and proper criteria and to standardize it across all regulated entities of SECP,
amendments to NBFC Regulations, 2008 have been notified through SRO 581(1)/2021 dated May 20,
2021.

Non-Bank Microfinance Companies (NBMFCs)

Given the increasingly important role of NBMFC sector, the SECP, after broad-based consultation
with stakeholders, has finalized amendments to NBFC Regulations. The amendments include
requirements for adoption of robust governance system, an effective risk management regime as
well as implementation of uniform and institutionalized ways of dealing with liquidity to help
sustainable growth of the sector. The amendments will be notified after final approval of the
Commission.

Leasing Companies

Considering the practical difficulties faced by leasing companies in underwriting leasing business
due to implications of unfavourable tax laws, the SECP has allowed them to include vehicle financing
to meet the requirement of investing at least 70% of total assets in leasing business under NBFC
Regulations.
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Promoting Self-Regulation in Mutual Fund Industry

SECP issued draft Self-Regulatory Organizations (Registration) Regulations, 2021 to promote
establishment of Self-Regulatory Organizations (SROs), to inculcate self-discipline and collective
responsibility amongst market players.

Regulatory Framework for Debt and Hybrid ETF

SECP has specified the framework for issuance of Debt and Hybrid ETFs. Debt ETFs allow investors
to gain passive exposure to fixed income securities while Hybrid ETFs allow investment in an index,
which has both debt and equity securities.

Allowing Individuals to Become Securities and Future Advisors

SECP notified amendments to the Securities and Futures Advisors (Licensing & Operations)
Regulations, 2017 on January 15, 2021, allowing individuals to act as Securities and Futures Advisors
as well as the Mutual Fund Distributors.

Market Development

Facilitation and Promotion of Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

The SECP, in order to promote HFCs sector, arranged a series of webinars and bilateral sessions, in
collaboration with World Bank Group, Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company, Naya Pakistan
Housing Development Authority and the State Bank of Pakistan. The SECP has also proposed
including HFCs in Government's Markup Subsidy Scheme for housing finance in order to provide a
level playing field and encourage formation of new HFCs.

Launch of First Shariah Compliant ETF
Approval granted for the launch of Pakistan’s first Shariah compliant ETFs, providing investors with
a new investment avenue.

Emlaak Financials

SECP steered the development of first mutual fund digital distribution platform for investment in
mutual funds, namely “Emlaak Financials”. The platform has been successfully launched and will
encourage healthy competition among AMCs to offer best products to their customers.

Amendments in SBP’s Foreign Exchange Manual

In order to channelize the investment from overseas Pakistanis towards Pakistani Capital Markets,
SECP took up the matter with State Bank of Pakistan to allow the investment in units of funds
quoted at Stock Exchange, including ETFs, REIT Funds and mutual funds through Special Convertible
Rupee Accounts (SCRA) and RDA. So far through SCRA/ RDA, AMCs have managed to open 2,322
investor accounts with an amount of Rs. 199 million.

Revamping the REITs Regulatory Framework

REITs undoubtedly hold the potential to fundamentally reform Pakistan’s real estate sector through
better documentation and improved governance. However, the sector faces major challenges in the
form of (i) limited supply as it competes with a relatively much less regulated real estate industry; (ii)
a regulatory framework that lacked required flexibility and operational efficiency; and (iii) an
inconsistent fiscal approach discouraging the required long-term investment horizon. In this
backdrop, REIT Regulations, 2015 have been amended to move to disclosure-based issuance,
reducing entry barriers and offering alternate investment avenues. Moreover, the recently
amended regulations enable REITs to invest in real estate either directly or through investments in
Special Purpose Companies that own real estate.

Revamping the Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund (PE & VC) Sector

The private fund industry faced some major hurdles that impeded it from achieving its true
potential. To address these issues, the SECP has revamped to catalyse growth in the private funds
industry by offering increased flexibility, efficiency and ease of doing business in line with
international best practices. To enable PE&VC funds to harness long-term patient capital, pension
funds have been allowed to invest up to 5% of net assets of equity sub-fund in units of SECP
registered private equity and venture capital funds.
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Outcome of Regulatory Reforms

Although the real impact will be more visible in the years to come, some of the positive outcomes
are already visible, as highlighted below:

* 6 new licenses have been granted to Securities and Futures Advisors, taking the total number to
18.

« Approval has been granted to a Digital Payment solution namely “NPay” for corporate clients of
an AMC, enabling corporate entities, including SMEs, to securely and efficiently make different
payments including salary, tax, utility bills and vendors payments through a digital platform.

* 3 NBFCs have obtained PE & VC Fund Management Services licenses from the SECP, while 1
licensing application is currently under process.

« Apart from 3 new REIT management services licenses issued during the year, new RMC
applications are in various stages of the licensing process and applications for registration of 2 new
REIT Schemes were received. Out of these, approval for registration of one shariah compliant
developmental REIT Scheme has already been granted.

* 6 new licenses have been issued for lending NBFCs, including first 3 HFCs.

Way Forward

« Efforts are underway for introducing a modernized, dedicated and consolidated parent law for
the NBF sector, enabling comprehensive coverage of provisions.

+ Digitizing the eco-system of Mutual Fund Sector including Digital Onboarding/Account Opening,
Digital Distribution Platforms, Digital Trustee, Digital AMCs, Digital Investment Advisor and digitizing
the mutual fund distributors.

* In line with the recommendations of the Pension and Annuity Working Group set up by the
Commission, necessary work will be initiated for amendments in the VPS Rules, development of
annuity market, utilization of life insurance distribution network and awareness of the voluntary
pension schemes in the corporate and public sector.

« Through Emlaak Financials, the initiative of digital Distribution Platform, foreign investors will be
incentivized to invest in mutual funds through Roshan Digital Account.

« To promote establishment of SRO in the mutual fund sector, the Mutual Fund Association of
Pakistan (MUFAP) will be converted as a SRO.

« To work on initiatives like Social Impact Fund, Sector Specific Credit Rating for Microfinance and
Non-profit to for profit transformation of NBMFCs.

+ Enabling framework for Digital Peer-to-Peer Lending Platforms will be introduced with objective
to increase financial inclusion for MSMEs by digitally connecting lenders with borrowers.

+ High level coordination with Naya Pakistan Housing Development Authority, SBP, Ministry of
Finance and other stakeholders will be ensured to include Housing Finance Companies and NBMFCs
in Naya Pakistan Program, enabling NBFCs to access the government's subsidized funding for
microfinance and low cost housing loans.
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Insurance

The insurance industry enables the economic growth by indemnifying losses of every size and
nature across the country. Through risk transfer mechanism, it supports individuals as well as large
industrial, commercial and trade ventures.

The current year has remained challenging for businesses and national economies around the
world however, the insurance industry in Pakistan has been able to sustain its footing, despite the
impact of Covid-19 pandemic. This can be partly attributed to adoption of alternate means of
insurance distribution and policy administration i.e. digital modes.

The premium revenue As of December 31, 2020, the total assets of the insurance industry stood at
Rs1,987 billion, compared to Rs1,784 billion as of December 31, 2019, showing 11% increase in asset
size. On the revenue side, during the year 2020, the industry has underwritten total direct gross
written premium amounting to Rs347 billion, compared to Rs343 billion in 2019, demonstrating a
growth of around 1% in GWP. The reinsurance premium underwritten by the only non-life
reinsurance company in Pakistan, owned by the Government of Pakistan, amounted to Rs17.5
billion.

According to sector-wise analysis, the life insurance industry assets amount to Rs1,630 billion and
non-life insurance sector owns assets amounting to Rs357 billion. On the revenue side, the life
insurance sector has underwritten premium of Rs225 billion and non-life insurance sector has
recorded premium amounting to Rs122.6 billion, during the year 2020.

Insurance Industry Assets (Amount in Billion)
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Regulatory/Developmental Reforms

During the year, various policy reforms have been undertaken, centered around the objective of
strengthening the insurance regulatory framework, market development, consumer protection, and
improved compliance with the Insurance Core Principles. The SECP has also embarked on
introducing reforms aimed at curbing malpractices, and strengthening consumer protection
regime. Through collaboration with professional bodies and industry stakeholders, key reforms and
new initiatives, are stated below.

Draft Insurance Ordinance (Amendment) Bill, 2020

The Draft Insurance Ordinance (Amendment) Bill, 2021 has been formulated with the objective to
introduce significant reforms in the primary insurance law. After extensive consultation with the
industry stakeholders and obtaining necessary regulatory approvals, draft bill will be submitted to
Ministry of Finance for initiating necessary legislative process.

Corporate Insurance Agents Regulations, 2020

Vide S.R.O. 1304(1)/2020 dated December 3, 2020, the SECP notified the Corporate Insurance Agents
Regulations, 2020 which aim to provide comprehensive regulatory framework for business
undertaken through corporate insurance agents (including banks) and technology-based
distribution channels. The Regulations are designed to improve protection of policyholders’
interests by addressing issues of market conduct and mis selling, among other areas. The
Regulations have replaced the Bancassurance Regulations, 2015 and the SEC Directive on Corporate
Insurance Agents (excluding Banks) and Technology Based Distribution Channels, 2017.

SEC Reinsurance Brokers Regulations, 2020

The SECP has formulated the SEC (Reinsurance Brokers) Regulations, 2020, for regulation of
reinsurance brokers in Pakistan. The Regulations stipulate various regulatory requirements, such as
minimum paid up capital, statutory deposit, professional indemnity insurance, the requirement to
obtain registration with the SECP, filing and reporting, disclosure requirements and certain other
provisions relating to conduct of reinsurance brokers. One of the key features of draft Regulations
is to prohibit dual role of the licensed insurance brokers, by acting as direct insurance broker and
reinsurance broker on the same risk. The requirement has been levied to ensure optimization of
local risk retention in the non-life insurance industry and to avoid conflict of interest of insurance
local brokers, along with their foreign affiliates in a single non-life insurance policy.

Amendment to Unit Linked Product and Fund Rules, 2015

Draft amendments to the Unit Linked Product and Fund Rules, 2015 has been prepared in
accordance with the gaps identified in the existing regime. The proposed amendments include
areas such as clarity on eligible investment avenues from the unit linked funds, parameters for
investment from unit linked funds, exposure limits in particular instruments, broad categorization
of unit linked funds and standardization of investment policies, guidance on risk categorization of
unit linked funds based on asset allocation of the fund, among others. The proposed amendments
also include requirements relating to sales process aiming at consumer protection, and will be
published for eliciting public comments thereon.

Registration Regime for Dedicated Micro Insurers and Digital-Only Insurers

In-line with the SECP's agenda of promoting digitalization in financial services and enhancing
financial inclusion, the registration regime is proposed to be introduced for entities desirous to
transact insurance on digital-only basis and entities desirous to transact small ticket size insurance
i.e. microinsurance through necessary amendments to the Insurance Rules, 2017. The proposed
registration regime for digital-only insurer and dedicated micro insurers is aimed at enabling the
small entities with vision and plan to innovate and serve the insurance market, to obtain registration
with the SECP, while complying with lenient regulatory requirements in terms of minimum paid up
capital and solvency requirement. The draft amendments will be published for eliciting public
comments thereon.

Distribution of Insurance Products Through Digital Platforms

To enhance access and usage of financial services, the SECP has started consultation with the
insurance industry association for distribution of insurance products through digital portal, already
engaged in comparison and distribution of mutual funds products. The objective of expanding
scope of this digital portal to include insurance products therein is to increase access of basic
insurance protection to individuals who are tech savvy and are comfortable with online purchase,
hence increasing financial inclusion.
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Formation of National Crop Insurance Scheme (NCIS)

The task of formation of National Crop Insurance Scheme (NCIS) is part of National Financial
Inclusion Strategy (NFIS) of the Government of Pakistan, for which, the Ministry of Commerce
constituted the NCIS taskforce, chaired by the SECP. The NCIS taskforce, after extensive consultation
with relevant stakeholders and conducting secondary research, finalized the report which
recommends development of area yield index-based crop insurance scheme for loanee and
non-loanee crop owners, to be administered through technology-based NCIS management system
wherein claims are processed using hybrid method to be developed jointly by the SUPARCO and
provincial agriculture departments i.e. by correlating the results of crop cutting experiments and
satellite imagery.

To facilitate the small farmers, the NCIS is proposed to be fully subsidized for farmers with
landholding of 5 acres and less, 50% for farmers with landholding 5 to 25 acres and for farmers with
landholding above 25 acres, the cost is to be borne by the farmers. The indicative cost and
estimated subsidy are also included therein. The report is submitted to Ministry of Finance for
inward submission to Ministry of Commerce.

Licensing and Approvals

Life Insurance Products Approval

During the year, 126 new life insurance products and supplementary riders have been approved by
the SECP, including innovative products with technology-based product features proposed to be
distributed through digital platforms.

Registration of Insurance Companies

The SECP has registered the Postal Life Insurance Company Limited as life insurer in accordance
with the applicable regulatory requirements. The registration of Postal Life Insurance under the
applicable regulatory framework will pave the way for level playing field for all industry players,
leading to fair competition, enhanced private sector participation in the insurance sector and
increase in insurance penetration.

Licensing of Surveying Companies and Authorized Surveying Officers
During the period under review, 561 licenses of insurance surveying companies and authorized
surveying officers have been issued, of which, 213 licenses were issued to the surveying companies
and 348 licenses were issued to the Authorized Surveying Officers (ASOs).

Licensing of Insurance Brokers
During the year July, 2020 to June, 2021, the insurance broking license of 15 brokers was renewed,
while fresh license to one (1) new insurance broker was issued.

Approval of Appointment of Directors and CEOs of Insurers

During the year July, 2020 to June, 2021, 175 approval for appointment of Directors and CEOs of
insurance companies have been issued under Insurance Companies (Sound and Prudent
Management) Regulations,2012. Sixteen (16) applications for appointment of directors and CEOs of
insurance brokers were also processed and approved.

Approval of Facultative Reinsurance Placement Abroad
During the year, 1250 applications for placement of facultative reinsurance in the international
reinsurance market have been processed and approved.

Way Forward

The regulatory reforms aimed to be introduced through Insurance Ordinance (Amendment) Bill,
2021 are expected to bring a paradigm shift in insurance sector regulation through creating
conducive environment for market development, alignment of regulatory framework with
international insurance supervisory standards, and strengthening the supervisory powers of SECP.

The draft regulatory framework for registration of digital-only insurers and dedicated microinsurers
is expected to be finalised by FY2022-end. It will lower the barriers to entry, and enable small and
tech-based entities to enter insurance market, thereby increasing insurance penetration in
underserved markets.
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With the objective to improve the market conduct and ensuring protection of policyholder’s interest,
regulatory requirements in relation to sales process, eligible investment avenues for unit linked
funds, exposure limits in particular instruments such as debt, equity, real estate, collective
investment schemes etc., and guidance on risk categorization of unit linked funds based on asset
allocation of the fund, are proposed through amendment to Unit Linked Product and Fund Rules,
2015. The regulation of unit linked products is critical as the investment risk is borne by the
policyholder in unit linked insurance products.

A road map is devised for development of risk-based capital regime and implementation of
International Financial Reporting Standard -17 (Insurance Contracts). For ensuring smooth
transition of IFRS-17 implementation, SECP has taken a phased manner approach covering gap
analysis and the financial impact assessment which will be followed by system design and
methodology and parallel run.

For development of risk-based capital regime, a Technical Working Group formed by SECP is
working to develop a preliminary model for the regime to be completed by June 30, 2022. The
adoption of risk-based capital regime will help each insurance company determine the required
minimum capital in accordance with risks faced by it. The graduation of the insurance sector in
Pakistan from factor-based capital requirements to risk-based capital requirements will help
increase resilience of the insurance sector towards risks faced by it and improve its compliance with
the international standards.
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Islamic Finance

SECP regulates important elements of non-bank Islamic financial services industry, Islamic capital
market and corporate sector. Islamic Finance Department (IFD) serves as a key pillar of SECP for
ensuring Shariah compliance by coordinating and providing advisory in the areas, include Shariah
compliant companies, Shariah compliant securities, Modarabas, Takaful operators and window
Takaful operators, Islamic non-banking financial institutions, Islamic mutual and pension funds and
Shariah compliant real estate investment trusts.

Major Highlights

« Under Shariah Governance Regulations, 2018, thus far, the SECP has issued certificates of Shariah
compliance to seven companies in terms of the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2018, for the
development of the Islamic financial capital market. In addition, SECP has issued certificates of
Shariah compliance for sukuk issuances worth Rs280 billion, including the “Power Energy
Sukuk-1I" by Government of Pakistan worth Rs200 billion and “Pakistan International Airlines
Corporations Limited-Sukuk” worth Rs20 billion.

Under the Shariah Advisors Regulations, 2017, one new Shariah Advisor was registered with the
SECP during the year. It is pertinent to mention that so far, 105 Shariah advisors have been
registered with the SECP, including six private limited companies for providing Shariah advisory
services.

« Under strategic alliance for promotion of Islamic finance, SECP successfully delivered a series of
webinars for the promotion and development of Islamic finance in collaboration with IBA-Centre
for excellence in Islamic Finance. So far, three webinars on Islamic Capital Market, Islamic Fintech
and Islamic Regtech have been arranged. SECP has also delivered a session on Islamic finance to
the students of Arid University Department of Management Sciences. IFD plans to hold an
international summit on Islamic Finance in collaboration with IFSB, AAOIFI and CEIFs in the Month
of June.

+ SECP has been gradually adopting Accounting and Shariah Standards issued by the Accounting
and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI) to achieve a high degree of
standardization in the operational and business practices of Islamic financial institutions. In this
regard, SECP has issued draft notification for adoption of seven (7) additional AAOIFI Shariah
Standards, while reviewing additional Shariah standards are being reviewed for inclusion in the
draft.

+ SECP is providing its regulatory support to spur growth of the Islamic finance industry through
scaling up Islamic finance regulations to provide an enabling regulatory environment for the
stakeholders falling under purview of SECP. In order to create ease of doing business,
amendments in the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2018 are in process.

Way Forward

SECP in collaboration with all the stakeholders, will pursue infusing of Shariah principles in
disruptive Fintech innovations (Smart contracts, Big Data and Blockchain technology), which will
help in the financial inclusion and further enhance the customer experience for the Shariah
sensitive investors. The department will also review RegTech solutions available for the supervision
of Islamic financial industry, specifically in the areas of Shariah compliance and Shariah Audit.

SECP plans to work with stakeholders for increasing the volume of Takaful in Pakistan, by launching
of Taktech (Takaful technology) to revolutionize the takaful sector, by complementing existing
initiatives to enhance takaful coverage to the unserved segments of the population.

SECP will also explore the Asset Light Sukuk framework for the issuance of Asset Light Sukuks. For
Green sukuks, IDF is already conducting research for creating regulatory framework, enabling
issuance of green sukuks in Pakistan.

In consultation with Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), IFD is also in the process
of introducing a Shariah audit qualification for external Shariah auditors, under Shariah Governance
Regulations, 2018. This step shall help in streamlining the external Shariah audit profession in
Pakistan.
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Anti-Money Laundering

Under the amended AML Act 2010, SECP is the regulatory authority for any reporting entity licensed
or regulated by SECP, as well as the oversight body for the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP), and the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP). In this
role, SECP is committed to implementing the measures set out in the FATF standards in SECP's
regulated financial sectors namely, stockbrokers, commodities brokers, NBFCs and Modarabas,
Insurers, corporates and NPO's, from being used by money launderers and terrorist financiers for
illicit purposes.

Regulatory Reforms

Following adoption of Pakistan Mutual Evaluation Report (MER) in October 2019, Pakistan was
placed on enhanced (expedited) follow-up, and given a one-year action plan to address deficiencies
identified in MER 2019. This necessitated major amendments in the Anti money Laundering Act
2010, which was amended in September 2020, to incorporate FATF recommendations. To align SECP
regulations, directives and guidelines, FAQs etc. with the amended AML Act 2010, landmark
progress has been made in the areas of regulatory reforms and guidance to SECP regulated entities.
In this regard, the following documents were amended/updated:

SECP AML/CFT Regulations 2020
SECP AML/CFT/PF Guidelines 2020
AML Directive under AML Act 2010
Oversight of SRB Regulations

ICAP AML/CFT Regulations

ICMAP AML/CFT Regulations

Risk Based Supervisory Framework
Risk Based Supervisory Manual

SOPs for Sanction under ATA 1997

[y
(=]

Frequently Asked Questions on AML/CFT regulations and allied matters

Amendments to the Companies Act, 2017 and allied regulations, including the Companies (General
Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018, has been made to bridge the gaps pertaining to Beneficial
Ownership regime in Pakistan. Moreover, guidelines and frequently asked questions have been
issued to raise awareness among the stakeholders.

Outcomes of SECP Interventions

As a result of the regulatory reforms outlined above, accompanied by strategic supervisory actions
and initiatives by AMLD aimed at improving compliance by SECP regulatees, Pakistan’s efforts were
acknowledged by FATF's International Co-operation Review Group (ICRG) assessors. Key
achievements in technical compliance area include:

Appointment of SECP as the Lead agency for Immediate Outcome 5 (I05), dealing with preventing
legal persons and arrangements from misuse for money laundering and terrorist financing.

Recommendation 24, Transparency and beneficial ownership of legal persons has been re-rated
as Largely Compliant (LC) from Partially Compliant (PC), following regulatory amendments and
compliance initiatives by SECP.

Recommendation 25, Transparency and beneficial ownership of legal arrangements has been
re-rated as ‘LC' from not compliant ‘NC." In this regard, SECP contributed heavily in the
upgradation.
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Following the second round of follow-up report (FUR) 2021, Pakistan had sought re-ratings on 26
Recommendations. In this regard, FATF Asia Pacific Group (APG) assessors’ re-rated Pakistan as
Largely Compliant/Compliant in 20 Recommendations relevant to SECP and its regulated entities.
SECP made significant contributions during the assessment process that eventually led to the
re-ratings. A comparison of such re-ratings post MER 2019 is provided below:

SECP Related Rating | mer2019 | FuR2021 |

Compliant (C) 0 4
Largely Compliant (LC) 0 16
Partially Compliant (PC) 18

Not Compliant (NC) 3 0
Total 21 21

Key Improvements in Other Areas

+ Implementation of automated screening solution with the help of United Nations Office on Drugs
and Crime (UNODC) resulting in effective and timely compliance with United Nations Security
Council Resolution (UNSCR) targeted financial sanctions by SECP regulated entities (REs).

+ Sectoral risk assessments were updated in coordination with UNODP to inform and help improve
REs risk assessment process resulting in effective risk management at entity level.

+ SECP conducted a series of outreach and awareness raising sessions for SECP regulated sectors
in coordination with UNODP. A total of 32 sessions including compliance forums t were attended
by 1095 participants from SECP regulated sectors. Such sessions are very helpful in improving
understanding of regulatory obligations and compliance by SECP REs.

Way Forward

To sustain the effectiveness of SECP's AML/CFT regulatory framework, our focus will be on
continued improvement in compliance by SECP regulated entities, through risk-based supervision
and related enforcement, leading to play its role for Pakistan’s exit from the Grey list. Additionally,
SECP shall continue to demonstrate that proportionate and dissuasive sanctions are applied to legal
persons for non-compliance with requirements, to provide and maintain BO information.
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Enforcement

The Commission is entrusted with the supervision of regulated sectors under its purview and
enforcement of the laws and regulations under its ambit. An effective supervisory role entails timely
detection of non-compliances, which when combined with an independent adjudication function
serves as a dissuasive mechanism for delinquent market participants, ensuring accountability and
transparency within the regulated sectors. The synergy in supervision and adjudication function is
essential for implementing a balanced enforcement strategy and enabling the Commission to
effectively discharge its responsibilities.

The Commission, for purposes of functional alignment, established a centralised Adjudication
Division for all regulated sectors w.e.f. December 01, 2019 thereby consolidating all adjudication
functions under various operating departments. In continuance of its focus on an integrated
enforcement strategy, the Commission established a centralized Supervision Division w.e.f. March
31, 2021. This step is aimed at ensuring consistent, more transparent and focused regulatory
oversight across sectors. Formation of dedicated Adjudication Division and Supervision Division, has
enabled the Commission to achieve a milestone in restructuring of its core enforcement function,
on a functional basis, allowing it to take remedial actions to ensure regulatory consistency across
sectors and enhancing uniform decision making.

Implementation of such integrated enforcement plan is achievable by focused, risk-based
identification of violations by Supervision Division complemented by independent and judicious
adjudication function by Adjudication Division, enabling autonomy and operational efficiency in its
functions.

As evident from results of the supervision activity, as well as the number of cases pursued within
adjudication, the Commission has been able to achieve better compliance with its rules and
regulations, and protected the rights of the minority shareholders by taking timely and effective
supervisory actions, supplemented with proportionate and dissuasive adjudication orders.

Moving ahead, in the forthcoming year, Commission foresees thorough and well synced
enforcement supported by offsite supervision, onsite inspections, investigations and adjudication
functions. Priority areas continue to aim at transparent disclosure, informed decision making,
accountability and protecting minority shareholders and general public. AML/CFT related
compliance shall remain a key focus. Further, focus areas include strengthening of risk-based
supervision including improving the risk matrix for identification of high-risk companies for
prioritizing examination of such companies, taking appropriate measures against non-performing
units, pursuing actions against non-filers and strengthening vigilant inspection and investigation
functions.

The enforcement interventions undertaken during the year by the Commission are summarized
below sector wise.

Capital Market

Supervision of markets is a continuous effort to detect market abuses and ensure fair market
practices through timely detection of market abuses and malpractices and take remedial measures
to protect the interest of all market participants. During the year, offsite surveillance resulted in
recommendations of adjudication proceedings for non-disclosure or inappropriate disclosure of
material information while cases of market abuses were also identified for further investigation.
Offsite market surveillance was complemented by onsite investigations, to further probe the
suspected market abuses. Outcomes of offsite and onsite supervision of market activities are given
in tabular form below:

Cases recommended for investigation 12
Prohibitory Orders 3
Investigations completed/in process 12

2

Cases referred for criminal prosecution
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Onsite supervision is the key tool to monitor activities of brokers to ensure regulatory compliance.
Inspection/ and investigation of the brokers is conducted regularly on the basis of indicators of risk
assessment criteria inclusive of financial strength, compliance level and business performance. A
significant number of inspection/investigations were conducted during the year leading to
compliance directives or referrals for adjudication depending upon the nature of regulatory
non-compliance. A summary of onsite activity and consequent actions is given below:

Nature of actions Number of cases

Onsite inspections/investigations conducted/in process 105
Warnings Issued 35

A summary of orders issued and penalties imposed, during the year for non-compliances with
requirements pertaining to securities market laws and AML laws, are summarized in table given
below:

Cases SCN issued Amount of penalty (Rs)
Assessed

Action against non-compliances 644,235,000

AML related non-compliances 131 89 114 36,820,000

Corporate Sector

Offsite review of financial statements and other statutory returns is the primary tool for supervision
of the corporate sector. Onsite inspections or investigations are conducted if necessitated by the
offsite review, on the basis of recommendation of the Registrar or a complaint by an eligible
shareholder. Major non-compliances or irregularities observed during the offsite or onsite reviews
are referred for adjudication while warning/ compliance directives are issued for minor
non-compliances by the respective supervision functions.

Segment-wise overview of supervision and enforcement activity in respect of the corporate sector
are given below:

Listed Companies

During the year, 10 intended acquirers made public announcements of intention for acquiring more
than 30% voting shares of eight listed companies. The takeover process was completed in four
cases, while public announcements of intention were withdrawn in four cases and the rest of the
cases are in process. Adjudication proceedings have been recommended in nine cases for alleged
violation of the Securities Act, 2015.

In addition to the above, trading activities of beneficial owners of listed companies are also
monitored through regular review of returns filed by companies, their beneficial owners and trading
data of PSX. During the year, 1,497 returns received from companies and their beneficial owners
were reviewed resulting into recommendation of adjudication proceedings in 10 cases for alleged
violations of the Securities Act, 2015.

An overview of the offsite and onsite activity of listed companies and consequent actions is given
hereunder:

Offsite reviews of annual financial statements 272

Onsite inspections/investigations concluded/ in process 22

Warnings issued/directives 36
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Enforcement actions initiated and penalties imposed during the year on listed companies for
non-compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory framework are summarized below:

Total Cases SCN issued Amount of penalty
Assessed (Rs)

Listed 22,292,850
companies

Unlisted Companies

After establishment of the Supervision Division, risk-based supervision of unlisted companies has
been initiated where Ppublic sector companies and other companies involving direct or indirect
public interest have been prioritized for supervision. , while with respect to private companies or
privately held public companies, where risk for filing untrue financial statements with SECP is
directly emanating from tax frauds, liaison with FBR will be considered.

The primary focus of onsite supervision of unlisted companies during the year was compliance with
recently introduced requirements relating to maintenance of beneficial ownership records by
companies and reported casecases of unauthorized activitiesy or misconduct.

An overview of offsite and onsite activities in respect of listed unlisted companies carried out during
the year and consequent actions is summarized below in tabular form;

Offsite reviews of annual financial statements
Onsite inspections/investigations conducted/in process 54

Enforcement actions initiated and penalties imposed during the year on unlisted companies for
non-compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory framework are summarized in table given
below. It also includes enforcement actions taken for non-compliances reported by Registry
function of the Commission:

Adjudication SCN Amount of penalty
Recommendation .
Notes (ARNs) Processed issued (Rs)

Unlisted
companies 8,442 2,760 2,552 5,041,033,000

Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs)

Periodic reviews are based on published information, data received electronically through
Specialized Companies Returns System (SCRS) on monthly basis. A sector wise summary of offsite
reviews of NBFCs conducted during the year is given below:

Asset Management Companies

Investment advisors 4
REIT management companies 3
Private equity 3
Investment banks 7
Non-bank microfinance companies 21
Leasing companies 2
Modarabas 15

Total 74
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Besides full scope offsite reviews, thematic reviews of entire NBFC & Modaraba sector were also
carried out. The primary objective was to review sector wise compliance with minimum equity
requirements, exposure limits etc.

In case of deviation from applicable regulatory requirements, major non-compliances are referred
for adjudication proceedings, while for minor non-compliances, warning/ compliance letters are
issued by the supervision.

Risk-based periodic on-site inspection or investigations is also an important feature of the
supervision of NBFCs in order to carry out an in-depth assessment of compliance status with
applicable requirements. Like offsite supervision, onsite activity is concluded by recommendations
for adjudication proceedings for major violations or issuance of compliance directives or warnings
for minor noncompliance. Onsite activity of NBFCs carried out during the year along with
consequent outcomes is summarized below;

Inspections/Investigations conducted/in process

Warnings/compliance letters issued 163

Adjudication proceedings for legal and regulatory non-compliances related to laws pertaining to
NBFCs, Modarabas and AML regulatory regime as initiated and concluded during the year are
summarized below:

Cases Amount of
m S m penalty (Rs)

Action against non-compliances 500,000
AML related non-compliances 56 39 14 3,390,000
Insurance

The objective of integrated enforcement is to ensure compliance with the applicable laws and
supervisory framework, oversee the stability of the insurance sector and protect the interest of
policyholders/ shareholders. Supervision of Insurance sector is actively pursued through offsite
review of financial statements and other statutory returns supplemented by risk-based periodic
inspections/investigations. Penal action on violations detected during the off-site and onsite reviews
are referred for adjudication while warning letters or directions for compliance are issued by the
supervision depending upon the nature of the default.

The synopsis of output generated from the offsite and onsite supervision of Insurance sector during
the period under review is presented below:

Offsite reviews conducted
Onsite inspections/investigations conducted/in process 25

Warning/Advice/Directions issued 124

Enforcement actions initiated and penalties imposed for non-compliances with laws and regulations
applicable on insurance sector are summarized in table given below:

Cases Amount of penalty
SCN issued

Action against non-
compliances 37 21 54 20,920,000

AML rglated non- 20 15 5 5,675,000
compliances



Annual Report 2021

47

International Relations

The International Relations Department (IRD) has been mandated to facilitate SECP's international
regulatory and enforcement cooperation, by working with international standard setting bodies,
international financial institutions and counterparts in other jurisdictions. The department has also
been entrusted to advance SECP's agenda to enhance outreach regarding new and upcoming
developments through the Innovation Office. Key achievements of the department for the current
year are:

SECP’s Work at I0SCO

During the past year, considering the turmoil triggered in financial sector due to the COVID-19
pandemic, IOSCO Secretariat was very active in engaging all IOSCO members through arranging a
series of virtual meetings to share experiences and policy responses adopted by member states in
managing the fallout of the pandemic. In addition to being on the Board, SECP is also member of
various committees, and through these interactions, SECP was able to keep abreast of key policy
developments adopted by other jurisdictions to mitigate risks to market integrity, financial stability
and investor protection.

Bilateral Matters

In line with Federal Government's mission to improve diplomatic relations with regional countries,
the SECP has submitted proposals for signing of bilateral MoUs on cooperation and exchange of
information with securities regulators of Uzbekistan, Abu Dhabi, Saudi Arabia and Philippines, which
are currently being routed through diplomatic channels. At present, SECP has entered into bilateral
MoUs with 15 foreign counterparts, to promote regulatory cooperation and assistance.

Financial Market Development Program (FMDP)

The SECP achieved timely compliances with the policy conditions of Sub Program I, of the Asian
Development Bank's Financial Market Development Program (FMDP) and subsequently $300 million
policy-based loan was approved on 28th of September 2020. Presently, studies under technical
assistance of subprogram-l are in process and policy conditions of sub-program Il are being
implemented.

Activities of Innovation Office

As a part of its efforts to promote start-ups and create awareness about new developments, the
SECP, under the banner of its Innovation Office is carrying out webinars in collaboration with the
National Incubation Centre (NIC). During the year, 5 sessions have been arranged on topics ranging
from creating awareness about new concepts such as equity crowd funding & digital assets, changes
in regulatory framework such as introduction of growth enterprise board, and steps taken to
encourage venture capital and private equity segment in Pakistan.

Way Forward

In the context of changes in global regulatory landscape due to the pandemic, SECP will continue to
play an active role in IOSCO'’s priority areas for 2021-22, chiefly concerning risks exacerbated by the
COVID-19 pandemic. Moreover, in view of the positive response received to the activities of Innova-
tion office, going forward, the scope of this initiative will be expanded to offer support/advice to
individuals, entities and start-ups, attempting to bring innovative solutions to the market. In
addition, the SECP will continue to coordinate with relevant agencies for implementation of capital
market development plan and future roadmap for 2020-27.
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Digital Transformation

The role of the Information Systems & Technology Division (IS&TD) of the SECP, like all other
progressive organizations, has grown significantly in importance over the years and has assumed
new responsibilities, that go far beyond the technical service role that once defined the position.
Historically adopting a reactive approach, by matching technology to an identified business need,
the approach has shifted to being proactive, looking at how new and emerging technologies may be
applied in support of the SECP's mission, vision and values.

Regulatory Approach

Digital transformation connects technology, data science, devices and business strategy, leading to
improvements in a business process or customer experience. Thus, for any organization,
digitalization has become critical part of its business process, operations and value chain.
Accordingly, the SECP has instituted various reforms to develop a comprehensive and coherent
industry environment, to promote a conducive and technologically driven environment in Pakistan.

LEAP - Leading Efficiency Through Automation Prowess

The SECP Policy Board directed the Commission to initiate work on automation. As a result, SECP
has embarked upon its journey of digital transformation, end-to-end process automation to
improve service quality, promote transparency and enable user friendly environment for all its
regulatees. The project named LEAP (Leading Efficiency through Automation Prowess) entails
launch of STR, which has been completed, replacement of corporate registry system, introduction of
XBRL and end-to-end process automation. LEAP will also play a significant role in improving Ease of
Doing Business ranking for Pakistan.

LEAP project is funded through Financial Inclusion Programme (FIP) funds, a grant by UK
Government to Government of Pakistan. Department for International Development (DFID) has
endorsed Karandaaz as its lead implementation partner for execution of LEAP project for SECP.

Secured Transaction Registry (STR)

Secured Transaction Registry (STR), the first milestone under LEAP, was launched in 2020. This
initiative aims to improve access to finance for SMEs through use of their movable assets as
collateral, besides providing a mechanism for protection of secured creditors.

STR is an electronic database in which financial institutions can record charges or security interests
created by unincorporated entities or individuals on their movable assets. Any person may search
for existing security interests on movable assets of Entities (other than companies) registered in the
STR. STR is a critical enabling factor of Pakistan’s National Financial Inclusion Strategy (NFIS). This
initiative is expected to usher a new era of SME growth, and is in line with the government’s vision
and reforms agenda for a vibrant and sound economy. So far, more than 138,000 charges have
been registered by financial institutions since its inception.

Automation Initiatives

SECP has made significant progress in the area of automation. Multiple processes have now been
digitalized, which were previously handled manually. Information was stored in excel sheets with no
immediate reporting available for tracking and monitoring progress against each process.
Additionally, these proceedings were all paper based which resulted in delays and inefficiencies.

During the fiscal year 2020-21, SECP took major digital reforms including initiatives such as
automation of Fleet Management System, Promotion Management System, Salary Slip
Development, Internal Requisition System and enhancements in the Recruitment Management
System. With the implementation of these breakthrough initiatives, significant cost savings in terms
of paper usage has been made and has brought efficiency in SECPs human resources routine
operations by the automation of mundane tasks.

Facilitation Through Digitalization

Form 45 - Ultimate Beneficial Ownership (UBO) for Companies - SECP in its continuation of efforts to
promote the beneficial ownership transparency has launched a facility on its eService portal for
online submission of statutory Form-45, required to submit the declaration of UBO. This is another
forward step to promote the beneficial ownership transparency. This measure will facilitate
companies in filing the declaration with ease and reduce the cost of filing.
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Application Programming Interfaces (APIs) Development - In order to promote swift coordination
amongst the government entities and to further facilitate the users, SECP has interlinked multiple
platforms through integrations and development of APIs during the fiscal year. These initiatives
include integration with Pakistan MNP Database (PMD) to validate the CNIC and mobile number
combination for users registering with SECP and development of APIs for data sharing with Board of
Investment (Bol) for their portal being used by companies to register for specialized economic
zones. These initiatives will ensure swift correspondence between different entities and speed up
the process by reducing human interventions.

Business Process Re-engineering (BPR)

BPR activity is a business management strategy which involves the radical redesign of the core
business processes to achieve dramatic improvements in productivity, turn-around time (TAT) and
quality. The BPR activity for process optimization was undertaken in which list of business processes
was reviewed and finalized in consultation with business departments and the list consisting of 245
business processes was categorized in seven top level categories namely, company registration,
licensing, filing and compliance, supervision and enforcement, adjudication, regulatory approvals
and administrative and support functions.

As part of the overall plan for the implementation of new Company Registry, solution has been
prepared covering four of the seven top level categories (registration, filing, licensing and regulatory
approvals). Simultaneously, BPRis in progress to prepare documents for integrated Supervision and
Enforcement functions, essentially covering workflow automation for Offsite monitoring,
Inspection, Enquiries and Investigation, Adjudication and Litigation functions along with internal
review and approval for working papers, internal/external correspondence, archival of records,
procurement and travel desk operations.

Brokers Liquidity and Assets Segregation Returns System (BLASRS)

The Capital Market Reforms Committee contemplated that automation of brokers’ information is
key to the brokers supervision. Since the liquidity crises becomes the primary cause of brokers’
default, leading to unauthorized use of clients’ securities. Therefore, it was suggested to develop a
Brokers Liquidity and Asset Segregation Review System (“BLASRS"), which will generate early
warning signals based on certain risk parameters, like assets segregation ratios, liquidity ratios,
pledge concentration, profitability ratios etc. The said system will evaluate the data, giving scores
against thresholds and assign overall risk categorization such as High, Medium and Low,
automatically to each broker.

Revamp of Litigation Management System

SECP regularly finds itself engaged in litigation, sometimes by initiating cases in exercise of the
powers conferred upon it by various laws it administers, but more often in defending cases brought
against it. This is necessary not only to safeguard SECPs legitimate enforcement actions but also to
maintain and enhance its image as a competent regulator.

The in-house system development work is in progress to and the first version is expected to be
completed till the end of the financial year, which will streamline the process for management of the
litigation data, and liaison between departments, to ensure a well-coordinated response to all
litigation matters.

Employees Contributory Funds Returns System

The system is expected to be deployed till the end of the financial year 2020-21, it will help in
maintaining and reporting of data relating to investments made by companies out of Employees
Contributory funds (investments in listed securities).

Financial Data Analysis and Risk Profiling for Listed Companies

An integrated Supervision System for offsite monitoring, based on best-in-class templates and
processes has been conceived, and the procurement process is expected to be completed in FY
2021-22. The system will provide standardized financial information, promptly available for
assessment and reporting by relevant officers.
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ISO 27001 Recognition

ISO/IEC 27001 is the most widely used information security standard prepared and published by the
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) that assesses implementation, monitoring,
maintenance, and continuous improvement of Information Security Management System (ISMS).
SECP has been awarded the ISO certification for its enterprise ISO/IEC 27001:2013 ISMS against its
phase-01, phase-02 and phase-03 scope. This certification testifies that the information handling
and security has been managed in accordance with global standards and protocols.

Way Forward

The SECP has introduced multiple reforms that have greatly improved efficiency of processes, which
have been duly reflected in country’s global rankings. Moving forward, SECP aims to further
strengthen its processes, capabilities and systems, both internally and externally, to bring in
efficiency and reduce turnaround times by introducing various measures in close consultation with
the concerned stakeholders. Some of the major milestones that SECP IS&TD will be initiating work
replacement of current Company Registry system, to facilitate users. In addition, focus will remain
on optimization of business processes and re-engineer them for better efficiency and productivity.
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Chart 1: Incorporation Trend
Total companies as on
June 30, 2021 = 145,913
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Table 1: Number and Types of Companies as on 30-June-2021

Public Listed Companies
Public Unlisted Companies
Private Companies

Single Member Companies
Total Companies Limited by Shares
Associations under section 42
Companies under section 43
Trade Organizations

Public Unlimited Companies
Private Unlimited Companies
Foreign Companies

Companies under section 505(1)-(d)
Limited Liability Partnership

Total Companies as on 30-June-2021

514
2,791
118,343
20,397
142,045
987
73
329
1
1
1,074

1,371
145,883
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Table 2: Paid-up Capital Wise Break Up as of June 30, 2021

Public Private Single
Paid up Capital TSR Unlisted |[Compani| Member (RN AN
Companies A A Total |ntage
Companies es Companies
500

Paid-up capital up to
Rs100,000
Paid-up capital from

55,693 15,977 72,170 51%

Rs100,001 to 500000 1 317 18,343 2,250 20,911 15%
Paid-up capital from

Rs500,001 to 1000000 0 156 13,594 1,336 15,086 11%
Paid-up capital from

Rs1,000,001 to 10000000 9 388 22,681 707 23,785 17%
Paid-up capital from

Rs10,000,001 to 97 688 6,185 112 7,082 5%
100,000,000

Paid-up capital from

Rs100,000,001 to 166 422 1,365 13 1,966 1%
500,000,000

Paid-up capital from

Rs500,000,001 73 106 267 1 447 0%
to1,000,000,000

Paid-up capital from

Rs1,000,000,001 to above 168 214 215 ! %8 0%
Grand Total 514 2,791 118,343 20,397 142,045 100%

Table 3: Sector-Wise Distribution of New Incorporations

Number of companies incorporated
during 2020-21

Trading 4063
Information technology 3092
Real estate development 1794
Construction 2698
Ecommerce 950

Food and beverages 1070
Services 2320
Corporate agricultural farming 846
Textile 621

Pharmaceutical 566
Healthcare 470
Miscellaneous / others 503

Marketing and advertisement 565

Engineering 586
Communications 299

Education 739
Auto and allied 318
Transport 404
Chemical 382
Fuel and energy 307
Lodging 291

Cables and electric goods 244

Cosmetics and toiletries 239
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Power generation

Steel and allied

Mining and quarrying
Broadcasting and telecasting
Paper and board

Wood and wood products
Arts and culture

Footwear

Leather and tanneries

Glass and ceramics

Synthetic and rayon
Vanaspati and allied
Ginning
Tobacco
Finance and banking

Cement
Insurance

Sugar and allied
Sport goods
Carpets and rugs

Tourism

221
151
358
213
195
95
72
35
41
29

27

24
10

18
18

14
16
6

27
8

594

Table 4: Sector-Wise Distribution of Section 42 Companies

Number of Companies Total Number of Section 42
Registered During FY2020-21 | Companies as on June 30, 2021

159
18
20

Commerce
Art

Science
Religion
Sports

Social Services
Charity
Education
Health
Import/Export
Others

TOTAL

O N N N W, O U NN

a N
w ©

8
22
319
28
93
54

457
1184



Statistics

Table 5: Foreign Companies' Data

Country of Count of Name of the Country of Count of Name of the
Origin Company Origin Company

China 179 France
USA 149 Italy 24
UK 125 Australia 20
Hong Kong 45 Malaysia 20
UAE 43 Net.herland 19
Antilles
Korea South 40 Saudi Arabia 19
Turkey 38 Switzerland 19
Japan 37 Netherlands 15
Singapore 37 Others 11
Germany 32 Panama 10
Canada 31 Others 140

Chart 2: Provincial Distribution of New Incorporations

2%
16%

7%

1%

39%

Islamabad = Punjab = Balochistan = KPK = Sindh = Gilgit
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Chart 3: Further Issues - Number of Companies & and Amount Raised
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Chart 4: Assets of Insurance Industry
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Chart 5; Life Insurance Vs Non-Life Insurance Distribution
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Rupees in million

Rupees in billion

Capital Markets
Chart 7: Debt Issues and Funds Raised
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NBFC Sector
Chart 9: Snapshot of NBFS, as of June 30, 2021

PKR 227,619

PKR 137,416

PKR 338,329 PKR 1,086,705

= CIS /Plans Others

= Non-Bank Microfinance Companies = Discretionary / Non-Discretionary Portfolios

Table 6: Asset Size of NBFC Sector

Total deposits /

o No. of Assets
Description A TF Investments
entities (Rs millions) o
(Rs. millions)
CIS/Plans 282 1,086,705 1,086,705
AMC / |As/PFM 25 45,459 -
Discretionary / Non-Discretionary Portfolios - 338,329 -
Pension Funds 19 39,700 39,700
REIT Management Companies 10 6,974 -
Real Estate Investment Trust 1 54,291 54,291
Private Equity Companies 7 166 -
Private Equity & Venture Capital Funds 5 7,036 -
Investment Finance Companies (Inv. Banks) 13 68,505 4,911
Non-Bank Microfinance Companies 27 137,416 -
Leasing Companies 5 5,488 285
Housing Finance Companies* 3 - -

Total 1,790,069 1,185,891
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Rupees in billion

Rupees in billion

Chart 10: Category-Wise Distribution of Mutual Funds
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RSM

RSM Avals Hyder Liaquat Nauman
Chartered Accountants

Plot = 18-B-1. 1st Floor
Chohan Plaza, G-8 Markaz,
Islamabad. Pakistan

. s T:+92(51) 2340490 & 93
Independent Auditors’ Report F:+92 (51)933 4673

To the Federal Government of Pakistan Istlamabad(®@rsmpakistan.pk

www.rsm.global/pakistan
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(the Commission), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our apinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Commission as at June 30, 2021, and its financial performance and
its cash Mows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Commission in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Commission for the year ended June 30, 2020, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on
September 11, 2020,

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT I TAX | CONSULTING

PN R, Hycke Lot Kiournan by amwermibem ot S rartwork s braches. st S50 RS s the trading ame used by tae momionn? the RSM netesris Ea0h member of the RSM netm ok I o nasaomass
SoouSting Snd Corruting e which Sraclions I A own right. The RSM netwerk i not Reoll 2 Separste legal trtity in any nsocion
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Commission's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Commission or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Commission's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
audiror’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal contral,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Commission’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Commission to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among maters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Syed
Waveed Abbas.

N 5 Nu
RSM AVAIS HYDER LIAQUAT NAUMAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Islamabad
Date: i
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021
2021 2020
Mote et fre e
(R, "000") (Rs., "000")
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equpment 3 6413 +41.215
Right ter pser oof nssers & 331,864 155.757
Inmngible assets T 134,377 1537018
Intangibles under development q 18,724 10257
Long rerm investments ] 1,057 058 LO28.647
Loans and advances 1] L4040 402
Deferred tax asset 11 - [ R
2667 370 220,195
CURRENT ASSETS
Advances, deposits, prepavments and other necenvabiles 12 35092 376310
Short term v cstments 13 2121474 2 17R.0658
vocrued profit on long tesm investment 26,068 26,751
Cash and bank balanees 14 393 330 54670
2 H78 564 26750, 389
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current muturty of bease labdise 15 [ 1R (050 { 198,B25)
Veemed and other Habahnes 16 [1.205,355) (1.325.276)
Pavable o Federal Consolidaed Fund 17 2 ) "1R5)
(1, 387.533) [1,524.296)
MNET CURRENT ASSETS 1,291,030 1,102,105
MOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Prowsian for coampensansd abeences 18 (2045, 535) (183927
Liabaliny agnamss assess sulmecy w finance lease 1% {352,148) 124465
{358,543 (207 300
MNET ASSETS 3,399 8364 3,134,006
REPRESENTED BY:
SECP Funds 3,399,364 3,134,906
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS e ] - -
noexed notes 1o 3 foom anomtegral part of these Brancial statements. Qnﬂ‘\
COMMISSIONER
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SECURITIES AND EXCHAMNGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

MNote

INCOME

Fees and other secovenes 21
Chther income vt
EXPENDITURE

Ralanes, allowances and other benefits k]
Operanng expenses .t}
Depreciation on tangible fixed assers 5
Amornzanon on aght to use of assets i

Amaornzanon of nrangble assers
EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURE BEFORE TAX
TAXATION 25

EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURE
AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[tems which will not be subsequently reclassified to incmoee and expenditure

\eruanal gains/ (losses) on statf renrement funds
Related tax effect

Total caher comprehensive income - net of rax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The gnnexed notes 1 to 34 form an inregral part of these financial statements.

2021 2020
(R, "000") (Rs. "000")

3,240,262 3,858,732
W03 379 420,002
3543641 3,287,734
2379621 2057229
421 082 67815
122,233 122 890
181,562 170,797
6,105 8,181
3064603 2826012
479,038 400,522
243,497 131,321
735,541 3239 504
20417 (T4026)
21 468
20417 (52,538)
264,058 276,943

}f;ﬂmy ik,

COMMISSIOMNER

(e

o
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Assets Reserve for  Accumulated
acyguisition loan to comprehensive Tuotal
resETVE employees ineome

ermmammeansc e eeeeee | Rupees in thousand)----eememeememeee

Balance at 01 July 2019 2137 M3 TRANANN 2 B57.963
Comprehensive income:
Excess of income over expendiniee - = 320,501 329,501
Chither comprehensive loss s (52.558) [52.558)
270,243 276,945
Total comprehensive income - - 270,943 276,945
Transferred ro asser acquuaition reserve 2TH D43 = (276,043)
Balance at 30 June 2020 2,414,906 720,000 - 3,154,906
Comprehensive income:
Fxcess of income over expencditure 15,541 35,541
Crther comprehensive loss = = 20417 20417
264,958 264,958
Trstal (r'.ml-.rc'ncﬂswu: TG 3 - 64,958 264,958
Transferred 10 nsser m quisItion reserve 6.4 958 {364,958)
Balance at 30 June 2021 2,679,864 720,004 - 3,399 364
The annexed notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these Gnancial staremenrs. QN"\

\ XM’“W e

CHAIRMA COMMISSIONER /

\
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Exeess of income over capemdituee betore ray
\afjussrenenrs for
= Deprecistion an tangble 2:ers
Newsreization o gl 0o sse of asset
Somreanin oo nesnplles
= Amsoreization of loag reom investmeat
- Provision For pension
- Peewitaion for gratuity
Provision foe compensated absences

Ihzcounnng | {unwindmg ot} dmcount o long tern koans o emphiyees - net

- Inperest wvconme on shiat benm o e fmenis
| ntgest uycoms on !unp DECTTY HNYCEIITRE{ars

- Dhiseounting on operating bease Tabilithkes
{anm oom sabe of Propesty and ejupsment

i IpErAtig Lo befire witkimg :J!nu'l chanpes

Dicercase/ (imncreaze) imadvances, deposits, prepayments snd cther reeeivalbies

Ineresse in aocnsed and arher labdines

{ornbunce o penELE) il

Convtriburion bo granary funsl
Compensated dhaences encashed

[mperest panl on leased Falylinies

lameresit recemved ook +lanT e e Imenns
|rerest recerved wn II.HI?C fonm vy esnicTts

Taxes pasd

Ineresse n luans and advances

Inceease) (decrease) in pavable vo Poderal Consolidaed Fund
et cash generated from operating activites

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Prigvhinag --ur';h'\r.r\rrrg.I e .-.|ui[1m|-nr

Transbers fiom capual workan poogreds

Purchase of ianmble asseis - net

Right 1o use of assers-additons

Preoceeds from ale of property and eguspmens

Shewft P HIVEREMotE - ol

Lemg serm nvesiments

ep cash used in invoming activines

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fimanee leased labilines-net

et cash penerared Teom fesncing scrivitics

Sder mceese el wind cash ;.;.1m11h-ur1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Yy !scg:luung of the veay

Cash and cash equovalents ar eml of the year

202 220
(M, 00O { R "000°)
TIN5 R
123333 122500
181,562 170,797
1105 2,181
18,328 4315
X 285 S
#0454 WiTIR
28,567 e
{4, 1K 34,700
[T 215 (330,747
[0, 30N (31
12519 30,562
{16,260 (4871
253518 71517
i EE
137 681 177450
4304 157 %8
1551 SAZEIT
19778 IRELR-~
L0200 33808
(14,957 (10273
221 54T
2539934 207639
1y S LB
(177 .908) A8
T4 448 AT
o8 7 B0
2037 .20
ROZ 18R 410,804
500k 557 116,704
1335
(1459317 (03,765
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I LEGALSTATUS AND OPERATIONS

Recurites and Exchunge Commizsion of Pakisoan (the Commission) was estublished as a body corporate
under the Secunties und Exchange Commussion of Pekistan Act, 1997 {the Act) for the bencticnl
pegulation of capatal markers, supernrendence and control of comperate earities and for marmers eonnecred
therewith and incidentud thereto, The Commission operates theowsh Head office located in Tslamabad,
sowthern regional oifice located in kaeachy, eighe companies regsuranon offices and mwo faclitinon offices
e Pakesean,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Swmtement of compliance

1w

Ihese financil statements have been prepared in accordance with the acenunnng and repormng standards
sz dpplicable in Pakrstn. Adeountng and seporting standards compese of [nrernanonal Fioncial
Reporting Srandards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accountng Standard Boand (TASB] as are nodfied
by thee Commission 10 eompames in Makistare However, o follow the besr practices the Commassion kas
al:h'lpwd IFES a2 o fromework for '|1r|.-1'u-r.1r'mq1 uf the fnoncud stterments,

2.2  Basis of measure ment

These financial statements hove been prepared on the histoneal cost convention except for cerman
financial instrunyents which ane carried ar fair value and employee retrement benefir funds inchsding seaff
cumpersated dlsences which are carried w0 their present valies x5 derernined undes rw F!nri:l\':s.il.:lrls ol LAS
19, "Employee Benefirs",

23 Funcuonal and presentation currency

[hese financil stamemienis are presented i Pakisom Rupees, which is e Commission’s funcnonal and
presenmaton currency. Amounrs presented i Pakiatand Bupees have been rounded off o nearest
thowsand, unless otherwze indicated

24 Significant accounting estimates

The preparanon ol finonmcan] smresmenes n 1:r:||'|f|r|-.|:||l_\' wathy [FRS, requares the managemen) 1w mke
pedgments, espmutes. und [SSUITPTICNG thnr affect the ||'r]'||i|.'-.|1||vr| of pabaes wnd repocted amoenr of
asscrs andd habalioes, income and expenses. The csumares and sssockared assumpaons ane based on
huseoceal expencnce and vanous other fcrors that are bebeved to be seasonable under the circumsnanees,
the results of whach fomm the Trasis of making the judpments about canrping valees of wssets and labilies
thian are nor sedidy apparent feom orther sowrces Acnal sesulis may differ from these cutimies.
The estumares and underlving ssswmptons are revcwed onan ongoing busts, Revistons to acoouning
extimutes are recognized in the period in which the esinmtes are revised, if the revison effects only thar
period, or tn rhe petiod of the revsion amd funiee penodsf the revision effects both curment and furune
penods.
Judarments mude by management i the J.pphl::ﬂ:hm of IFRS thar have slgnlﬁ.r_'i!‘l'. eftect on the fnaneal
statemients and esumates with 4 significant nisk of matenal sdjustment in subsequent vears are discussed in
the enswnyr paragraphe:

u)  Income taxes
The Commission tkes into scoount the curment income G bw and decisions mken b the appeliare
aurhostries. Instances where the Commussion’s wew differs from the: view mken by the meome rax
departrnent w the ssedeement spe and where the Commission considers that i view on stems is of
maseriil noture is inaccordance with law, the amounis are shown a5 comngent Eabilides, %
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by

©)

d)

e)

Staff retirement benefits

The prezent vilue of the olblgrnom e gratuiry, pensiorn aned coinpensited absences lJ.l:|Jt|.'|::|J5 oy o pmibser
of factors that 2re determaned on scmuanal Dasis wsing number of sssumpnons, The saamptions esed in
determining the charge for the vear include the discounr rate, expecred merease i elighle salary and
mortality e, Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of cbligaticns for
granary, pension and compensated shsences.

Property and equipment and Intangible Assers

The Commission seviews the wseful life and residual values of property and cquipment and intangble
asgers on regular bass. Further, the Commussion sevacws the value of the assers for possible imparment
Any change in the estmates i future vears mupht affect the cumine smounts of the respective items of
properry and equpment or intangilile assers with o corresponding affect on the depreciaion) amoetization
charge and smpatmment

Provision against loans, advances and receivables

The Commussion applies the general approach for caleslating a fifetime cupecied credit losses ok its Ioans,
ndvances, deposirs snd other recenvables recognized. The hife mme expected credir lnss s deteroaned ar
least anmually. However, an asscssmens s made at cach reporting date 1o determune whether these 19 an
Inndicatnon that a finsncizl asset or a group of fmancal assers may e mpared. 1 such anndication exssis,
the esmmared recoverable amoumt of thar asser 1= derermined und impamment loss 15 recopnized for the
ilifference berween the recoverable amount wnd the carrving vinloe,

Empaiement

The carrning amounts of the Commssion's assers are reviewed at each statement of financial positon dase
1o determine wherhee there i= any indicarion of mpaimment lose. Any change in the esomanes in funre
vears maght affect the camming amounts af the respective assers wath o corresporbng affecr on the
deprecianen;’ amormzanon charge end impairment.

Fair value of investments

The frer vabkse of Far vilue th nmp’h her cqurr[\rch._-n—f‘n.'c ncomie (FVTOHCT and Fur value through '|'|'rriﬁr
e loas (FYTTL) investments are determined by eeterence so murket inreresy sate at the reporting dare. Loy
change w the estmare mipht effect carmving amount of imvestments with comesponding effsct in
statement of comprehensive income.

MNEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPETATIONS

a) Smnddards, interpremanons and amendments o published approved accounting standands that
hecame cffective during the vear but are not relevant
The Company has adopred the following sccounnng standard and the amendments and interpretanon of
IFRSs which becarne effective for the cument vear

AR 1 — Presenmanon of Fnancial starements (Amendments)

IFRS 3 - Business combananons’, defimtion of a business {Amendment)
- LAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimartes and Errors” | definition of materaliy
CAmendmentz)
- IERS 9 - Financial Instruments” , Interest rate benchnnark seform (Amendment)

IFRS 7 - Financunl Insmrumenis-Dasclosures | Interest rate benchmark reform (A mendment)
- IFRS 16 = Leases', CON -1 relared rent concessions { Amendment? !!'J
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4.2

b} Standards, interpretations and amendmenis (o published approved accounting standards that
are not vet effective

The following stmdards, amendmens amd merprentons with respect w0 the approved  acoounting
smandards as applicable n Pakistan would be effecnve from the dates mennioned below aganse the
respectve standard of interpretation:

Effective date
Standard or interpretation ;Z:I‘ul:ﬁ:lb::ml “i
on of after)

Property, Plant and Equpment: Proceeds before intended use = \mendments o

- WY
IAS 16 Jomuagy 1, 2022

4okt of ]'u|:|‘|[||r|g an Uneroas Conmacts = Amendmenis o LS 37 Joamuary 1, 2022
Updating a Reference to the Conceprual Framevwork — Amendments to [FRS [ ey 1, 2022
Classification of Liabilines as Current or Non-curent — Amendments 1o LS 1 Jamury 1, 2023
Amended by Definutton of Actountng Estmates = Amendments to [AS 8 farueey 1, 2023

Thie Commussion antcipares that the adopion of the ibove standards. amendments and mrerpretitions in
future peoods, will have no matenal impact on the financal sratements other than the 1mpact on
presenmbon [/ disclosures. The Commussion s m the [eocess of .uuc!d&nﬁ the wnpact af changes lad
dewm by these srandards on s ioaneml aaements

Furthir, the following new srandards and interpreratgons have been issued by the [nremadonal Accountng
Sundards Board (TASE), which are ver o be nonfied v the Commission, for the pumose of ther
applicababicy 1o companies in Pakisran:

1FR= 1 [Farsr-nme .'l.dnpm;-n. of Intermatonal Frnael Reporting Sravdards

[FR5 14 Regulamry Deferral Accounms

IFRS 17 Insurance Oontrcts

The: followmg mterpremtions ssued by the TASE hove been wived of by the Commison:

IFRIC S Derermuming wherher an srmngerment eonmina lease
IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated ar cose less acommilated deprecution and impamment losses, if my,
except for eapiral work in progress which are stared ar eosr less impazement, if any.

Deprecianon s caloulared on straight line moethod o amne off the depreaable amount of each asset over
s esumared wsehd life. Rares of depreciation are specified in note 3w the financal statements

Depreciation on additions during the vear 3 charped from the date of scquisstion or the dare the asser &
availuble for use sind on disposale up o the dare of digposal

Mameenance and norml repairs are chagged 1o meome 05 and when micurred. Major sepairs and
impvements are nlpunll;n;'il and the assets so replaced, 1 any, are derecogrased, Gaans and losses on
disposal of properny and equipment are tncluded 1 ather income

Intangibles

[nrangible dssets are stated ar cosr less sccumulined amortization and imparment except for intangble
eeets wnder development whach are stared ar cost less imparment, i any. Arornzation cn I:lr:u:1|.'1|.|llr.'

ssErts !'|.-.1'|.11'|R finioe useful Bfe v cabodated om strmhe-loe bases ur nafes spec thed in nate 7 oo the fGnancial

STACTICNIS. WN
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43 Impairment of non-financial assets
The qun'illg wmolits of the Cotmissaon’s assets wre reviewed at each :I'l.."l:l-':ll.‘l'il.ljz thite o detetimine
wherther there s any indscanon of impatemenr loss. An impuirment loss = recognized for the amouwnr by
which the asaet’s carming amount exceeds it recoverable amount The recoverable amounr s the kigher
of an asser’s fur value less cost o sell and valee in use. An impairment loss or reversal of impiorment loss
1% recogmuded i the shterment it comprehenve income,

44 Taxation
Current
Provision [of current taxatton 13 based on taable mcome gt the cugoent tare of fax after taking e
account applicable tax credis, rebates and exemprions avulable, 1f any.

Defesred
Deferred 1ax i accounted for ising the balince sheer Habiliey mwthod in respect of all emponr
differences ansing from differences berween e carrving amount of tssers and habitines in the financal
statements and the cormesponding tax bases wied 1n the compuranon of mxable income.
Dicferred fax lalnbioes are cocngnized for all taxible temporany diffesences and deferned tax assers are
secogniized ™ the extent it is probable thar futwe taxable profits will be wwilable againse which the
deductble remporary differences, wnsed mx bosses and rax credite can be unlize].
Dreferred tax is calenlated ar the gares that ase éxpected 1o apply 1o the penod when the differencer reverse,
based on bix rates that ave been enacted or substanually enacied by the dae of issue of fnancial
STREEITIENTS.
Dieferred tax assets and Ralilines are offget if there is 4 lemnlly enforceable neht 1o offser oumrent mx
liubilires and assers, and they relare m income maxes keved by the same iy authorin.

4.5 Emplovee henefits

Defined contribution plan
The Commission manins an Jp]'rrr:.uwi defined conmmbutory :_'m:n-u::.rnr fund for 1w fr;:g'l!m'n:—."w, ehigble
for this benefir plin a3 per policies of the Comrssion The Commisnon's conmbunon e defined
contributory Provident Fund at the rate of 107 of basic salacy s charged to the statement of
comprehensive inoome for the vear.
Defined benefit plans
The Commission operates following defined benefit plans for irs eligble emplovees:

(i) Funded Gratuity and Pension Scheme
Defined benefir funded graruity and pension scheme for all clipble employvees who complere qualifing
pertod of seovice and age.
These Funds are admensserated . by mmuzrees. Annual conmbunon of the granoery and penson funds are
based on acnuanal valuation using Projected Unar Credit Method, selared details of which are given in note
16 of financial strements.
Charge for the vear s recognized in statement of comprehensive meome. Actuarial gam or losses ansing
eant g tuzeriad vatuation are recorded directly in other comprehensive moome.
Caleulanon of gratury and pension reguires assumptions to be made of future ourcomes which maanly
mcludes moredse in remunesiton, expected long reom renem on plan assets and the discount mies wed w
comvert funare cush flows m cument values. Calculinons are sensitive w changes in the underlymg

5..*-*:-I.l‘."lp-ri43ll1‘1
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(i)

A6

4.7

18

4.9

410

4.11

Compensared ahsences

The Commission recognizes provision for compensated absences pavable to emplovees ar the ome of
retirement)” fermunonon of service.

The provigion for compensated absences is detzemined on the basis of acharial recommendations using
"Projected Uit Credir Merhod™, The most secene achearial valwaon wis conducred on June 30, 2021,
Defeered grant

Crranis - that compensates the Commmesson fin expenses mewrred ane |:r|.x1g|:||.cud m stulerment of
gomprehensive INCOMe a8 grant income on i svstemane Bass in the penods in which the relaned expenses
are secognized. Grims selared ro assers are deducred from cost of selated assets,

Revenue recognition

The Commission recognizes fee revenue on the besis of performance obliganon sansfied Le when rhe
services are rendered. Revenue m recogrized as per the rarés apeaified in cespectve rules, regulanons,
curculars or statites

All penalees)” fines secovered are not credited 1o ncome of the Commission. Rather, these are éredited o
and deposited in the Federal Consoldated Fund as required by the SECT Act 1997,

fricome on hank deposits and shosr rerm iavestments are recognized wsing the effective vield methiod.
[nvestment in associate

Thiese are secounted for using the equaty method, swhenehsy the mvesmmen? 1s wrierally cecorded ur cose and
achivsted chereafrer for the post acoinsinon change m the Commission's share of the net assers of the
assoctate. The starement of compechensive meome cetleers the Corumassion’s share of the results of the
operatons of the ssociare. Where there hus been 2 chanpe recopnuzed in the other comprehensive inciame
of the sssoctare, the Comumission recopmizes 112 shsre of any chinge m s sorement of comprehenane
BT,

The Commission dereemines w1 each reportng dare whether there 5 uny obpective evidence thar 1he
EvEsTTenr i the dssoctine s mmpiirecl. IF this s the csse the Coamrussion caleulstes the amount of
|mruirnk'ﬂr as the difference h(‘h'i.'l‘_l'n thr ll,‘(;DL'[‘l!l’lh,' arnoant of rhc ms.?n_—iﬂrc ;md. s tzrr}'u:g walue a[:d
rocognizes the same in the starement of other comprehensive ncome

Long term loans 1w employees

Long term |ouns gre immilly recognized ar foe value. After iningl recogninen, these are subsequently
measured ut amernzed cost vsing the Effectve Tatersst Rate (EIR) method, Gaing and losses recopnized
i profit and less sccount when the assers are derccogrused, as well through the EIR amontzation process
over the rerm of the loan, The EIR amortizadon i provision for discount o loans 1o emplosees in the
srtemen of comprelensive ncome.

Contract liabilities

LUnder IFRS 15 “Revenwe from Conteacts with Customers”, obiligation o tmnsfer poods or semvices w a
cistomer for whick the Commission his recesved consideration or an amount of considersnon s dee
fromn the customer 13 prezented as contract by, The contruer halnbbes of the Commussion COMmpTes

of advance payments recerved from custramiers i dccordance with the forms of vanous stanues/
regulancins as desenbed in note 16.3 1o the Gnaneial stiemens.

Provisions

Provsions are recogized when the Comnussion has a present legal or constroctive obligation 48 a resulr
of past evenes; it i probable that an outflew of resourees embodying economic benefits will be reguiresd o
settle the obligation; and o reluble estimute of the smount can be made,

o
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4.12 Financial instruments
All Binarscaal nssers and Gnancisl habibees are ecognveed @ the nme when the Commassion Ieerinies o
party to the conrecmal provisions of the instmument. All the financial assers ape derecognized ar the nme
when the Commission losses control of the contractusl dghts that comprse the fnanclal assers. All
financial bsbaliries ure desecognized ar the ome when they are extunguished that is, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or uxpi:rr!-. Any gaims or losses on de-recognition of the
fenancial assers and financal liabilives are mken o the starement of comprehensive come
(i} Financial assets
Classification
Filectve July 1, HiH, the Commossion cusafies s fnancial wssets i the FI:IIIN’M‘II!H MESUrersent
CALEOMIES:
4} Amomized cost where the effective interest pate method will apply;
by farr value through profic or loss;
l::; fair value theoughy ather c::nnpwhvuxiuﬂ tnceme,
The chssification depends on the entin’s busmess model for managing the financial assets and the
contraviual rerms of the cash fows.

Foar assets measured at Fur value, gres wned fosses wall ether be recorded in satement of expendirure wd
income and ather comprehensive mcome, For myvesoments i equity wstruments: thar ane not held for
ieading, this depends on wherher the Commassion has made an irrevocable elecnon ar the nme of sl
recognition fo accounr for the equiry lnvesmmwent af Far value through other comprehensive incame
(FVTOCT). The Commussien reclissifies deb invesuments when and only when is businiess model for
thanageng those fsies changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regubar way purchases and sales of financial asscts are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the
(T Ssen COIETUES [ purchase or sell the aser. Fimmend assers are derecopmised when the nghrs o

receve cish flons from the fnancul assets have expired or have been reansfereed and the Commission
has wranafereed substantially all the daks and rewards of cwnceshep.

Measutement

At immtial recogminon, the, Commussion messures 4 fnancial osset of a6 foir value plas, i the cise of o
finonl asser nor af fair value through profic or loss (FVTILY, transacnon coses thar are directly
armburabde 10 the acquisiton of the fnancil aser. Transacoon cosrs of financtal assers carmed ar FVTPL
are expensed in starement of expendinure and income and othee comprehensive indome,

Firancial assers with embedded denvatives are considered in their entirety when derermining whether their
cash flows are solehy payment of prncipal and inrerese.

bt instruments

Subsequent mewurement of delt mstrumens depends on e Commission’s business model [og
managing the asaer snd the cash fow chasererises of the sset. There are three mensurement caregonies
tnto which the Commasaion elassfies s debr instruments:

(a) Amortsed cost

Awsets that are beld for collection of conteacol cash flows where those cash fows represent solely
pavmenis of ponopal and ineeresr are measured o1 amornsed cost, [nreresy mcome from these fnancal
assets 4 included in ether income using the effective ntereat e method. iy gain or loss pnsing on
derecopnition 33 recopnized directly i statement of expenditere and mcome and other comprehensive
mnecome wnd presented m other other income, (chanpes). Impaimment losses are presenred as separare bine

rerm in the seatement of L'|1'.'|'|;'!l'|.'h|.'|:|-:i.'.'c ineme, Q!M
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(h) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Assers thar ane held for colleenon of conteacral eash tlows and for selling the tfinencial assers, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely pavments of poncipal and interesr, are measured ar FVTOC]
Mouvernents in the carrying amount are tiken theough OCT, except for the recognition of mmpuement gins
or losses and interest income which are recognized in statement of expendinm: and income and orher
comprehensive income. When the tinaneinl asser i derecogmsed, the cumulanve gmn or boss previously
secognized in OC] 48 reclassified from equery 1o statement of expendinare wnd income and other
comprehensive moome and recognized in other meome) {charges). [nrerest income from these finascial
assets 18 nchaded in other income uang the effecnve mrerest rate method, Impaimment expenses are
presented s separane line irem i the sarement of compreehensve meome.

c} Fair value thoough profit or loss (FYTPL)
Assers that do not meer the cntena for amortsed costor FVTOCT are mensured ar FYTPL A guim or loss
on @ debr investmenr thar s subsequently measured ar FVTPL 18 recognized tn the starement of
expendimee and ncomie and other comprehensive meome and presented net within other other income/
{charpes) in the penod in which it anses.
De=recognition of financial assets
A finanecml asser (oe, where appleable pare of a fnaneial atser or part of 2 group of smilar Anancd sssers)
18 derecogrized when
*  The nghre to receve cash Aows from the ssser have expared; or
The Commission has weansferred 1o nghrs o recetve cish Dows from the et or bos assomed an
obliiganon to pav the recerved cash Hows e full withour matenal delay to a third party ender 2
+  ‘pass-through’ amanpgement and either (1) the Commussion has rmansferred substannally all the
risks and rewnrds of the asser, or (b} the Commission has neither rransfereed nor retaned
sulmtznnally all the nsks and rewards of the asset, bt has imnsfeimed conmol of the assen
When the Commssion has s ferred ite nghis 1o necerve cash flows from an usser or has entered om o
pass-through amranpement, and has neither mansferred noe remined substantally ofl of the msks and
rowards of the ssser nor ransfeered conesol of the coer, the sseer 12 rocoprized o the extent of the
Canmmossnion's contmung nvolvement in-the assce
In that case; the Commission also. recogmizes un sssoctsed Rability, The wransferred asser and e
mssociated Baliliny are messured on o basis thar reflecrs the Aghe and obliganens thar the Comminsion has
rerained. Contimung involvement that tikes the form of 2 guarntes over the trnsforred asset 1s measured
ar the lower of the onginal carsving amounr of the asser and the masamum amount of conmderanon thar
the Commission could be requred to repay.
Impairment of financial assets
The Commussion assesses om0 forwand looking basts the Expected Credic Losses (ECL) associared with
itz debr insruments cammed ar amormised codst and FYVTOCL The impairment methodology applicd
depends on whether there has been 1 significant increaze in credir nsk.

Folkowing ase Bnancial instrumcnns tha ace subject to the ECL model: DA]"\_
v Advinces, deposits and ether recetvables
= Short lerm invesrments
*  Cashoand bank balances

*  Loans and advances
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Simplified approach for advances, deposits and other recervahles

The Commussion recogruses bfe wme ECL on advances, deposus and other receivables, wing the
stmphfied approach. The measurement of ECL reflects:

an unbiased and probabidity-weighed assount that is determaned by evaluating a tunge of possible
oulcanes;

rrascrvable and supportable mformanon thar is wvaduble ar the repornng dare abour pasr evenrs,
cwrent combinons and forecasrs of funere seonomie condinons

\dvances, deposits and other receivables are separarely assessed for ECL measurement The liferime
cxpected crechn losses are estmated using the Commission's histogeal credit boss expenence, adiusted for
facroes: that are speaific w the deldors, penerl economic condinons znd an assessment of both the
current a8 wiell as the forecass direcoon of condinons ar the repornng dare, meluding nme value of moner
where wppropmare.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Commission recognizes an imprusment gain or loss in the starement of expendinare and meome and
wiher comprehensive income for al fnanc] imamements witk a comepondng adipsrment m their
caroviyg amoune theough 2 loss allowance accouwnt:

(it} Financial habilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Commission classifics its financil linhilities in the following caregories:
*  ar fmr vahue through peofit or loss;
¢ orher Eonanceal labalines

The Commussion determunes the clessificaton of its finanoial balilimes o mingd recogrmon. All Gnancal
lralitlines ace recippized intndly st fuir value and, i the case of other finuneial liabilides, also inchude
directly armibntable tansaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial Babilies depends on their
classificanon, as follows:

a) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial labihces ar fur value through peofil or boss include financial lishilines held-for-rading and
financial Babilities dessnated upon initial reoogniton as Deing ot fair value theough prafic or loss. The
Commussion has not designaned any fimancial habshey vpon recogrinon s being ar far value theowgh profir
oo liss

b} Amortised cost

iter ininal recopmanon, other Anancial Habaines which are interest hearing ore subsequently measured ar
amortized cost, using the effectve interest rate method, Gain and losses are recognized i the statement of
comprehensive moome, when the liabilives are derecognized as well us through effecive inferest rane
ANMOTIEATDON PIOCEss,

De-recognition of financial liabilives

v Baancial babdity s derecognized when the abliganon under the Balality s discharped or concelled oe
CXPUCE, When an th.i.-ﬂm.g financial Eability is replaced by another from the <ame lender on substannaally
different terms, or the rermis of an existing habiline are substandally modified, such an exchanpe or
mosthficanon is meared a5 3 de-recogmnon of the ongnal habiber and the recogninon of a new liabiliry, and
the difference in the sespective carming amounts i recogmuzed in the starement of comprehensive ncome.

Qe
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4.13

4.4

416

417

(i) Off-serting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financtal assers ane liahilines are offser and the net smeunt s ceported 10 the statement of financial
prosition, if the Commission has o legaily enforceable mghe to ser off the recognized amounts, and the
Commuassion either imends o sende on a ner bosis, of realise e asser and sertle the labiling
suil:|1|.t|r'.||1r.'u|u|.}'. |J‘|_.,:i||t:||' enfonceuhle ngh1 must not be connngent on futire events and muost be
entforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency ae bankruptey of the
Commisscon oF the counfer party.

Receivables

Receivable are stated initiadly ar the farr value, subsequent o mital recopniton these are stared ar thiar Fair
value as reduced by approprare Inss allowanee sceount. The Compussion recognizes an impmement gein
of |oas i the starement of comprehensnee income for all fnancial instruments wath @ corresponding
adjusiment to their coming smeount theough o loss allowance accounr. Enown impared tecevaldes are
written il

Cash and cash equivalenrs

Cash and cash equivalenrs are catried ar cost. Far the pumpase of sratement of cash fhovs, cash and cash
equavalents comprised of cash in hand and bank balances.

Accrued and other liashillities

These sre mutmlly recognized ar the fie value: Sabaequenr 1o the smiml recogranon these are stared ot thire
amertzed cost.

Reserves

The amount appeoprmted o reserves for loan 1o emplovess and asset acquasinon reserves 15 made as per
approval of the Policy Board.

LEASES

Right 1o use of Assers

The Commission recognives 2 nght-of-use asset mnd a kase liakality ot thee lease commencement dare. The
nght-to-use of asser 5 inioally messured ar coar, whach compndes the intial ameunt of the lease Babaley
adjusted for any lease parments made ar or before the commencement date, plus any inerial dircct costs

weurred and an estunate of costs o dismantke and remove the undeddying asset or 10 restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it i located, less any besse mcenuves received,

The righr-of-use asset i submequently ammesttised g the \Irxigﬂ:l-'lin: metho] ar mte define in note 6
from the commencement date m the carlier of the end of the wseful Bife of the nghr-of-use asser or the
end of et lease terme The esnmoared wseful Iives of nghs-of-use assers are determined on the same bass as
those of properry, plinr and cquipment. In addinon, the oght-of-ise assct is penodically reduced by
impakrment bosses, 1f any, and adjusted for cerman remedisurements of the lease liabiliny

Lease Liability

The lease labibin 15 IIIJ!:J]I.!.‘ ieasured at the present value af the lease pavenents that ame not pasd ar the
commencement dute, discounted wang the mteress wate implian e the lease o of that rate cannot be readily
dheterrruned, the marker rare. Generally, the Commission uses marker rare as thee diseounr rare.

Lemse payments in the messurement of the lease lnbilioy compose the tollowing:

. fed paymcTes, I.:ml.ud.il:Lg I bu'l."-.-!a.ru.'l: '.'Lm:l;] TS,

b.  vanuble bense puymnents thar depend on an mides or o more, iwnally messered ssaing the mdex o rate
% af the commencernent dure:

e, ameonts espected oo be pavahle under o restdual value guarnree; and

d. the cxereise pRce under a purchase option that the Commisaion s reasonably cemtiin o exercize,
fease pavments i 2 opiiona] renevwal pedod i the Commussion is reasonably centuin to exendse
an extension option, sod peoaltdes for cudy termanavon of o lose unless the Commisslon is

ceasonibly Cortain not 1 teminue carly. q
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417 LEASES {Continue...)
The lease Labality s measured at amortised vost using the ctfectve nterest method. [ris remcasured when
there is 1 change in furure lense payments attsiye from 4 change in an index or rare, if there is 4 change in
the Commession's estimate of the amount expecied 1o be pavable under o ressdal value guarantes, ar of
rhe Commassion changes s assessmont of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or rcrminanon
OpHon.
When the lease lability s remeasured in this way; a comesponding adjustment 13 made to the canying

amsount of the aght-of-use asset, o s seconded n '|1:r1.-L':I. ot loms i the casryinge amount of the ::ighl of-use

assel hay been reduced 1o 2enn i
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2.1

Maote

RIGHT TO USE OF ASSETS

Opening balance- Leaschold building

Right to use af asset recopnized

Addinons dunng the veas

[Dsposals dunng the vear

Clesing balance

Orpening balance- Accumulared amortzanon
Amnocieaton for the Y

Disposals dusing the vear

['_'h:;-smg Balance

Met book value as at year end

Rave of wmmonizanon

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Clpening halance- Sofreares

\ddinons dunng the year

Dhspx wals dl.u'i:l'q.; the vear

Closing balance

Uipening balance- Accumulared amortization
\martzaton for the vear

!]Ir-[!uri:lt's. dl'.'l'i.m-_; the vear

Closing balance

Met book value as at year end

Amortization rate (%s) per annum
INTANGIBLES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
CUrpening balance

Additions during the year

Closing balance

This represents cost incurred on softwaces under development,
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

].v:l!'l!.: feTT Inviestment 2.1
Investment in associate - Unguoted

Trstiture of Financial AMarkets of Pakistan 92

Less: Impairment loss on investment

This represents the investment in Pakistan [nvestment Bonds (PIB%). The mare of mark up 15 %% per

2021 2020
(Rs. "0H0") {Rs. "000°)
326,554 -
260,149
557,669 66,405
(260,149 -
624,074 326,554
170,797 2
181,562 170,797
(260,145
92,210 170,797
531,564 155,757

Over lewse term

Cwver lease term

TE3 6l 12217
46 193 450
{3,434 (32.561)
286,636 283,606
95,688 120 068
0105 23181
(3,434) (32.561)
152,359 95,688
131,277 187,018
25% 25%
10,257 -
BAGT 10257
18,724 10,257
1,037 058 1,028 647
2B,000 28.004)
(2B8,00x) (28,0001
1,037,058 1,028,647

annum with manrry i 2022, The invesrment has been accounred ar amoenized cosr.

Investment in Institute of Financial Markets of Pakistan (a section 42 Company under the

Companies Act, 2007)

Thiz represents 7.3.68% (2020

(2020; 506000 ¢ach.

3.68%) investment in issued, subscabed and paid-up capital of Insunte of
Funancial Markets of Pakistan (the Instne) represenng 206080 (200 50000 ordinary shares of Ks 50040

Lo
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9

0.3

2021 2020

Note (Rs. '000") (Rs. '000")

LOMNG TERM INVESTMENTS (Contnue...)

Hewever, the Insnture is an assoctare of the Commassion since the Commgsaion has no controlling prower
over the fnancial and operating policies of the Tnsnmnate,

Furthes, the commission has undertaken to contsbute an amount not execeding Ma. 50,000 {2020 S0,000)
to the assets of the mstitute in the event of iz being wound up.

The following mlle summanses the financial informonon of the Insomure 25 meluded m s fnenersl
staternents for the fear ended June 30, 2000, which have been used for accounnng under equary muethed
The rable also reconciles the summansed fimancial informanon o the carving amount of the

Corminussson's nterest i associaie

Percentage of shareholding 13.68% T3.08%

L'a Audired Audived
Mon curteny nssers 8 oy | 3T 337
Cureent assets (inchuding cash and cash equivalents) 5033 12454
Toual assers 43,104 40,7
Non-cureent labilines Sor ek B163
turrenr kulilines 1934 3.0
Total liabilities 7708 14073
Met agsers at fair value (100%6) 35,396 35,718
Commmussions shaze of net assers [73.08%) 20,080 26517
|mpatrment loss on investmenr (28001 {28,000
Share in loss and msers no recogmeed 1,20 1,63
Carmang amount of meerest in associte %
Revenue 29397 24,804
Loss from connmung operanons (10074) (T3] {3919
Cither comprebensive income (10070
Tevral comprehensve income [100%%) [T63) =219
Commissions share of ronl comprehensive income (362 4,361}

The mlurmmtion i:ln.':ul;u.ll,'d above for dursent vear s Insed on unsodited Srsurcin] statements of the

Tnsttute for the vear ended June 30, 221,

The caerving amcunt of infepest in wsottte in the Comrgazion’s Grasaal smtements s N 2020 Ml
Share 1 profic of assooae has nor been secognized since the profis are nor avalable for dismbunen
Further, on the basis of analves of recoverable amount of the associate, the Conrmission reeognized an
imprment bods af R, 38,000,000 tn ProT Vears.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans and advances - considered good

Interesr Beanng 35687 43716
o [nterest Beannge 1ixd SRR 341,017
384,585 384,733
Less; Currene pornon of loans and ndvances
Interest Beanng {3,724 (3135
Son-nteresr Beasng 112240 (670N
{117,906) CLTR.0M6)
MNon-Currenr prrnon of loans amd advances LG0,610 Al K87
Less: Provizaom fue amputed ntecest on looms i advanices 1751 121 . 85)
Mem-Curtent portion of boans and advances-ner 349,040 344,702

Ve
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021 2020

T {Rs. "000°) {Rs. "000')

101 These represent loans o emplovees for vasious purposes as pee SECP Human Resource manml, seoured
q_g.lj.l.'li! ::'l'li‘!]rl!t:s' retiternent benefits and collaterals. Loans are recovermble in manthly mstallments, toa
s period by June 2033 . These loans have been designated os interest free for emplovees excepr
for emplovees avmling house ond wehicle Inans who have nor opred our of mreresr on their respective
provident fund balances,

1l DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Dieferred tax asset-opening 61,6 GOGET
Deferred tax expense duning rhe veas 1.1 {61,654 (7001
Defeered tax asser-losing - 61,600
The ner balance of deferred raxation is in respect of the following tempoary differences:

yocelerred deprecianon and amernzanon . (13,843
- Profit on short teem investments acerued bur nor due (32,708

[Discownr on long rerm loan 35375
i 'lpf.‘u[i.::l_r-: lease Laliliges undler IFRS 16 4. 754
- Impaiemens boss on mvestment in associite - B1X

- 61,6596

1.1 Theough the Finance Acr, 2021, effective from July 01, 2021, income of the Compmssion has been
exempred from mx inclading the rummum s under seenon 113 of the Income Tax Chrdinance, therefore
the commission i3 not subject to ingome tax in feture vears. Consequentdy, deferred tax asser has been
watten-off duning the vear.

12 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AL T

Current porton of loans and advances - considered pood 117 el 18046
Sharr term loans 1o employvees - conssdered good 12.1 G0 + 463
Advances 7527 129866
Deposits 19760 3562
Prepavments WG 13 381
Advance tax - net 122 3,169 7002
Fee recervabile - conswdered good 0900 7T
Advances receivabile 12.3 TP a¥y T
Recerable from smafl renrement funds 16,21 00 -
(et receivibles - considesed oo 18, - 17,707
237,092 376,310

These cepresent the howie remt sdvance loans given o emplovess wmd are recoverable/adjustable on
monthly basis. The amount is secured agamst the emplovees’ shaze af post emplovmens benefis,

2 Advance income tax / income tax pavable - net

Opening balance 702 12,456
Tax charge for the vear
Starement of comprehendive income (181,501) (101,867
Ciher comprchensive income 3 -
(181801} [1i1,862)
P poied dunag the vear 177,068 O 4R
Closing balance 3,169 7002

WV
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2021 2020
(Rs. 0004 {Rs. 000

123 This inchudes an amount of Rs. 19425000 (20200 19423,000) represeniing 5% bid money pard 10 Pakistan
Raibwray in 2012 for purchose of buwd on 99 vear bease and Rs 7,708,000 paid 1o Sindh Board of Revenue
for stamg dury. The Honorable Supreme Courr of Pakistan m Suo mom nonce resimned the Governmaene
of Sindh oo transfee the stare land. Larer the Honorable Supreme Courr of Pakistan vide apder dared
Auguse 07.201% decided rthar Sindh Board of Revenuwe in rhe firsy Fiilcc 15 the Competent Authonty o
consider applications for grant of allorment and if such alloment s sought o be bona fGde and in

MNone

sccordance with the Law. Private sale of Government land apprarently s not ru'rn'l.u.-\..-\.i.hll: m [

In another case, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pukistan vide order daved January 04, 2019 hos held tha
Pakastan Ralouys cannot lease lund owned by cenrer and provinee for mare than five vears where land s
nor regquired for mileavs opemnons . After the decisions of the Honorable Supreme Couer of Palistan, the
Commazsion haa requested the Pakiitan Rabawys and Sindh Board of Revene for refund of bid amount
and stamp dury,

13 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Government Treasury Bills (T-Bulks) 131 2,121,474 2,178,658

1531 This mchsdes T-Inlls h.'ll'mﬁ raturity of one vear and carry rate of mark up rangang from 7.3 o 70

(2020 12.74% 1 13.8%%) per anmsm.

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 307 573
Cash ar bank - inrerest bearing accounrs 14.1 2033 34007
293,330 34,670
.1 These carry mack-up mate of 5,3% (2020 6.5% o 10.25%%) per mnum,
15 CURRENT MATURITY OF LEASE LIABILITIES 130,056 198,825
16 ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Leorued expenses G, 71N 6118
Pertormunce based incentives payables 44330 3222353
Accounns pavable LR R 11731
Withholding rue pavable 37 1707
Pavabbe o sl petresnenn fumds 16.1.1 R2T24 07 a0
Unearned income 16.3 102292 148,025
Levies pavable o Competinon Commmssion ol Pakistan 55091 LA R0
Cigher liabilines 13335 G0
1.205,255 1,325,276
16.1 Payable 1o staff retirement funds
Granuty fund 161,1 R2724 87,203
Penston fund 16.2.1 (2.206) 119,776
w0928 207,039
16.1.1 Changes in net Hability - gratuity fund
Opening balance 87263 26,245
Charge dunng the vear 16.1.2 A 454 O3 T18
Cniher comprehensive moome 613 2467 1106
Pavments mawde dunng the veur 103 260 (33 B6H)
Closing balance 1614 852,724 ] 87,263

Dl
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More o =i
{Rs. "000") {Fes. "000")
16.1.2 Amount charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income
Past service cost
Current service Cost B3 418 02367
Interest cost on defined benefit abligaton U2 EBG 126,166
Interest income on plan assers (BB.83T) (124,315)
39,454 93,718
16.1.3 Amount charged to Other Comprehensive Income
Premeasurernent (Jossh [ gain - Expetience adjestment ] 12,136
Cram,/(loss) on plan assers, exchading mrerest income 20123 (13.304)
(2,267) {1,168)
16.1.4 Reconoitintion of amounts recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined olligatons 16.0.5 1170073 1041768
Fair value |_,|'F:|-_||_|_ asscts 101G {1,087 340 (954,T05)
52,724 7,263
16.1.5 Movement in Present value of defined obligation
Present value of defined obligations at begmnig of the vear 10 208 Db 043
Current s¢rvice cost B3418 92367
Inmerest coar 02 ERG 126,166
Benelit paad (B8589 {69072
Experience adjustment 38,3 (1213463
Olbliganen ar end of the vear 1170073 1,041,168
Principle actuarial assumptions
Assumption used to determine Defined Benefic (Obligaton
a: Dhacount Rare 10.25%, 9358
b Balary merense rate. [Long term) B25% T25%
Assumption used o determine Defined Benefir Cost
a MHacount Rare 9.25% 14.50F%
b Salary meresse mte [Long term) T25% 12500

Sensitvity Analysis
Ressonably possible change at reporting date to one of the eelevant actuarsd assumptions, lolding other
assumphion constant, would have affected the delied benefit obilimEon by amounts shown bebow:

Increase Diecrease
Discount rare (1% movement) 106214 1,297 969
Furure salary groavth (1% mavement) 1, 200857 1LUSE 408

Although the analysis does not ke account of the fll dismbunon of cash Oows expected order the plan,
it does provade an approxemate of the sensunaty of the assumpoons shown,

Projected benefit payvments from funds are as follows:

Year | MM R3320
Yoar 2 IT4TR 15611
Year 3 490011 40,853
Year 4 132,967 29,702
Wear § TN 254 7,104
Yeur 6 o Year 10 B, 080 66,375
Year 11 and above 2308474

P
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Note 2021 2020
(Rs. 000" (Rs. "000")
16.1.6 Movement in Fair value of plan assets
Fair value plan assetz at beginning of the vear 954,705 B78398
Interest income on plan assers BB.E5D 124 815
Contnbunon: 103200 33 B6E
Benefir pad (B8589 (69,072
Remm on plan sssets, excluding interest income 39123 {13,304
Fair value of plan assets at end of the vear 16.1.7 1,087,349 954,705
16.1.7 Break-up of plan assets
Special Savings Cerdficates 1,036,190 N7 RN
Nanonal Savings-SNDHRs 41,0619 -
Bank accounrs 10,150 3 B71
1087349 934,705

Funds covered were invested within lmis =-E:l|.';.'|.t'|.c|.i b :rgu]:dli.ql::lx goverming mvestment of approved
renrement funds in Palasean.
The 'r‘.llm'l. cXposes the Commussion o varouws acoural nsks: nvestment osk, salary nzk and longevity nsk

from the gratuity plan.

16.2.1 Changes in net hability - pension fund

Opening balance 12776 131,886
Charpe duning the vear 16.22 36,388 46,918
Cither comprehensive income 16.23 (38,684 T2 RSB
Pavments made dunng the vear (119,776) (131 ,886)
Closing balance 16.24 (2,296) 119,776

16.2.2 Amount charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income
Pust service cost

Current service Cost 29092 340603
Interest cost on defined benefit oblgaton 152,138 20 354
Inrerest income on plan assers (141,802 (197,23
36,385 46,918
16.2.3 Amount charged to Other Comprehensive Income
Premeasurement loss - experience adjustrment (13.800) (42.534)
Gain,/[loss) om plan assets, excluding interest income 52483 [30.324)
38,654 (72,858)
16.2.4 Reconciliation of amounts recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined abligations 1625 1,776,420 1670562
Fair value of plan assers 16.2.6 {1,778,714) {1,550, 7RG}
(2,296) 119,776
16.2.5 Movement in Present value of defined obligation
Present value of defined oblignnons ar beginning of the year 1,670,562 1,468,553
Current service cost g2 303
Interest cost 152,158 209,554
Benefir paid (B2 193 [B46ET)
Expenence adjustment 13,801 12534
Obligation ar end of the vear 1,776,420 L670,562

Vi
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Mote

Principle acruarial assumptions
Wsaumpnon used o deferming Defined Benefir § Shligation
at Discounr Rue
b Salary increase rate (Long teom)
¢ Penston Indexanon Rate
hssumpnon used mo derermine Defined Benebir Cose
iz Discount Rate
b Salary increase rate (Long term)
e Penston Indexanon Rare
Sensitivity Analysis

Dseount rate (170 movenmen)
Furure salicy prowth (1% movernent)
Pension rate (1% movement)

Projecred benefit payments from funds are as follows:

Year 1

Yenr 2

Year 3

Yot 4

Yedr 3

Year 6 e Year 10

Year 11 and above
16.2.6 Movement in Fair value of plan assets

Fair walue plan assers at bepaning of the vear

Inrerese incomie an plan assers

Conmbranons

Benefit paid

Renumn on plan assets, excluding mterest incame

Fair value of plan assews o end of the year 1627
16.2.7 Break-up of plan assers

Specul Motce Depour Receipes (SNDR) - NBP

Speciul Sovings Cernficates

Treasuzy Bills

Bink acoounts

T CIng I]l o= o |i1¢' COMTTMESsI.

from the pensien plan

0z
{Rs. "000%)

10.25%
B25%

3.25%

9250,

7350

$.25%

Trasonably pesable change at reporming dare to one of the relevant acruanal assumptions, holding other
sssumpnon consmnt, weubd have affected the defined benefir obliganon by amoonts shown below:

Increase
L615.269
LATOA405
L3596

Although the analvsis does nor take sceount of the full dismbunon of cash: fows expecred under the plan,

1 dowed prrwede an approxemace of the sensinvry of the assumpoons shown,

2020
{Rs, "000")

9.25%
T2

£25%

14.50%
12500%
QK

Decrease
2013057
1,726,000
LET402

50,970 123,626
116,336 134,053
104,637 11364
159,056 [ TR
108,002 1142097

1018144 BB 517
1332375
1,550,786 1,336 667
144,862 197239
119,776 131,886
(5,193 (B4.682)
52485 A0
1,778,716 1,550,786
30,756 974
1LA93,TH 1,503,052
§T020 .
6,297 0760
1,778,716 1,550,786

Funds covered were mvested wathin limus speaificd by regulitions governing imvesiment of approved
The pension plan ss o defined benefirs plin mwvested theoweh approved tuse fund. The trustees of the fund
wre respomsilibe for plan sdrinistranon and mvestmens. The Commission appoines the rrustees. All rrustees

The plan expoacs the Commission movasous sonuanal nsks: imvesment gk, salaey dsk and longeviny dak

Dim
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16.3 Unpearned income
This represents advance payments teceived from customers in sccordance with the forms of vardous
sramies, regulatons including under the Compandes JAer, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2002 and MNBFC and
MNontied Ennnes Repuladons, 2008, Unearned income s tecognised as tevenue when the performance
ul.'ll.i.ﬁﬂl:il:.u.‘l. in secordance with the poley as descrbed in note 4.9 15 sansfied.

17 PAYABLE TO FEDERAL CONSOLIDATED FUND

Balance ar the bcg:mtin;.; af the vear 185 1478
Penalnes eollected dunng the vear 17.1 47845 8825
Penalnies refunded dusng the vear - (1,500
Penaliies deposited to the Fund dunng the vear (45,8018 (2B.616)
Balance at the end of the ver 222 185
17.1 Penalties collected duning the year
Company Law Division 15,057 12,150
Insurance Divasion 3675 3125
securnes Mlarker Division 14,185 D683
.\|.H:I.'I;l|l.€1.'l] Compantes Division 15,948 3803
AT, 845 22 823

17.2 In terms of on amendment o the SECT Ace, 1997 through Finance Aer, 2002, effecove G0 Julv 2012, all

penalnes fines recovered are ot credited to mcome of the Commission, mther, they are credited o and
deposited in the Federal Consolidared Fund,
A per SECT et 1997 {umendment chrouigh SECTP Amendmenr Ace, 2016} "any surplus of secoipts over
the acrunl expendinre incloding budgeted expendirures i a vear shall be remitred o the Federal
Consolidared Fusd and any defice from the actual expendinure shall be mude up ln the Feder
Governmient.” The amount pavable to the Fund based on audired cesults is deriled below:

172 Jccumulated susplus wansfereed 1o the Fund 23 Y58 2764943
Less: Tranafer to reserve for loan to emplovees
Les=: Amount retmned agunst acrual and  budgeted  capital
expendinures
P‘u:.:l'.:l: iy thie Fund = =

(2664958 (276,943

The Commession has teansfecoed B, 2093800815 (2020: Rs. 276,942,757 from the accunulated surplus o
AESCH ACUESINON peseve,
18 PROVISION FOR COMPENSATED ARSENCES

This represents the Commission’s lishility towands employees’ compensased ahsences which is payable ar
the ome of separarion of eligible emplovees,

Obliganion an beginning of the vear 182027 170,645
Expense for the yeis 18567 33352
Encashed dunng the year (14,959 (10974
C¥iligtion at end of the vear 204,535 162,927

Principal actuarial assumptions
Larest acnnerral valuanon wwas carned out as ar ‘ﬂ’.llFl.mu N2 usin,g PMrojected Uit Crecie Method,
Valuanion discount rate - per annum 1354 0250

Salary incrocose pae - PO annuEm 3.25%% T2E%

Wty
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1

Nisie 21 2020
(R, "0} (Rs. "000")

LIABILITY AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
[he minimum lbewse pavments under fimance beases fll doe as fallows:
within one year 25875 /TR
larer then one vear but withan five YEALS TRH.G90 31,3
larer than five vears - 3

6155324 355,110
Less: Finamncial L‘l:nu'gi:; alleared o the futare |:|-l.':ri|'-|.I'\ (3344640 (33,820
MNet lease obliganon 332,064 235,288
Le=s: Currenr Parnon shown under current hakbibnes [E&}_I_I')GJ |;I':.|1"I‘.E:5::

352,008 24,463

The weighted-averigre inceemental sare apphicd o leise bilines recognized dunng the vear was 10f0 per
ANCVam,

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Cerrain companies | mdividuals filed suirs agunst the Commassion m respecr of clinms iggreganig m Ra,
B3 mullbom (2020 1868 million) for demages. Hased oa legal advise, the Commussion i confident of o
favorable outcome of these coses and thar there will be no fnanel impact of these cases

[he Commission has been made party in vanous other lepal cases, The Commission believes thar the
cutcome of these cases would not pesult i any financial exposure o the Compission,

Commitments

\ggregare commirments for contracted capatal expenditure at end of the vear iz nil, (2000; Rs, 73 malliosn).
FEES AND OTHER RECOVERIES

Fees and other recovenies 211 3340401 047,146
less: Compennon Comamdsion of Pokisean levy (100220 23414
3,240,262 2,858,732
Company Law Davisaon 2327018 L1677 501
Insucance Division 922G R R
secunnes Marker Dinvision 365423 26,11
Specialied Compunies Dhvision 2TRA24 654445
3,540,491 2,047,146

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Irvcome on bunk |_|1:|n|-:rs 17,807 13,186

Inearmc on mvestments 258,032 TR0 B0

Amarnzanon meome of Pakosran Investment Bonds (T1Bs) 5411 4315
284,830 418,367

Income from non - Ginancial asscts

Gan on sale of property and equiprment 16260 1871

Miscellaneous incomse 33469 5,764
H03,379 429,002

Pan
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23 SALARIES, ALLOWANCES AND OTHER BEMNEFITS
Salanes
House renr allowance
Medical allowance
Convevance allowance
Unliry allowance
Uitheer allowsanee
Provision for pension
Provident fund coninbunon
Prenision for gramuty

Prowision for compensated absences

24 OPERATING EXPENSES

Repair and mainrenance

Juppaort st cost

I'mavelling and convevance

Telephone, postage and couner

Uinlires

Rent and rares

Iscoumeng on operanng lease hatubnes
Ponnng and statonery

[.1."._;'_a|| and 'FI!I'):.I.'S!-I.U:I:L-E ch:l:g:s

Fees and subscnption

Humman resource development
Insurance

Addvernsement

Enreeranment

\uchr fee 241
Chthiers

4.1 Audir fee
Annueal audin fee
Audir fee for emplovee benefirs fund rruses
Ot of pocket experses

25 TAXATION
Current tax
CLETENIT Yeur
- pROE vears

Deferred ax

2zl 2020

(Rs, "000") (Fs. ")
7984 122207
130,282 $24572
117563 113,733
20867 21208
71,113 0TS
60,200 477,714
36,388 6,018
o, 104 63,102
89454 93718
38,567 25253
2,270,621 2,057,229
05093 BG,TGE
00 RBG 14 408
4051 B5,459
350N TITHG
27512 25,082
6,395 5875
12919 30,562
12466 15,038
16241 153463
D63 10,621
13,413 6,362
14,742 13,524
25600 4,370
3370 230
SR Wi
15,391 32768
421,082 467 815
£y ] 400)

180 ,
P (LL1]
580 300
181,801 TS
P
LBLAOT 101,862
G606 29450
243,497 131,321
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25,1 The relanonship berween the i expense and surplus of income over expendituce 4 as follows:

}:utpll.u of meome over expenditure 4790008 400,322

\pphicable tax mte 20 .
T an applicalshe o pare 138971 133,638
Tuee impace of insdmisable expenses 201,991 24,7
Tax smnpact of deprecinon and other admissible EXPENSES LELE R (127 4%
Effect of pror years charpe - 577
Impact of deferred fax expense G 6 20450
Tax expense for the vear 243,497 131,321

26 TAX STATUS

1 The Secunties and Exchange Commuszion of Pakisan [the “Commission™] has filed the rax revurns for the

Tax Years 2003 ro 2007 in purstance of the order of the Honorable Federl Hiph Cour, by clomurng
EXEPsng o total incomnie i terms of =ection 49 of the Income Tax Onduanee, 2001 [the “Ondinance"
However the Addinonal Commissioner of Income Tox;, Awdit Division [the "ACTT] arended the
wssessments of the Commission under scenon 122(3A) of the Oedinance by rejecang the clam of
exemption and thereby creating tax demand apgregading o Rs. B92.60 million. The Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue [the *ATIR"| had wphebd the wmnubment of order of AGCIT for Tax Year 2003 and
mantunest the order for the Tax Years 2004 m 267, whale dizpusing of the :\Ppcals filed |1:r the
Commssion agunst the order of the Commussioner Appeals [the “CIRIAYY). The Cemmissen fled the
refesence applicasons before the Honozmble Tskunabad High Court (THC), who held that the amendments
boought m section 49 of the Ordinance through the Fmance Acr, 2007, ure nor applicable cerrospecnvely
s g resudr of this, pavment of ek demunds previowsly made by the Commssion under prntest, stands
refundable. The income tx deparmment has filed an appeal in the Honozable Supreme Courr of Pakistan
agaznst the order of the Hororable Hiph Cowrt of Tabumabad.

(1 The Odfieer Inlond Revense frhe “CHE™] charged defaulr surchange aggregatng to K=, 11050 pullion for
delay m-payment of the tax demands for the Tax Years 2004 1o 2007, While deciding the appeals fifed by
the Commussion, the CIR Ay} has '..IFIhI:III'j the r_"l'ulﬁ of addinonal rax and directed the OIR 1o e Compule
the smeunr of default surcharpe after taking cognizance of the tax refunds available with the Commission
for the Tax Years 2008 and 2009, Dunng the reassessment proceeidings, the OIR fullowed the sume
procedure 1o wierk cor the defaule surcharge which nomon wid repected by the CIRIA) wath rhe directions
o followe the insrroenons earler given by the CIREA). The Commission has contested the order of CIR{A)
o uphoid the charge of defaulr surcharpe hefore the ATIR. The ATIR alio upheld the arder of the
CIR(A) for charge of defaulr surcharge, however the ATIR ondesed for debetion of the defiult surcharpe
foa the pedod for which the sty grisred by the Hoovmble Islamalsed High Court through order dased 19
Febrruary 2009 was i force. However, since, i view of the onder of the [HE, the iy demands for the T'ax
Years 204 o N7 stond vinated, theretore, consegquent charge of defnde surcharge 12 alio liable 10 be
deleted.

(] The rax mubonry has smended the assessment of rthe Conwnission for the Tax Year 2008, thercby,
disaliowing the excessive’ x deprecration of Bs. 2447 million allepedly chimed by the Commission. The
CIREA) has ser-aside the amended assessiment order on appeal Bled by the: Commiszsaon. Yennss the
.'.'|1E:l¢"|E.I"I! order of the CIR{A), the Commussion hus filed an appesl before the ATITR, which iz subjuidice all
rordhute

fie] The Commissaon has Gled the repum For the Tax Years 2008 vo 2019, which stood issessed in terms of
Secnon 110 of the Ordinance. The Commussiones Inkand Revenue [ihe "CIRT) selected the Conmizsion
For aidis relating o the Tax Year 2000, Heowever, the Commmisston has chullenged i selection For audir by
CIR ins the Honorable [slumabed igh Court. The wrir petition of the Commision was sejecied by the
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26 TAX STATUS (Continue...)

Against this rejection, the Comnission has filed an [ntta Court appeal to the Division Bench of the [HC,
therehy addressing certuin issues. Being not satsfied with the onder of the IHC, the Commizsion as well as
the Tax Deparmment, have filed refetence before the Honomlbile Supreme Court of Palistn.

Comsequent to reassessment proceedings for the Tax Year 2013, the rax aurhosine amended rhe assessment
of rhe Crommission thereby making cerran disallowances and curtmbing ncome mx refund by Rs
31,930,949, Bemg aggneved with the amended asscssment order, the Commission preferred an appeal
before the CIREA), who has ser-aside the amended assessment ooder and has cemanded back the case 1o
the rax suthosity. Being ot satisfied with the order of the CTR{A), the Commession has filed appeal before

'lhmush the order framed by the mx auhoary under scenoa 161 read with section M08 of the ordinance for

the rax vear 2017, tax demond of Rs. 360,230/ - was raised and the SECT has requested the tmx suthorine 1o
adjuse the same againse tax refundable for prios vears.

The mx gurhornty has sued Notce m the Commession for necertammng mrr!]'rh.'.n.rc with the ineome tax
withhalding ohliganons. The manngement of the Company has filed the relevant information wath the tx
authonty and the proceedings are underway

The management cxpects favorable outcome of the appeals and thersfore no provision against these cases
has been recopnized on these manters in these finanaal starements.

Ihrough the pramulzated Finance Acr, 2021, moome of the Commassion has been L'\{{'l'l'lPl:{‘Ii from Mesme
ta by way of inchision of s aame i Twbbe | of sib-clause (1) of clause (66) of pare [ of the second
schedule 1o the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Finance Ao, 2021 13 effective from July 01, 2021,
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial Assets at amonized cost

Maturity upto one vear

Ledvanees, depeosiars and prepavments 213850 358037
Short term investmenis 2121474 2178658
vecrued profit on long term investment 25,608 26,751
Cash and bank halaneces 293,350 54,670

2655328 2 G106

Marturity after one vear

Long term investments 1LUAT (158 128,647
Loans and sdvances 34040 44,702
1,385,008 1373349
4,041,426 3,092,355

Fimancial liabilities at amomized cost

Maturiey upto one vear

Accroed and other habilines 1,102,963 1,177,251
Current marunty of lease Balnlines 180056 198,825
Pavaliie 1o Federal Consalidnted Fumd 20 185

1,285,241 1376261

Matuniey after one year

Liabibity igminst wssers sulsjeon o fnance lease 352,008 24,463

Ve
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271 Credit quality of financial assets
Ihe credit qualiny of Anancial assers have been assessed below by eeference 1o external credit eating of
counterparties determined by the Paksstan Credit Rating Apency Limited {(PACRA) and JCR - VIS Credit
Ranng Compuany Lamued (JCR - VIS The counterparnes for whach extemnal credar TANNGS Were nor
avulable have becn assessed by reference o internal credit mnngs determuned based on their historical
information for any defaulr in meenng oblguoms.
Advances, deposits and prepavments
Counterparties withowr exnernal credit canngs A1+ 213,850 380
Shart term invesmments

Counterpamnes without exrernal credir sanings A= 2121474 TITALSE
Accrued profit on long term investments

Counterparnes withour exvternal credir sanngs A-l+ 26,668 26,751
Cash and bank balinces

Counterpartics without extemal credin catngs A-14 29333) 67

28 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Commission has exposuze to the following rsks from its use of financial instrumcns:
Credit nsk
- Ligqusclsey nsk
Marker rsh

Commassion s overall responsibilny for the esmblishment and oversight of the Commassion’s nsk
management  framework., The Commission is tesponsible for developing and  mondionng  the
Commassion's nsk manogemens pu,dit;ic';
The Comnussicn’s rsk management |;ul.i;.'u.'= ase established o wenuzfy ansed amaivze the asks fced by the
Comprussion, o set appropoate nsk mats and conreols, and ro montor nsks and adherence m s, Risk
management policies and svstems are reviewed regulacly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the
Commission's actvites, The Cooumission, 'I|:|:1.'n.|g|'|. is Eak g and management stasdards mnd procedures,
airns o develop a disaplined and constructive conmol environmenr in which all emplovees undersrand
their sodes and obliganons,
The Audit Committee oversees how management monitoms comphiance stk the Commissaon’s nsk
management policcs, procedures and reviews the adequacy of the isk management framework i relaton
1o the nsks faced by the Cosmmission. Audie Cormmutee 18 assisted i its oversight role by Intemmol A udit
[nrernal Awdir undermkes hoth regular and ad-hoe reviews of rek management conteols and procedures,
the resules of which are reporred to the Audit Commirtes.

28.1 Credit risk

Creder nsk w8 the nsk of financial loss o the Commussion if 4 customer or counterparty fo o financial
instrument Fadls to meet its contraciual obligations, To munage credic sk the Commission has placed
funds in govemment securities and financial instfunons with high eredie worthiness and ossesses the credis
guality of the counrer parnes as sausfactory. The Commission does not held any collateral us secunty
apurst any of its fnancial assets. The Conunission believes that it i not exposed o mujor concentration

of credin sk W
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a) Exposure 1o credit risk

The carmving amount of Gnancal azzets repoezents the maximum credit exposwe. The masimuam exposure

e credit sk ur the statement of financial posidon date was:

Loans ard advanees 340,040 4,02
Advances, deposire and other receivables 215830 58027
Shicet petrm invetEmant 2121474 2 178,658
Acereed profit on long rerm invesmments 26,608 26,751
Cash ar banks 202933 34097

3,003,971 2,963,135

l;rr:gr.\[‘thu.'n“_l.' there 2 no concentration of credie Ask. As wr the vear end, the Commission's mos
sigmificant receivaliles mepresents investment in Government Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investmens boads
with banks of agregate amoant of Rs. 3047732500 rhoasands (excluding markup). The management
Irelieves that ne mmparment allowance s necessary m respect of the Commission's Gnancial assets as the
most sigmficant finanoal assers represent mvestment and bank balinces which are with banks and
tsarutons of high coedit rinngs.

8.2 Liguidity risk
|,:.|;|_l.,'.;i¢3.|r_|.' nsk i the nsk thar the Commussion vwill nor be able to meer 158 financal r:-11§ig'.'|l."i.nns as .*|'n:5.' fall
due. Prudent buidiny nsk management implics mainmaining sufficienr cash und markemble secunnes. The
Commussion’s approach o mumgng bguedity 5 10 ensure, a3 fax as |‘:1m-.i|!:l'!|:. thiar ir will .|]-.'|.u:5.= have
sufficient bgudine to meet its babilines when due, under both normal and stressed condibons, withous
imncurmng unacceptabile losses or nsking damage m the Commission's repuranaon,
The EERTRITL 1S |:rlu|'_'|.r: of the Commission's [nuncial labiditzes Lused on the conracmunl amouns s as
Frdloars:
Financial linhilities

Mamnty upto one yvear

Accrued and other abiines 1,102,963 L17T7.351
Current manenty of lease Laknlines 180056 198,335
Payable to Federal Consoliduted Fund e Hesrat 185

1,285,241 1,476,261

Maturity after one vear
Linheliry agenst assers subject 1o finance lese 352,008 24,463

28.3 Marker risk
Marker csk is the rsk that changes m murket prices, such as forepn rh,l.'i:u.l'l.gc rtes and mierest rues will

affect the Commission’s moome or the valse of s hobdings of financal mstmuments, The objectve of
mirker rsk managemens @ to manage and conceol markier nsk exposures within acceprable parameecrs,
while opumizng the remern on ke

Interese rate risk management

The wrerest eate visk 5 the sk thar the fair value or the funure cash lows of 3 fnascial msrament will
Moctuste because of changes in market intemest rares, Inferdsr e exposure anses from shor ferm
invearment, and balances in depodin and saving accounts. Ar the balance sheer dare the inerest rare msk
pn:hﬁ]l: of the Comyrussion’s interest beanng francal mstruments are as follows:

a) Fixed rate instruments

ash ar bank o Ll L ] 3497
Shorr term mvestment 2121474 2I17H658
2,414,407 2,232,755

VRS




94

Annual Report 2021

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020

o (Rs. "000") {Rs. "000")

b} Fair value sensitvity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Commission does not account for any fixed mte Anancil assets and labibties ar fair value throuah
peofit of loss, Therefore, @ change i mreeest rutes ar the repormng date woubd nor etfeer profir or loss.

Currency risk management

Exposure to currency nsk
Foregn curvency nsk anzes munly where recenvables and pavables exast due o rransacnons with foresgn
undermakings. The Commussion helicves that it is nor maeeally exposed m foreign exchange nslh.
2% FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Faur value i the wimount for which an asset could be exchanged, or lalabey senled, beween knowledgeable
willing parties in an wrm's length transaction. f.'umsm]ucn!'.}', ditferences can anse between carmving values
anvd thie Dutr value estimuies.
The esmmated fur value of all financial assers and Gabilioes s considered not significandy differenr from
hook values as the items afe either sho - werm in e or pedodically repriced.
Inrernanonal Financial Reporting Srandard 13, ‘Financul Insmimenes © Disclosuse’ requires the company
tor clagsafy fair value measurements using a fair vabue hierarchy that reflects the sipnificance of the mpuos
used in making the measurements, The fair value hierarchy' kas the following levels:
(a) yuoted prices (unadjusted) i acuve mackers for wlenucal assets o lababives (Jevel 1)
inprurs ather than quated prces included within level 1 thar are observable foe the asser or lababey, enther
(b} diecty (ie xs prces) or indieccely (e, denved foom prees) (level 2) ; and
(€) nputs bor the asser ar habdier thar are nor based on observable marker dara (unobservable mpus)
The level in the Fur valoe beerurchy withm aduch the G value messurement % ategorized s enoreny

shall b determuned on the basis of the bowest level wpur thar s sigmifcant o the faie valee measurement
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Carrying amount Fair Value  Carrving amount  Fair Value

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Loans and sdvances 6619 b6 1Y 466687 +66, G887
Advances, deposits and 5 o M3E50 3aR.u27
I 1 £ 3

other receivables ShhE B2
Share-ferm mnvestnents 2121474 2121474 21TH65E 217R 658
2% ool peoe v koo fonn 26,6468 26 48 6,751 24,751
INvESHmEnts
Cash and bank balances 292933 22953 34,0497 54,097

3,121,550 3,121,550 3,085,120 3,085,120
Financial liabilines nor measured at fair value

15 11022463 1,002 563 1177251 1,177,251
Accrued and other Liabilines :
NI EHRRERY OF Sl L8056 180,036 198,625 198,825
liabailizes
Payable o Federl 4 =94 5 3% = :
o i Simad= pimanin 18 18

Consolidated Fund Y ?
Cabiiyagmt sefy 332008 152,008 24,463 23,463
subject 1o finance lease _ -

1,637,249 1,037,249 1,400,724 1,400,724

Ve
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Interest rates used for determining fair value

The mterest tates wed 1o discount esnmated cash lows, when :|E,!|:r]i.|l.:;1.'||||:.| are bused on the povemmeni
vicld curve at the seporting dare plus an adequate credic spread. For instruments carmed ar amortized cosr,
since the majoney of the inmerest beanng imvesrments are vanable moe based insrrumenis, theee 5 no
difference in CAMTYING LMOunE and the far value. Further, for fixed rate mstowments, since there @5 no
significant difference in marker tare and the rre of nstumenr and therefore most of the Gxed mte
instrumenits are short wem in ouree, fur vabee signsficantly approximares o carrving vilue.

Dietermination of fair valucs

A number of the Compuny's sccounting policies and disclosures require the determinacon of fir values,
for both fnoncial and non-financial assers and  bababines. Faie values have been derermined  for
memsurement and / or disclisure pumoses hased on the followang metheds.

Investment in securities- fair value theough other comprechensive income

The fair value of far value theough other comprehensive income investments are detesmined enther by
reference to their quoted closing repuschnze price ar the reporring dates or 12 the present value of funre
cash flows discounted ar marker rates of interest for a ssmalar instrument at the reportng dares,

Oif-setring of financial assets and liabilities

The Commission does nor have any kg:.lll:u enforcenlile ngl:l! ey el all the recopnized amounts of Bnancel
assens and fmencial lmbilines, therefore the Commssion does not off-ser any financal assers and financial
lintnlines.

CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

I'he |T-’!||.'i|.':.' Board of the Compassion monttors the Commussion’s Tmrl'unﬂ:.nn-:l: along with funds requured
l-'Ji su.-l:l:lmbjt IJIl'Il:I:I.IJl:IIL'l l:l’ 'I:: f:ulluujse-alm_ Thete were no L|1'_51Lgl:5 [{+] IJ'1E l}umrus.&iﬂu‘s '_||1]n'|ac|r_|1 L[5
the fund managemenr dunng the vear. The Commission 18 nor subject o exteenally imposed fund
f‘:qmw” 5.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Commuszsion deals with several state-conmalled ¢nnties, directly or indirectly conteolled by the
Gowernment of Makistan IJu:l:'-uﬁ_':l s Government authonnes, agencies, affiliates and other organcations,
I'ranssctions with rhese stte-conrrolled ennses e nor very sigmficant

In addiven o abave, Makisean Tnsttute of Capatal Mugkers, Pakestan Instrute of Compomte Govenance,
key management persoanel and emplovee benefie plans are related parties of the Commission
Transacrons with relaved parnes dunng the vear and bolanees ourzranding ar the vear end are a8 follows:

Mame of the related party Relationship Tramsactions 20 2020
and during the vear (Rs, "(00") (Rs. "DOO"Y
sharcholding
Commissioners Key management  Loan disbursed 1,500 12,441
Loan repad (8.324) (5.617)
Ohetstanding G101 6 R824
balance
Pakistan  Instmate  of Stare controlled Conmbution made 138 100
Comportate Governance endry results in
.i.‘-w‘.:
Federal Boaed of Revenue  Stare controlled  Opening balance 702 12,430
entity tesults v Tax cxpense for {181,501} (101 802
BEEOCEIE the vear
Tax |5.|.|.d Juﬂl:lg 177968 W A0E
the year
Closing balunce 5,169 T2

R
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Mame of the related party  Relationship Transactions 2021 2020
amd during the yvear (Rs. "DOD') (R=. "000")
sharcholding
Compettion Commission State controlled  Opening balance 430,805 348 380
of Pakistan eny resulis in Levy for the year 100 225 BE 414
assocLe Levy pad dunng (78342
the year
fllr:-slng halance 458 .6°H) 436 303
Pakistan Instirute of Capital  Assocate Amount  of 28,000 28,000
Markers (73.68% Imvesiment  -at
shu:htﬂrj.lr.g] Coat
Ner adsers ar Fair 35307 35718
value [100°%)
Commissions 26,081 26517
share of ner issers
Impairment  boss (28,000 (28,0000
01 INVESOTEnT
share m loss and 101w 1,683
144018 ot
recognized
Carmving  amount
of mierest in
Federal Consalbidated Fund  Federal Crastanding 333 185
Government of  balance ar vear end
Pakistan
Nanonal Savings-T Stare controlled  Opening balance 2178658 3072857

Balls/ TDRs

ennry results in
EsOCiEiE

Encashed duning
the year
Investment made
during the vear

Closme balance

(2217 827)

ZIT0643

2121474

(6,480.274)

5,395,075

2178658

Natonal Bank of Pakistan-

Stare  controlled

Opening balance

1,035,398

(28.558)

PIBs EI11it}' resulls in Encashed during [134,745)
AsSOCIANE the year
Investment made 143073 1.083,956
durini the vear
f:lc-slnE balance 1,063,726 1,053,398
Securites mnd  Exchange  Orher  relared Provvackent funcd 6,242 6312
commissaon of Pakistan-  party emplover
Prowrdent fumd ruse conrmbuton
Proaadent fund [% el e 63,021
employee
contmbution
Sccunties and Exchange Other relared  Pension fund- (2.296) 11776
commission of [Makistan- pasty l:!ti.'l:i'\'!l.}l'l.':.'l
Pension fund touse payable
Securities md  Exchange  Other  related Gratuty  fund 22 T4 BT205

commission  of Pakisman-

Crratuiry Fund rrust

party

payable
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iz

33

Mame of the related party  Relationship Transactions 2021 2020
amel during the year (Rs. 'I'.IDI}':] (Rs. 000"y
sharcholding
Secunites and Exchange (rther Volunteer 33418 32046
corurdssion of Pakistan- sty Pensionn  scheme-
Volunteer Pension scheme Emplover
Volunteer 3,48 320G
Penston  scheme-
Emplovee

RE-CLASSIFICATION/CORRESPOMNDING FIGURES

The comespondmg fpures have been re-arranged and/ re-clssified, wherever necessary, for the pumpose

of companison in the Anandal statements. The detalls of the major reclassifications are as below:

Description

Re-classified from Re-classified to

2020
(Rs. 1m-}

Accrued profit on invesment in PlBs

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Long term
MvEstmEnns

Accrued  profic
en long term
HIVEstmEnts

(Presented in

curnent a3sers)

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on

Commuassion.

Yot ol

COMMISSIONER

34 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
r
-
CHAIRM

26,751

by the

Qen
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Management Directory

m Designation and Department Email Address

M Asif Jalal Bhatti Executive Director, Adjudication Department-II, Adjudication Division asif.jalal@secp.gov.pk

Executive Director, Chairman's Secretariat and International

Musarat Jabeen Relations Department, Chairman's Secretariat, Systemic Risk musarat,jabeen@secp.gov.pk
Bilal Rasul Executive Director, Commission's Secretariat, Islamic Finance il s e el
Department and Appellate Bench Registry : =
Bushra Aslam Executive Director, Supervision Division bushra.aslam@secp.gov.pk
Ali Azeem lkram Executive Director, Onsite Department, Supervision Division ali.azeem@secp.gov.pk
. . Executive Director, Finance Department, . .
Abid Hussain Support Services Division and Special Projects abid.hussain@secp.gov.pk
miL:ézafar e Executive Director, Advisory Department, Legal Affairs Division muzzafar.mirza@secp.gov.pk
Imran Inayat Butt Executive Director, Offsite-Il Department, Supervision Division imran.butt@secp.gov.pk
. : Executive Director, Policy Regulation and Development Department . :
Khalida Habib (SCD), Specialized Companies Division khalida.habib@secp.gov.pk
Executive Director/ROC, Corporatization and Compliance
Mubasher Saeed Department-CROs, Information Systems and Technology mubasher.saeed@secp.gov.pk
Saddozai Department and Information Security Department, Company Law : I
Division
AT b B DI Director, Adjudication Department-I, Adjudication Division amir.khan@secp.gov.pk

Khan Afridi

Director, Market Development, Policy & Regulation Department
(Insurance), Insurance Division
Shahzad Afzal Khan  Director, Anti Money Laundering Department shahzad.afzal@secp.gov.pk

Director, Policy, Regulation and Development Department (SMD),
Securities Market Division

Director, Human Resources and Training Department, Support
Services Division

Waseem Khan waseem.khan@secp.gov.pk

Asif Igbal asif.igbal@secp.gov.pk

M Mubbashar Hassan mubbashar.hassan@secp.gov.pk

Ayesha Riaz Director, Offsite-| Department, Supervision Division ayesha.riaz@secp.gov.pk
Maheen Fatima Director, Onsite Department, Supervision Division maheen.fatima@secp.gov.pk
Amina Aziz Director, Adjudication Department - |, Adjudication Division amina.aziz@secp.gov.pk
Tarig Naseem Additional Director, Registrar Modarba tarig.naseem@secp.gov.pk
Zahida Rafiq Additional Director/HOD, Internal Audit and Compliance Department zahida.rafig@secp.gov.pk
Najia Ubaid Additional Director/HOD, Primary Market Approvals and naiia.ubaid@secp.gov.pk

Development Department, Securities Market Division

Additional Director/HOD, Adjudication Advisory & Litigation

L Department, Adjudication Division

ibrar.saeed@secp.gov.pk

Muhammad Naeem

Khan In-charge, CRO Islamabad mohammad.naeem@secp.gov.pk
Shahbaz Sarwar In-charge, CRO Lahore shahbaz.sarwar@secp.gov.pk
i);eqd\lilftlkhar ul Hasan In-charge, CRO Karachi and CRO Sukkur Iftikhar.hasan@secp.gov.pk
Saqib Aslam In-charge, CRO Peshawar sagib.aslam@secp.gov.pk

Kashif Islam In-charge, CRO Multan kashif.islam@secp.gov.pk
Ghulam Mustafa In-charge, CRO Faisalabad ghulam.mustafa@secp.gov.pk
?:rdeLgnRehman Khan In-charge, CRO Quetta abdul.rahman@secp.gov.pk

Nazim Ali In-charge, CRO Gilgit nazim.khan@secp.gov.pk
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Abbreviations and Acronym

AAQIFI

ADB

AMC
AOB
APG

APRC

ASOs
BOI
BPR

CAREC

CDC
CEIFs
CIR
cIs
CKO
CMB
CMC
CRC

CRO

DFID

DFM

DNFBPs

EOBI
ETFs

FATF
FMU

GEM
HFCs

IAIS

IAs
ICAP
IFMP

IFSB

IIRA

10SCO

IPO
ISO

LEAP

MER
MFI

Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic

Financial Institutions
Asian Development Bank

Asset Management Companies
Audit Oversight Board
Asia Pacific Group

Asia Pacific Regional Committee

Authorized Surveying Officers

Board of Investment

Business Process Re-Engineering

Central Asia Regional Economic Cooperation
Central Depository Company of Pakistan limited
Centers of Excellence for Islamic finance
Centralized Insurance Repository

Collective Investment Scheme

Centralized KYC Organization

Capital Markets Board

Collateral Management Companies
Corporate Restructuring Company

Company Registration Office

Department for International Development
Deliverable Futures Market

Designated Non-Financial Business and
Professions

Employees Old Age Benefits Institution
Exchange Traded Funds

Financial Action Task Force

Financial Monitoring Unit

Growth Enterprise Market

Housing Finance Companies

International Association of Insurance
Supervisors

Investment Advisors
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
Institute of Financial Markets of Pakistan

Islamic Financial Services Board

Islamic International Rating Agency

International Organization of Securities
Commissions

Initial Public Offering
International Organization for Standardization

Leading Efficiency through Automation Prowess'

Mutual Evaluation Report
Microfinance Institutions

MMOU

MTS

MUFAP
NBFCs
NBMFCs

NCCPL

NCTA
NDM
NFSC

NIC

NPAs
NRA
NRV
PCM
PFM
PHL
PIB
PMD

PMIC
PMN
PMRC
RDA

REITs
ROSC

SAB
SAFA

SCRA
SCRS

SGF

SLB
SMEs
SSRC

STA
STR

System

TCl
UIN

UNCAC

VvC
XBRL

Multilateral Memorandum of
Understanding

Margin Trading System

Mutual Funds Industry of Pakistan
Non-Banking Financial Companies
Non-Banking Micro-Finance Companies

National Clearing Company of Pakistan
Limited

National Counter Terrorism Authority
Negotiated Deals Market

National Financial Stability Council
National Incubation Center
Non-Performing Assets

National Risk Assessment

NRP Rupee Value Account
Professional Clearing Member
Pension Fund Managers

Power Holding Limited

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Pakistan Mobile Database

Pakistan Microfinance Investment
Company

Pakistan Microfinance Network

Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company

Roshan Digital Account

Real Estate Investment Trusts

Reports on the Observance of Standards
and Codes

Shariah Advisory Board
South Asian Federation of Accountants

Specialized Companies Returns Account

Specialized Companies Returns System

Settlement Guarantee Fund

Securities Lending & Borrowing
Small & Medium Enterprises
Small Disputes Resolution Committees

Financial Institutions (Secured
Transactions) Act, 2016

Secured Transactions Registry

National Clearing and Settlement System

Technical Committee on Insurance
Unique Identification Number

United Nations Convention against
Corruption

Venture Capital
Extensible Business Reporting Language
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Declaration of Investments

Disclosure of investment by Commissioners of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
in pursuance of sub-section (6) of section 16 of the SECP of Pakistan Act, 1997. These disclosures
were made on June 30, 2021.

Number of units

Sr.No Name of Fund Nature of Interest As on 30t June,
2021
1 UBL Fund URSF - EQUITY SUB FUND(URSF-ESF) 3,795
2 UBL Fund UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND(USF) 55,832
3 UBL Fund UBL MONEY MARKET FUND(MMF) 38,614
4 Al-Meezan MTPF EQUITY SUB FUND 17,845
5 Al-Meezan MTPF DEBIT SUB FUND 4,278

Farrukh H. Sabzwari

. . . Number of units
Sr. No Name of Fund/CDC’s Individual Nature of Interest  As on 30t" June,
Investor Account

2021

1 MCF - Al Meezan Investment

Management Ltd. Growth - C 173,573.9989
5 MIF - Al Meezan Investment Management

Ltd. Growth - B 138,534.7333
3 BMA Chundrigar Road Savings Fund Investment Account 111,020.1455
4 UBL-Al-Ameen Islamic Retirement Savings

Fund Investment Account 3,838.3471
5 Al-Ameen Shariah Stock Funds Investment Account 89,451.9186
6 Agp limited 10,000
7 Adamijee insurance company limited 45,586
8 Bank al habib limited 41,496
9 B.R.R. Guardian modaraba 610
10 Century paper & board mills limited 33,120
11 Crescent steel & allied products limited 2,000
12 Dolmen city reit 66,500
13 D.G. Khan cement company limited 5,000
14 Dewan salman fibre limited - freeze 20
15 Engro fertilizers limited 57,000

16 Engro corporation limited 1,650



Declaration of Investments

103

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

33
34
35

36
37
38
39
40
41
42

43

44
45
46
47

Engro polymer & chemicals limited
Engro powergen gadirpur limited
Fauji fertilizer bin gasim limited
Fauiji fertilizer company limited
Gatron (industries) limited

Habib bank limited

Habib metropolitan bank limited
The hub power company limited
Hum network limited

Ici pakistan limited

Kot addu power company limited
K-electric limited

Lotte chemical pakistan limited
Lalpir power limited

Mcb bank limited

Meezan bank limited

National bank of pakistan
Nishat (chunian) limited

Nishat chunian power limited

Nishat mills limited

Nishat power limited

Oil & gas development company limited
Orix modaraba

Pak elektron limited

First prudential modaraba

Pakistan petroleum limited

Pakistan telecommunication company Itd.

Soneri bank Itd.
Sui northern gas pipelines limited
Sui southern gas company limited

United bank limited

50,000
16,500
50,000
40,625
500
10,000
52,200
63,500
50,000
1,000
1,500
450,000
100,000
25,000
12,025
13,310

26,090
60,000
25,000

17,000
25,000
25,000
197
29,920
8,729
39,704

300

10,738
720
5,906
7,500
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Sr. No Name of Fund Number of Units as on 30th

June, 2021
1 Pakistan Cables* 10,002
2 Siemens Pakistan* 500
3 Habib Bank Ltd* 100
4 Delta Shipping (Pvt) Limited** 1,691
5 Delta Transport (Pvt) Limited** 10,000

* These shares were bought as Qualification shares at the time of being inducted as an Independent director in these
companies and will be disposed of over time.
** Family business concerns. Shares were allotted at the time of service with the business concerns.
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STAY CONMNECTED:

. 0BO00-28008 | 051-9207091-4

&) +03 306 9365625

& secp.gov.pk

W twitter.com/@SECPakistan

§ facebock com?SECPPakistan

In linkedin.com/company/secp

« jamapuniji.pk (Investor Education)

@ sdms.secp.gov.pk _

i gueries@secp.gov.pk | complaints@secp.gov.pk



